
Board of Examiners Meeting 
April 14, 2015  
Agenda   Page 1 
 

POST 

 

*** NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING *** 

 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS 

 

 
LOCATION:  Capitol Building 

The Guinn Room 

101 N. Carson Street 

Carson City, Nevada 89701 
 

VIDEOCONFERENCE: Grant Sawyer State Office Building 

    555 E. Washington Avenue, Ste. 5100 

    Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

 

DATE AND TIME: April 14, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Below is an agenda of all items to be considered.  Action will be taken on items preceded by an asterisk (*).  

Items on the agenda may be taken out of the order presented, items may be combined for consideration by the public 

body; and items may be pulled or removed from the agenda at any time at the discretion of the Chairperson. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 10, 2015 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 

*3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF A CRITICAL LABOR 

SHORTAGE 
 Pursuant to NRS 286.523, it is the policy of this State to ensure that the reemployment of a 

retired public employee pursuant to this section is limited to positions of extreme need. An 

employer who desires to employ such a retired public employee to fill a position for which there 

is a critical labor shortage must make the determination of reemployment based upon the 

appropriate and necessary delivery of services to the public. 

 

A. Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP) 

 

The PEBP requests the reemployment of a retired public employee as the Interim Executive 

Officer.  The Interim Executive Officer serves while the PEBP Board conducts the search for a 

permanent replacement. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting 
April 14, 2015  
Agenda   Page 2 
 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
 

The 2013 Legislative Session made appropriations from the General Fund and the Highway 

Fund to the Board of Examiners to meet certain salary deficiencies for fiscal year 2015 that 

might be created between the appropriated money of the respective departments, commissions, 

and agencies and the actual cost of the personnel of those departments, commissions, and 

agencies that are necessary to pay for salaries.  Under this legislation, the following amounts 

from the General Fund and/or Highway Fund are requested: 

 

BA# 

 

BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 

FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

HWY FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

4744 Department of Motor Vehicles  $31,345 

 Total  $31,345 

 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 

officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 
 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet Services Division 2 $43,625 

Department of Business and Industry – Industrial 

Relations Division – Occupational Safety and Health 

Enforcement 1 $24,285 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Water Quality 

Planning 1 $27,191 

Total 4 $95,101 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT 1) 
 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS (ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT 2) 
 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

(ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT 3) 
 

9. CONTRACTS APPROVED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD 

(ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT 4) – INFORMATION ITEM 
 

Pursuant to NRS 333.700, the Clerk of the Board may approve all contract transactions for 

amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 meeting of the Board of 

Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all approvals applicable to 

the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable approvals for contracts 

and amendments approved from February 13, 2015 through March 23, 2015. 



Board of Examiners Meeting 
April 14, 2015  
Agenda   Page 3 
 

10. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – Division of 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Water Management and Corrective 

Action 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the termination date on the contract between the Division 

of Environmental Protection and Broadbent and Associates, Inc. (Contract #16117). The 

termination date for the original contract that posted on the November 12, 2014 Board of 

Examiners agenda was December 30, 2018; however, the accurate date of December 30, 2019 

was indicated on the signed contract.   

 

B. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Child and Family 

Services – Nevada Youth Training Center 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the contract value between the Division of Child and 

Family Services and Jill Leslie Oswalt, MD (Contract #14352).  The contract amount posted on 

the June 11, 2013 Board of Examiners agenda was a subtotal of $143,550; however, the total 

amount of the signed contract is $182,550.  

 

C. Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP) 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the termination date on the contract between the Public 

Employees Benefit Program and Healthscope Benefits, Inc. (Contract #14575). The termination 

date that posted on the July 9, 2013 Board of Examiners agenda was June 30, 2014; however, the 

accurate date of June 30, 2017 was indicated on the signed contract.  

 

 

11. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 

*12. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

Notice of this meeting was posted in the following locations:   

Blasdel Building, 209 E. Musser St., Carson City, NV 

Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 

Legislative Building, 401 N. Carson St., Carson City, NV 

Nevada State Library and Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 

 

Notice of this meeting was emailed for posting to the following location: 

Capitol Police, Grant Sawyer State Office Building, 555 E. Washington Ave, Las Vegas, NV 

Brad Carson bcarson@dps.state.nv.us   

mailto:bcarson@dps.state.nv.us


Board of Examiners Meeting 
April 14, 2015  
Agenda   Page 4 
 

Notice of this meeting was posted on the following websites: 

http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings  

https://notice.nv.gov/  

 

Any questions regarding the agenda or supporting material for the meeting please contact 

Director Wells at (775) 684-0222 or you can email us at budget@admin.nv.gov.  We are pleased 

to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and would like 

to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are required, please notify the 

Department of Administration at least one working day before the meeting at (775) 684-0222 or 

you can fax your request to (775) 684-0260. 

http://budget.nv.gov/Meetings
https://notice.nv.gov/
mailto:budget@admin.nv.gov


Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 1 Page 1 

 

LEASES 
    BOE 

# 
LESSEE LESSOR AMOUNT 

1. 
Nevada Funeral and Cemetery Services Board Jenkins Holding Company, LLC $6,640  

Lease 

Description: 

This is an addition to current facilities of an existing lease to house the Funeral and Cemetery Board. 

Term of Lease: 04/15/2015 – 09/30/2015 Located in Reno    

2. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 

Division of Health Care, Financing and Policy 
Sierra Medical Complex, LP $1,731,820 

Lease 

Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease to house the Division of Health Care, Financing and Policy. 

Term of Lease: 05/01/2015 – 04/30/2018 Located in Carson City   

3. 

Department of Health and Human Services – 

Division of Public and Behavioral Health – 

Radiation Control Program 

Park Flamingo, LP $431,692 

Lease 

Description: 

This is an extension of an existing lease to house the Radiation Control Program. 

Term of Lease: 04/01/2015 – 03/31/2020 Located in Las Vegas  Savings of $65,025 

4. 

Silver State Health Exchange Coffee Road Investments, LLC $89,826 

Lease 

Description: 

This is an expansion of space to an existing lease for the Silver State Health Insurance Exchange to house the Consumer 

Assistance Center. 

Term of Lease: 05/01/2015 – 12/31/2018 Located in Carson City   

5. 
Department of Transportation Omninet Westbay, LP $707,898 

Lease 

Description: 

This is a new location to house the Department of Transportation, Project Neon. 

Term of Lease: 08/01/2015 – 07/31/2020 Located in Las Vegas   

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 1 

 

CONTRACTS 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

1. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS 

CAPITAL GLASS, 

INC. 

FEE: BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS 

BUILDING RENT 

INCOME 

$50,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing glass door repair and installation services for various state buildings in Northern 

Nevada on an as-needed basis. These services will be provided at the request and approval of a Buildings and Grounds 

designee. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16392 

2. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS 

SUMMIT 

PLUMBING CO, 

LLC. 

FEE: BUILDINGS 

& GROUNDS 

BUILDING RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$50,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing plumbing services.  Services include pumping, heating, drain cleaning, air 

conditioning, wet well pumping, backflow testing, grease trap pumping, Hydro Vac services, camera service, pipe 

inspections, repairs, and replacements. These services will be provided at the request and approval of a Buildings and 

Grounds designee. 

Term of Contract: 09/01/2015 - 08/31/2019 Contract # 16459 

3. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - BUILDINGS 

AND GROUNDS -  

MARLETTE LAKE 

WATER SYS-Non-Exec 

LUMOS & 

ASSOCIATES 

OTHER: 

AGENCY 

FUNDED CIP 

$63,480 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the East Slope Catchments #5 

improvements at the Marlette Lake Water System, Project No. 15-A022; SPWD Contract No. 109252.  The scope of work 

includes improvement plans and construction documents. 

Term of Contract: 

Upon Approval - 

06/30/2019 Contract # 16402 

4. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION - UNIV 05 CIP 

PROJ - CCSN-NON-

EXEC 

CARPENTER 

SELLERS ASSOC 

DBA 

CARPENTER 

SELLERS 

ARCHITECTS 

OTHER: 13% 

UNIV SYS RCPT, 

10% TRANS 

FROM CAP PROJ 

FND, 55% 

TRANS FROM 

TREAS, 22% 

TRANS FROM 

THE PWB 

$225,222 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the sixth amendment to the original contract, which provides professional architectural/engineering services for the 

University of Las Vegas Hotel College Academic Building; Project No. 13-P05; SPWD Contract No. 92114. This 

amendment increases the maximum amount from $3,046,223 to $3,271,455.40 for additional services for design and 

production of the project.  The scope includes additional services to travel to Carson City to meet with the building official 

and State Fire Department personnel to review the code requirements for the building, along with additional services for 

submittals to the Federal Aviation Administration as required due to the location of the project.  

Term of Contract: 02/04/2014 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 15263 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 2 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

5. 
082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

BLACK EAGLE 

CONSULTING, 

INC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109191. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16450 

6. 
082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

CIVILWORKS, 

LLC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109182. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16449 

7. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

CONSTRUCTION 

MATERIALS 

ENGINEERS, INC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 

109192. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16430 

8. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

GEOTECHNICAL 

& 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

SERVICES, INC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 

109193. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16470 

9. 
082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

HYYTINEN 

ENGINEERING, 

LLC. 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional structural plan checking as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109227. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16446 

10. 
082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

LOCHSA, LLC. 

DBA LOCHSA 

ENGINEERING 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109188. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16457 

11. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

LUMOS & 

ASSOCIATES 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection plan checking services as required.  SPWD 

Contract No. 109194. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16444 



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 3 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

12. 
082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

LUMOS & 

ASSOCIATES 

OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING THIS 

SERVICE 

$50,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109184. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16445 

13. 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION All Budget 

Accounts 

NINYO & MOORE OTHER: VARIES 

DEPENDING UPON 

THE PROJECT 

REQUIRING 

SERVICE 

$100,000 PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 

109195. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16456 

14. 

180 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

ENTERPRISE IT 

SERVICES - OFFICE 

OF CIO 

GARTNER, INC. FEE: USER FEES $170,560 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues subscription-based services for the Division of Enterprise Information Technology 

Services' (EITS) professional staff.  This will allow for research of best practices related to cloud-based services, document 

production, mobile application development, enterprise software replacement, network design, and systems strategy.  

Pursuant to NRS 332.195, the vendor has authorized EITS to join the City of Las Vegas's contract with Gartner, Inc.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16381 

15. 

180 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

ENTERPRISE IT 

SERVICES - 

COMPUTER FACILITY 

MENTOR 

SERVICES 

CORPORATION 

FEE: FACILITY FEES $27,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides training in Carson City.  This amendment increases the 

maximum amount from $30,000 to $57,000 due to continued need for training. 

Term of Contract: 11/06/2013 - 03/31/2016 Contract # 14896 

16. 

240 

DEPARTMENT OF 

VETERANS SERVICES 

VETERANS' HOME 

ACCOUNT 

MORRISON 

HEALTHCARE 

SERVICES 

OTHER: PATIENT 

COLLECTIONS, 

CLARK COUNTY 

REIMBURSEMENTS, 

HOSPICE CHARGES 

29% FEDERAL 71%  

$2,500,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides food services for the residents of the Nevada State 

Veterans Home.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $2,500,000 to $5,000,000 for anticipated food 

service costs.   

Term of Contract: 11/13/2012 - 12/01/2016 Contract # 13833 

17. 

300 

DEPARTMENT OF 

EDUCATION - 

ELEMENTARY & 

SECONDARY 

EDUCATION - TITLE I 

BOARD OF 

REGENTS-UNR 

FEDERAL $131,295   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to provide for a comprehensive evaluation of the Nevada Now is the Time-Project Aware 

grant program. This evaluation includes data collection, creation of strategic plans, measurement of progress and focus on the 

overall program objectives. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 09/30/2015 Contract # 16412 



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 4 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

18. 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES - SENIOR 

RX AND DISABILITY 

RX 

FIRST HEALTH 

LIFE AND 

HEALTH 

OTHER: TOBACCO 

FUNDS 

$210,300 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known as Senior 

Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of eligible members 

who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with prescription drug benefits.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 03/09/2019 Contract # 16349 

19. 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES - SENIOR 

RX AND DISABILITY 

RX 

SILVERSCRIPT 

INSURANCE 

COMPANY 

OTHER: TOBACCO 

FUNDS 

$118,600 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known as Senior 

Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of eligible members 

who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with prescription drug benefits.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 03/09/2019 Contract # 16363 

20. 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

AGING AND 

DISABILITY 

SERVICES - SENIOR 

RX AND DISABILITY 

RX 

WELLCARE 

PRESCRIPTION 

INSURANCE 

OTHER: TOBACCO 

FUNDS 

$175,400 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known as Senior 

Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of eligible members 

who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with prescription drug benefits.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 03/09/2019 Contract # 16326 

21. 

403 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

HEALTH CARE 

FINANCING AND 

POLICY - 

ADMINISTRATION 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION 

HEARINGS AND 

APPEALS  

GENERAL 50% 

FEDERAL 50%  

$77,058   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing services ensuring those entitled are 

afforded the right to an appeals process when refused Medicaid benefits. This amendment extends the termination date from 

June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount from $41,162 to $118,220 due to an increased volume of 

hearings and for the extended termination date. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 14079 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 5 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

22. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH  - SOUTHERN 

NEVADA ADULT 

MENTAL HEALTH 

SERVICES 

SOLUTIONS 

RECOVERY, INC. 

GENERAL $3,571,200   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract which continues ongoing residential services to include a forty bed group home environment, and 

training in daily living skills for clients who have been diagnosed with co-occurring disorders. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 03/31/2017 Contract # 16440 

23. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH  - SOUTHERN 

NEVADA ADULT 

MENTAL HEALTH 

SERVICES 

ZIRMED, INC. GENERAL $128,852   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract which provides claims processing services in conjunction with online 

claims management processing systems. This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to September 10, 

2016 and increases the maximum amount from $39,062 to $167,913.50 due to an increased volume of claims. This 

amendment also adds the following budget accounts: Behavioral Health Administration (B/A 3168), Northern Nevada Adult 

Mental Health Services (B/A 3162), Southern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services (B/A 3161), and Rural Community 

Health Clinics (B/A 3648). 

Term of Contract: 09/11/2012 - 09/10/2016 Contract # 13703 

24. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH  - 

NORTHERN NEVADA 

ADULT MENTAL 

HEALTH SERVICES 

NORTHERN 

NEVADA CHILD 

AND 

ADOLESCENT 

SERVICES 

OTHER: RENTAL 

INCOME 

$184,116   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement that continues ongoing rental space to Northern Nevada Child and Adolescent 

Services for their residential consumers located in two buildings on the Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services 

campus. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16398 

25. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - 

IMMUNIZATION 

PROGRAM 

ENVISION 

TECHNOLOGY 

PARTNERS, INC. 

FEDERAL $123,078 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing services to upgrade and maintain the state's 

Immunization Registry (Nevada WebIZ) application, enhance certain reporting elements, data collection, retrieval, and 

external database interface features. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $422,900 to $545,978 to fund 

new cloud-based hosting and web-environment management activities.  

Term of Contract: 08/14/2012 - 12/31/2015 Contract # 13594 



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 6 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

26. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH  - CHRONIC 

DISEASE 

ACCESS TO 

HEALTHCARE 

NETWORK 

FEDERAL $7,200,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing management services for the division's Women's Health Connection program 

for determination of client eligibility and referral including provider network; training; marketing; contract management; 

screening and diagnostic services; case management services; treatment services; data collection; and fiscal management. 

Term of Contract: 06/30/2015 - 06/30/2019 Contract # 16383 

27. 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES 

PUBLIC AND 

BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH - RURAL 

CLINICS 

BOARD OF 

REGENTS-NSHE 

OBO UNR 

GENERAL $20,000 EXEMPT 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing implementation of a statewide 

network of telemedicine/tele-psychiatry services to increase access to care in the rural areas on behalf of individuals with 

mental and co-occurring substance abuse disorders. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $49,900 to 

$69,900 due to an increased volume of services. 

Term of Contract: 08/01/2014 - 06/30/2015 Contract # 16244 

28. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

ADMINISTRATION 

CIT FINANCE, LLC 

DBA AVAYA 

FINANCIAL 

SERVICES 

GENERAL 30% 

FEDERAL 70%  

$71,073   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original lease to provide financing for equipment required to upgrade the Division of 

Welfare and Supportive Services telephone system. This amendment increases the amount from $2,095,604.19 to 

$2,166,676.77 to incorporate schedule number 0030 to lease number x263772 for telecommunication equipment located at 

the Durango Office. 

Term of Contract: 07/08/2014 - 09/30/2019 Contract # 15804 

29. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

FIELD SERVICES 

BERES, GINNIE 

DBA 

ROADRUNNER 

JANITORIAL 

SERVICE 

GENERAL 33% 

FEDERAL 67%  

$4,400   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing janitorial services for the Division of 

Welfare and Supportive Services Pahrump District Office. This amendment revises the consideration language, increases the 

maximum amount from $47,940 to $52,340, and provides retroactive approval for a rate increase of $110 per month for 

additional janitorial services for 1,500 square feet beginning March 1, 2015. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2014 - 06/30/2018 Contract # 15607 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 7 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

30. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

CHILD SUPPORT 

FEDERAL 

REIMBURSEMENT 

CLARK COUNTY OTHER: COUNTY 

SHARE 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$70,500,834   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of 

Welfare and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires counties to 

provide child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under this contract the county 

District Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing federal Title IV-D services for 

local, intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This amendment extends the termination date of the 

agreement from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language, and increases the maximum amount from 

$97,244,238 to $167,745,072 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 12930 

31. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

CHILD SUPPORT 

FEDERAL 

REIMBURSEMENT 

DOUGLAS 

COUNTY 

OTHER: COUNTY 

SHARE 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$1,239,098   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of Welfare 

and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires counties to provide 

child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under this contract the county District 

Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing federal Title IV-D services for local, 

intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 

2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language, and increases the maximum amount of the agreement from 

$1,655,945 to $2,895,043 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 12946 

32. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

CHILD SUPPORT 

FEDERAL 

REIMBURSEMENT 

MINERAL 

COUNTY 

OTHER: COUNTY 

SHARE 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$342,837   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of Welfare 

and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires counties to provide 

child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under this contract the county District 

Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing federal Title IV-D services for local, 

intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This amendment extends the termination date of the 

agreement from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language, and increases the maximum amount from 

$454,978 to $797,815 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 12961 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 8 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

33. 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND 

HUMAN SERVICES - 

WELFARE AND 

SUPPORT SERVICES - 

CHILD SUPPORT 

FEDERAL 

REIMBURSEMENT 

WASHOE 

COUNTY 

OTHER: COUNTY 

SHARE 34% 

FEDERAL 66%  

$9,865,873   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of Welfare 

and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires counties to provide 

child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under this contract the county District 

Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing federal Title IV-D services for local, 

intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 

2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language, and increases the maximum amount from $13,212,506 to 

$23,078,379 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 13009 

34. 

431 

ADJUTANT GENERAL 

AND NATIONAL 

GUARD - MILITARY 

NDI PLUMBING, 

INC. 

GENERAL 10% 

OTHER: RENTAL 

INCOME 10% 

FEDERAL 80%  

$48,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides plumbing services on an as needed basis at Office of the 

Military locations in Northern Nevada.  The scope of work for plumbing services could range from replacing/installing sink 

faucets to repairing major sewer lines, as well as drain, waste and venting issues. The amendment extends the termination 

date from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount of the contract from $48,000 to $96,000 due to 

the continued need for these services.  

Term of Contract: 08/16/2013 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 14816 

35. 

431 

ADJUTANT GENERAL 

AND NATIONAL 

GUARD - All Budget 

Accounts 

ABC FIRE AND 

CYLINDER 

SERVICE 

GENERAL 50% 

FEDERAL 50%  

$99,900   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide statewide fire extinguisher service, repair, inspections and maintenance to the agency's fire 

extinguishers. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 04/14/2019 Contract # 16405 

36. 

655 

DEPARTMENT OF 

PUBLIC SAFETY - 

CRIMINAL HISTORY 

REPOSITORY 

DATAWORKS 

PLUS, LLC 

FEE: ADMIN FEES $151,096   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing software and hardware support for the General Services Division's National 

Institute of Standards and Technology System, which accepts records for further forwarding to the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 03/31/2019 Contract # 16368 

37. 

702 
DEPARTMENT OF 

WILDLIFE - WILDLIFE 

CIP-Non-Exec 

CH SPENCER & 

COMPANY 

BONDS $55,307   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to disassemble, tear down, and repair three pumps at the Gallagher Fish Hatchery for Brood Canopy 

Fish.  

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 12/01/2015 Contract # 16428 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 9 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

38. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

WILDLAND FIRE 

PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

DOUGLAS 

COUNTY  

OTHER: FIRE 

PROTECTION 

DISTRICT FUNDS 

$120,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services as under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In 

accordance with this agreement, the division and district will work closely to maintain effective wildfire management 

regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16413 

39. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

WILDLAND FIRE 

PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

EUREKA COUNTY OTHER: EUREKA 

COUNTY FUNDS 

$300,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In 

accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely to maintain effective wildfire management 

regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16417 

40. 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

FORESTRY - 

WILDLAND FIRE 

PREVENTION 

PROGRAM  

LANDER COUNTY OTHER: LANDER 

COUNTY FUNDS 

$300,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In 

accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely to maintain effective wildfire management 

regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 - 06/30/2017 Contract # 16420 

41. 

709 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION & 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION - 

WASTE 

MANAGEMENT AND 

CORRECTIVE ACTION 

MCGINLEY & 

ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FEE: HAZERDOUS 

WASTE FEES 43% 

OTHER: INTERIM 

FLUID 

MANAGEMENT 

TRUST 50% 

FEDERAL 7%  

$350,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides environmental mitigation, assessment, and remediation 

services on an as needed basis.  This amendment extends the termination date from December 30, 2018 to December 30, 

2019 and increases the maximum amount from $4,500,000 to $4,850,000 due to additional funding being made available to 

support the Abandoned Mine Site Program activities. 

Term of Contract: 01/01/2015 - 12/30/2019 Contract # 16121 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 10 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

42. 

709 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION & 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES - 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION - 

WASTE 

MANAGEMENT AND 

FEDERAL FACILITIES 

WINDSOR 

SOLUTIONS, INC. 

FEDERAL $337,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides technical support for the National Environmental 

Exchange Network.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $675,000 to $1,012,000 to expand the scope of 

work to include the modernization of water quality databases. The modernization is expected to significantly reduce staff 

time, as one consolidated web interface will be provided to staff eliminating the need for staff to work directly with the 

individual outdated Microsoft Access databases.   

Term of Contract: 10/11/2011 - 09/30/2016 Contract # 12639 

43. 

810 
DEPARTMENT OF 

MOTOR VEHICLES - 

MOTOR CARRIER 

XEROX STATE & 

LOCAL 

SOLUTIONS, INC. 

HIGHWAY $222,408 SOLE SOURCE 

Contract 

Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which provides the standardized services and systems support relating to 

commercial vehicle licensing and tax administration for the Motor Carrier Division operations.  This amendment extends the 

termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $1,330,626.24 to 

$1,553,034.60 utilizing the first of five single year renewal options. 

Term of Contract: 10/13/2009 - 06/30/2016 Contract # 10603 

44. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

HEALTHSCOPE 

BENEFITS, INC. 

OTHER: 33% 

PREMIUM 

REVENUE 67% 

STATE SUBSIDY 

$1,912,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides dental claims administration.  This amendment extends 

the termination date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020 and increases the maximum amount from $2,812,000 to $4,724,000 

due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/09/2013 - 06/30/2020 Contract # 14574 

45. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

HEALTHSCOPE 

BENEFITS, INC. 

OTHER: 33% 

PREMIUM 

REVENUE 67% 

STATE SUBSIDY 

$3,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides a medical Preferred Provider Organization network for 

PEBP participants who reside outside of Nevada and for those who live in Nevada but choose to seek medical services out-

of-state.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2020 and increases the maximum 

amount from $8,900,000 to $11,900,000 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2012 - 06/30/2020 Contract # 13330 

46. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

HEALTHSCOPE 

BENEFITS, INC. 

OTHER: 33% 

PREMIUM 

REVENUE 67% 

STATE SUBSIDY 

$16,600,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides Third Party Administrator services to the PEBP plan.  

This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2020 and increases the maximum amount from 

$29,500,000 to $46,100,000 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 02/08/2011 - 06/30/2020 Contract # 11825 

  



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 2 Page 11 

 

BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR EMPLOYEES 

47. 

950 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' 

BENEFITS PROGRAM 

HOMETOWN 

HEALTH PLAN, 

INC. 

OTHER: 33% 

PREMIUM 

REVENUE 67% 

STATE SUBSIDY 

$25,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides a Health Maintenance Organization for Northern 

Nevada participants of the PEBP program.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $247,200,000 to 

$272,200,000 due to the continued need for these services.   

Term of Contract: 07/01/2011 - 06/30/2015 Contract # 11994 

48. 

B011 
NEVADA STATE 

CONTRACTORS 

BOARD 

G L SUITE, INC. FEE: LICENSE FEES 

PAID BY 

CONTRACTORS 

$850,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to replace the existing licensing, enforcement, and cash management system, which has reached the 

end of its useful life.  The replacement system will integrate the Board's licensing, enforcement, and accounting functions; 

provide detailed enforcement case management, detailed application processes and contractor license maintenance; online 

services; cash management; and document imaging capabilities. 

Term of Contract: 04/14/2015 - 10/31/2016 Contract # 16388 

 



 

Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 3 Page 1 

 

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

 
BOE 

# 

DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS 

FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

MSA 

1. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

AMERICAN SEATING 

COMPANY 

OTHER: 

VARIOUS 

$2,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

The purpose of this contract is to establish a Participating Addendum for the Western States Contracting Alliance-National 

Association of State Purchasing Officers contract for educational furniture led by the State of Utah.  This Participating 

Addendum is for general educational furniture, residential furniture, cafeteria furniture and lecture hall/auditorium furniture. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/13/2019 Contract # 16337 

MSA 

2. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

AMTAB 

MANUFACTURING 

CORPORATION 

OTHER: 

VARIOUS 

$2,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

The purpose of this contract is to establish a Participating Addendum with the Western States Contract Alliance-National 

Association of State Purchasing Officers contract for educational furniture led by the State of Utah. This Participating 

Addendum is for general educational furniture, residential furniture, cafeteria furniture and lecture hall/auditorium furniture. 

Term of Contract: Upon Approval - 06/13/2019 Contract # 16338 

MSA 

3. 

MSA 
VARIOUS STATE 

AGENCIES 

WESTERN STATES 

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM 

GAS CO. 

OTHER: 

VARIOUS 

$5,000,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for bulk fuel and delivery services statewide, on an as-needed basis for state-owned tanks. 

Term of Contract: 04/14/2015 - 01/31/2016 Contract # 16376 

 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 1 

 

INFORMATION CONTRACTS 

   

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

1 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

PREMIER 

JANITORIAL 

MANAGEMENT 

FEES: 

BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$11,727   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services to the Blasdel Building located at 209 East Musser Street, 

Carson City, Nevada. 

Term of Contract: 02/19/2015 – 08/07/2015 Contract # 16366 

2 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

PIERROTT, ANA L 

DBA ENTERPRISE 

JANITORIAL 

SERVICES 

FEES: 

BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$10,507   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services to the Bryan Building located at 901 S. Stewart Street, 

Carson City, Nevada. 

Term of Contract:  02/19/2015 – 07/31/2015 Contract # 16367 

3 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

GFDS NV 1, LLC GENERAL $25,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional engineering services for the feasibility study and potential design, financing, 

construction and management of Government Facilities; Project No. 13-S04; SPWD Contract No. 109178.  Specifically, the 

project will address the needs for three new office buildings approximately 360,000 square feet in size with an estimated two-

thirds located in Carson City and one-third of the square footage located in Las Vegas. The scope of work includes a strategic 

analysis to facilitate implementation of the Master Plan; consideration of existing Nevada lease rates and terms along with an 

analysis of Nevada's programming needs for the Department of Health and Human Services and Nevada Department of 

Business and Industry; and documentation of the underlying assumptions used in all calculations and a preliminary analysis 

of Nevada's immediate facility needs. 

Term of Contract: 03/02/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16380 

4 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

WATERS SEPTIC 

TANK SERVICE DBA 

WATERS VACUUM 

TRUCK SERVICE 

FEES: 

BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$25,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for the ongoing provision of plumbing and sewer lines, hydro flushing, video inspection and vacuum 

truck services on an as needed basis and at the request and approval of a Buildings and Grounds designee. 

Term of Contract:  08/01/2015 – 07/31/2019 Contract # 16389 

5 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

VALLEY CONCRETE 

CO, INC. 

FEES: 

BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$45,000    

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for concrete work, replacement, and repairs as requested and approved by Buildings and 

Grounds designee. 

Term of Contract:  03/19/2015 – 03/31/2019 Contract # 16411 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 2 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

6 

 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

FARR WEST 

ENGINEERING DBA 

FARR WEST 

CHILTON 

ENGINEERING 

OTHER: 

AGENCY 

FUNDED CIP - 

OPERATING 

UTILITIES PASS 

THROUGH 

REVENUE 

$16,800   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract, which provides miscellaneous services for field inspection services for air box and air release 

improvements at the Marlette Lake Water System; Project No. 15-026; SPWD Contract No. 109233. The scope of work 

includes full-time field inspection (3 weeks) during the air-box reconstruction and air release valve installations. The 

anticipated construction period is estimated at five weeks with the first week dedicated to mobilization and the last week for 

site cleanup, punch list items and demobilization. 

Term of Contract: 03/10/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16422 

7 

082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

SILVER STATE 

GLASS & MIRROR 

CO., INC. DBA 

SILVER STATE 

GLASS 

FEES: 

BUILDINGS & 

GROUNDS RENT 

INCOME FEES 

$30,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing repair and maintenance of glass and mirrors for various state-owned buildings 

at the written request and approval of a Buildings and Grounds designee. 

Term of Contract:  03/19/2015 – 03/31/2019 Contract # 16429 

8 
 082 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

DOUGLAS CO 

COMMUNITY 

SERVICES/PARKS 

AND RECREATION - 

WEED CONTROL 

FEES: 

OPERATING 

UTILITIES PASS-

THRU 

REVENUES 

$22,204   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing weed control to Marlette and Hobart Dam and yard.  

Term of Contract:  03/19/2015 – 12/31/2018 Contract # 16442 

 9 

082  

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

PUBLIC WORKS 

DIVISION 

FARR WEST 

ENGINEERING DBA 

FARR WEST 

CHILTON 

ENGINEERING 

BONDS $10,880   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Stewart Indian Colony intertie 

backflow preventer; Project No. 09-M02a; SPWD Contract No. 109264.  The scope of work includes providing design plans 

and technical specifications for an intertie backflow preventer, field verification of the property boundary, ensuring all design 

improvements are within State Lands property and survey locations of the existing pipe.  The scope of work also includes 

providing engineering and construction management services during construction of the improvements and providing 

construction surveying.  

Term of Contract:  03/20/2015 – 06/30/2019 Contract # 16479 

10  

101 

DEPARTMENT OF 

TOURISM AND 

CULTURAL AFFAIRS – 

COMMISSION ON 

TOURISM – TOURISM 

DEVELOPMENT 

CARSON VALLEY 

VISITORS 

AUTHORITY 

OTHER: 

LODGING TAX 

$32,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide facilities services (accommodations, food and beverage, convention center space, etc.) for 

the 2015 Rural Roundup Conference to be held in Gardnerville, Nevada April 15 - 17, 2015.   

Term of Contract:  03/09/2015 – 04/17/2015 Contract # 16414 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 3 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

 11 

180 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

ENTERPRISE IT 

SERVICES 

RENO TAHOE 

FRANCHISING, INC. 

DBA JANI KING OF 

RENO 

FEES $16,410   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing janitorial services for the Enterprise 

Information Technology Services Computer Facility.  The amendment increases the maximum amount from $100,000 to 

$116,410 due to the addition of carpet and floor cleaning. 

Term of Contract: 12/01/2013 – 11/30/2017  Contract # 14982 

 12 

180 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION – 

ENTERPRISE IT 

SERVICES 

SOLUTIONS II, INC. FEES: 

ALLOCATION  

$18,489   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide professional services to support the physical move/relocation of State of Nevada, 

Department of Public Safety's production Spillman Technologies and IBM hardware from the Wright Way facility to the 

Enterprise Information Technology Services Facility in Carson City. 

Term of Contract:  03/12/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16406 

13 

240 
DEPARTMENT OF 

VETERANS SERVICES 

PYRO COMBUSTION 

& CONTROLS, INC. 

OTHER: 50% 

PRIVATE FUNDS 

FEDERAL 50% 

$10,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide boiler maintenance and annual cleaning for the boilers at the Nevada State Veterans Home.  

This is a 2-year contract with an option for an additional 2 years. 

Term of Contract: 03/06/2015 – 01/31/2017 Contract # 16351 

14 

335 

DEPARTMENT OF 

ADMINISTRATION - 

NEVADA STATE 

LIBRARY AND 

ARCHIVES 

LAS VEGAS 

PRESORT, LLC 

OTHER: 

CONTRACTOR 

TO RECEIVE 

REBATE FROM 

THE UNITED 

STATES POST 

OFFICE 

$14,400   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing First Class Presort/Prebarcode Mail Services for 

all mail not presorted within the Nevada State Mail System and any other agencies or political subdivision that may require 

this service. This amendment increases the maximum amount by $14,400 from $9,900 to $24,300 to support contract through 

December 31, 2016. 

Term of Contract: 01/01/2013 – 12/31/2016 Contract # 13915 

15  

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – AGING 

AND DISABILITY 

SERVICES  

FINGERPRINTING 

PROS., INC. 

GENERAL 22% 

FEDERAL 78% 

$5,001   

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing fingerprint services to grant program 

volunteers. This amendment extends the termination date from May 31, 2015 to May 22, 2016 and increases the maximum 

amount from $9,999 to $15,000 due to the continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract:  05/23/2012 – 05/22/2016 Contract # 13452 

 16 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – AGING 

AND DISABILITY 

SERVICES  

ANTHEM 

INSURANCE 

COMPANIES, INC.  

OTHER: 

TOBACCO 

FUNDS 

$24,500   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known as Senior 

Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of eligible members 

who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with prescription drug benefits. 

Term of Contract: 02/26/2015 – 03/09/2019  Contract # 16322 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 4 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

 17 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – AGING 

AND DISABILITY 

SERVICES  

QBS, INC. GENERAL: 53% 

FEDERAL: 47% 

$23,900   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide training and certification for campus staff members in advanced skills for use in working 

with individuals who may exhibit self-injurious or violent behaviors.  The contract includes annual recertification of the 

Safety-Care Core Curriculum, High Severity Behavior 1 and High Severity Behavior 2 training and funding for additional 

training on an as needed basis. 

Term of Contract:  03/10/2015 – 02/28/2017 Contract # 16364 

18 

402 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – AGING 

AND DISABILITY 

SERVICES  

HUMBOLDT COUNTY OTHER: 

REVENUE FROM 

COUNTY 

$15,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal revenue contract that continues ongoing service to children with developmental disabilities and 

provides structure for county reimbursement of the non-federal share of funding as payment for services. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017 Contract # 16382 

19 

406 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – PUBLIC 

AND BEHAVIORAL 

HEALTH 

IA LLC, DBA 

INNOVATIVE 

ARCHITECTS, LLC 

OTHER: 

DIVISION COST 

ALLOCATION 

$19,500  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide a public facing website that would make available administrative forms of the Division of 

Public and Behavioral Health in a format which allows forms to be completed, downloaded, saved electronically and 

submitted securely to the division via the internet pursuant to NRS 237.360. 

Term of Contract: 03/18/2015 – 06/30/2015  Contract # 16362 

20 

407 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – WELFARE 

AND SUPPORT 

SERVICES 

DEPT OF BUSINESS & 

INDUSTRY - 

HOUSING DIVISION 

FEDERAL $24,206  

Contract 

Description: 

This is the fifth amendment to the interlocal agreement to provide Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) with 5% of the 

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program Block Grant funds to help fund WAP for low income families. WAP 

encourages and enables households to reduce their home energy needs by providing for various energy conservation 

measures, which decreases the need for energy assistance. This amendment increases the maximum amount from 

$2,054,771.70 to $2,078,977.20 due to the release of FFY15 grant funds under the federal 2015 Consolidated Appropriations 

Act. 

Term of Contract: 10/01/2012 – 09/30/2016  Contract # 13619 

21 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – CHILD 

AND FAMILY 

SERVICES 

DALLAS FLOOR 

DESIGNS, LLC 

GENERAL $31,904  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide new floor covering in the four Family Learning Homes located at Northern Nevada Child 

and Adolescent Services at 2655 Enterprise Road in Reno. 

Term of Contract: 03/10/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16385 

22 
409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – CHILD 

AND FAMILY 

SERVICES 

LABEEG BUILDING 

SERVICES, INC. 

GENERAL: 84% 

FEDERAL: 16% 

$32,195  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services to the child welfare rural region office located in Fernley. 

Term of Contract: 03/01/2015 – 02/28/2019  Contract # 16386 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 5 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

 23 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – CHILD 

AND FAMILY 

SERVICES 

LEGACY PAINTING, 

LLC 

GENERAL $47,342   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide painting services at three state-owned buildings housed by Northern Nevada Child and 

Adolescent Services located at 2655 Enterprise Road in Reno. 

Term of Contract:  03/11/2015 – 06/30/2015 Contract # 16401 

24 

409 

DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH AND HUMAN 

SERVICES – CHILD 

AND FAMILY 

SERVICES 

NETSMART 

TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 

GENERAL: 50% 

FEDERAL: 50% 

$25,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide information technology services to transition the Avatar system to use the International 

Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems version 10 (ICD-10) and the Diagnostic and Statistical 

Manual of Mental Disorders version 5 (DSM-5) for diagnostic and procedural coding. 

Term of Contract: 03/11/2015 – 12/31/2015 Contract # 16408 

25 

431 
ADJUTANT GENERAL 

AND NATIONAL 

GUARD 

D&J HOLDINGS LLC 

&/OR MCGINLEY & 

ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FEDERAL $15,480  

Contract 

Description: 

This is the second amendment to the original contract, which performs an environmental soil and groundwater sampling to 

verify the presence of contamination at the Nevada Army National Guard Army Aviation Support Facility in Reno, Nevada. 

This amendment extends the termination date from November 30 2015 to November 30, 2016 and the maximum contract 

amount from $18,333.24 to $33,813.24. This is a required additional design scope of Work Plan Preparation, four 

Groundwater samplings, and four Quarterly Reports requested by the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection due to 

the presence of PCE (Tetrachloroethylene) found in samplings obtained with this contract. 

Term of Contract: 08/13/2014 – 11/30/2016 Contract # 15986 

26 

440 
DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS 

BOARD OF REGENTS-

CSN 

FEDERAL $37,500  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal contract to provide pre-vocational computer literacy/basic computer skills training classes to females 

incarcerated at Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center and will reside in select Southern Nevada counties (Clark, 

Esmeralda, Nye and Lincoln) upon release.  Offenders will learn the basics of how computers operate and how computer 

operating systems work. 

Term of Contract: 02/26/2015 – 09/30/2015  Contract # 16284 

27 

440 
DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS 

BOARD OF REGENTS-

CSN 

FEDERAL $30,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal contract to provide pre-vocational employment related soft skills training classes to females 

incarcerated at Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center and will reside in select Southern Nevada counties (Clark, 

Esmeralda, Nye and Lincoln) upon release.  Offenders will learn the basics on how to search and apply for employment. 

Term of Contract: 02/26/2015 – 09/30/2015  Contract # 16285 

28 

440 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS 

MGT OF AMERICA, 

INC. DBA PUBLIC 

RESOURCE 

MANAGEMENT 

GROUP 

FEDERAL $10,600  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide for the development of an updated Indirect Cost Rate Proposal for the BLM Grant for 

Prison Industries Wild Horse Program. 

Term of Contract: 03/20/2015 – 06/30/2015  Contract # 16390 

 29 

550 
DEPARTMENT OF 

AGRICULTURE 

RESOURCE 

CONCEPTS, INC. 

FEES: PESTICIDE 

REGISTRATION 

FEES 

$20,000   

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to analyze the data collected by the department for the 2001 Nevada Grazing Statistics Report and 

Economic Analysis Report and determine if current data can be used with that data to produce two reports.  One report will 

detail recent grazing trends and the subsequent impacts on rural Nevada.  The second report will be a summary of the first 

that can be put in a publishable format. 

Term of Contract:  03/20/2015 – 04/30/2015 Contract # 16461 



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 6 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

30 

700 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES 

BOARD OF REGENTS-

UNLV 

OTHER: Q1 

BONDS 

$47,187  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal contract with University of Las Vegas, School of Architecture to provide a manufactured ticket booth 

and install it at Lake Tahoe Nevada State Park. 

Term of Contract: 02/17/2015 – 09/30/2015 Contract # 16356 

31 

702 

DEPARTMENT OF 

WILDLIFE 

WASHINGTON STATE 

UNIVERSITY 

FEDERAL: 75% 

OTHER: 

SPORTSMEN 

REVENUE 25% 

$19,500  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal contract to provide testing services for wildlife diseases and other wildlife health factors. Areas of 

testing may include bacteriology, mycology, immunology, parasitology, and nutrition. Ongoing evaluation of Nevada 

wildlife health and disease will allow the Department to respond to changes in health, such as emerging infectious diseases, 

that could impact human health, livestock, as well as the viability of our wildlife populations. 

Term of Contract: 03/05/2015 – 01/31/2019  Contract # 16396 

32 

702 
DEPARTMENT OF 

WILDLIFE 

SAM SANDERS 

HUMBOLDT 

WILDLIFE, LLC 

FEES: 

PREDATOR FEES 

$15,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract for services to search for coyote dens in the Monitor Mountains.  The searches will provide 

information for predation work. 

Term of Contract: 03/18/2015 – 06/01/2015 Contract # 16431 

33 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES – 

FORESTRY DIVISION 

VOGUE LAUNDRY & 

CLEANING, INC. 

VOGUE LINEN 

UNIFORM RENT 

GENERAL $12,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide ongoing linen and laundry service for the division’s Elko office and mechanics shop as well 

as the Ely Conservation Camp's mechanics shop. 

Term of Contract: 02/27/2015 – 01/31/2019 Contract # 16352 

34 

706 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES – 

FORESTRY DIVISION 

LYON COUNTY OTHER: FIRE 

PROTECTION 

DISTRICT 

FUNDS 

$15,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In accordance 

with this agreement, the division and district will work closely to maintain effective wildfire management regardless of 

jurisdiction and/or ownership. 

Term of Contract: 07/01/2015 – 06/30/2017  Contract # 16421 

35 

707 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES – STATE 

LANDS 

GREAT BASIN 

INSTITUTE 

OTHER: Q1 

BONDS 

$49,999  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract to provide two seasons of field surveys relating to the Northern Goshawk and Spotted Owl. Both of 

these raptor species occur in the Lake Tahoe Basin, yet there are no known active nests within the Nevada portion of Lake 

Tahoe. These surveys will help wildlife officials document existing nests. Work will consist of broadcast surveys and stand 

searches for both species across an extensive area of the Carson Range for two seasons, which is the minimum timeline 

recommended to confidently declare that each species is absent from the survey area. The majority of the survey effort will 

focus on the Northern Goshawk, which is considered a sensitive species by Nevada Department of Wildlife, U.S. Forest 

Service, and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Spotted Owl work will be interspersed throughout each field season. Other 

activities to be completed under this contract include habitat evaluation and mapping of survey sites and aspen stands. 

Term of Contract: 03/18/2015 – 10/31/2016 Contract # 16426 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 7 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

36 

709 

DEPARTMENT OF 

CONSERVATION AND 

NATURAL 

RESOURCES – 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION 

DIVISION 

NORTHWEST 

HYDRAULIC 

CONSULTANTS 

FEDERAL $45,777  

Contract 

Description: 

This the second amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing services to create an improved suite of storm 

water tools that Lake Tahoe urban jurisdictions will use to plan, track and report actions implemented to reduce pollutant 

loads to meet the Lake Tahoe Maximum Daily Load.   This amendment increases the maximum amount from $520,601 to 

$566,378 to develop a Credit Accounting Platform user's manual that incorporates the Road and Best Management Practices 

Rapid Assessment Methodologies and Pollutant Load Reduction Model.  Additionally, forms and technical approaches for 

inspection, credit declaration, and credit reporting will be streamlined and improved.   

Term of Contract: 03/12/2013 – 09/30/2015  Contract # 14042 

37 

901 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION - 

REHABILITATION 

DIVISION 

BUILDING 

SOLUTIONS, INC. 

OTHER: 

BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE 

SET ASIDE 

$20,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing, as needed handyman services for Business Enterprises of Nevada facilities in 

Northern Nevada.  Work includes, but is not limited to, janitorial, carpentry, interior and drywall repair, painting, carpet and 

tile repair/removal, etc. 

Term of Contract: 03/02/2015 – 09/30/2017 Contract # 16297 

38 

901 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION - 

REHABILITATION 

DIVISION 

RONS 

REFRIGERATION, 

INC. 

OTHER: 

BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE 

SET ASIDE 

$45,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing maintenance and repair services for commercial refrigeration units for Business 

Enterprises of Nevada program facilities in Northern Nevada.  The Vendor also agrees to relocate/move equipment as 

needed.   

Term of Contract: 03/02/2015 – 03/31/2019 Contract # 16360 

39 

902 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION – 

EMPLOYMENT 

SECURITY DIVISION 

EMCOR SERVICES 

DBA MESA ENERGY 

SYSTEMS 

FEDERAL: 69% 

OTHER: BEN, 

ESD SPECIAL 

FUND AND 

CAREER 

ENHANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 29.1% 

GENERAL: 1.9% 

$10,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing HVAC services for the facilities in Las Vegas, 

Nevada on an as needed basis. This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 4, 2017 and 

increases the maximum amount from $69,500 to $79,500 due to continued need for these services. 

Term of Contract: 06/05/2013 -  06/04/2017 Contract # 14483 

  



Board of Examiners’ Meeting 
April 14, 2015 
EXHIBIT 4 Page 8 

 

# 
DEPT 

# 
STATE AGENCY CONTRACTOR 

FUNDING 

SOURCE 
AMOUNT 

EXCEPTIONS FOR 

SOLICITATIONS 

AND/OR 

EMPLOYEES 

40 

908 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION – 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SERVICES 

WESTERNAIRE 

MECHANICAL 

SERVICES, INC. 

FEDERAL: 69% 

OTHER: BEN, 

ESD SPECIAL 

FUND AND 

CAREER 

ENHANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 29.1% 

GENERAL: 1.9% 

$19,500  

Contract 

Description: 

This is the third amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing HVAC repair and maintenance for the facilities 

in the Reno, Sparks, Carson City and Fallon, Nevada areas. This amendment extends the termination date from May 31. 2015 

to April 8, 2017, updates the rate of pay and increases the maximum amount from $28,500 to $48,500 due to continued need 

for these services. 

Term of Contract: 03/05/2015 – 04/28/2017  Contract # 14195 

41 

908 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION – 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SERVICES 

AMERICAN SIGN 

LANGUAGE 

COMMUNICATION 

FEDERAL: 69% 

OTHER: BEN, 

ESD SPECIAL 

FUND AND 

CAREER 

ENHANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 29.1% 

GENERAL: 1.9% 

$40,000  

Contract 

Description: 

This is the first amendment to the original Contract, which continues ongoing American Sign Language interpreting services 

for the personnel needs in the Las Vegas area, on an as needed basis. These services may be needed for clients, employees, 

board members, council members, or consumers who are deaf or hearing impaired for meetings, conferences, or other 

occasions. This amendment extends the termination date from September 30, 2015 to September 15, 2017 and increases the 

maximum amount from $9,500 to $49,500 due to the inclusion of anticipated Vocational Rehabilitation Clientele needs.   

Term of Contract: 09/16/2013 – 09/15/2017 Contract # 14840 

42 

908 

DEPARTMENT 

EMPLOYMENT, 

TRAINING AND 

REHABILITATION – 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

SERVICES 

FAAD JANITORIAL, 

INC. 

FEDERAL: 69% 

OTHER: BEN, 

ESD SPECIAL 

FUND AND 

CAREER 

ENHANCEMENT 

PROGRAM 29.1% 

GENERAL: 1.9% 

$15,903  

Contract 

Description: 

This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services at the owned facility, located at 420 Galletti Way, Sparks, 

NV. 

Term of Contract: 03/01/2015 – 02/28/2017 Contract # 16359 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 1 
April 14, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

DETAILED AGENDA 
April 14, 2015 

 

 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 

 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 10, 2015 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

   *3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF A CRITICAL LABOR 

SHORTAGE 

 Pursuant to NRS 286.523, it is the policy of this State to ensure that the reemployment of a 

retired public employee pursuant to this section is limited to positions of extreme need. An 

employer who desires to employ such a retired public employee to fill a position for which there 

is a critical labor shortage must make the determination of reemployment based upon the 

appropriate and necessary delivery of services to the public. 

 

A. Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP) 

 

The PEBP requests the reemployment of a retired public employee as the Interim Executive 

Officer.  The Interim Executive Officer serves while the PEBP Board conducts the search for a 

permanent replacement. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – SALARY ADJUSTMENT 
 

The 2013 Legislative Session made appropriations from the General Fund and the Highway Fund 

to the Board of Examiners to meet certain salary deficiencies for fiscal year 2015 that might be 

created between the appropriated money of the respective departments, commissions, and 

agencies and the actual cost of the personnel of those departments, commissions, and agencies 

that are necessary to pay for salaries.  Under this legislation, the following amounts from the 

General Fund and/or Highway Fund are requested: 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 2 
April 14, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

 

 

BA# 

 

BUDGET ACCOUNT NAME 

GENERAL 

FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

HWY FUND 

ADJUSTMENT 

4744 Department of Motor Vehicles  $31,345 

 Total  $31,345 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 

officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 
 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Department of Administration – Fleet Services Division 2 $43,625 

Department of Business and Industry – Industrial 

Relations Division – Occupational Safety and Health 

Enforcement 1 $24,285 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Water Quality 

Planning 1 $27,191 

Total 4 $95,101 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES 

 

Five statewide leases were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 
 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS 
 

Fourty-eight independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 3 
April 14, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

Three independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 

 

9.    CONTRACTS APPROVED BY THE CLERK OF THE BOARD (Attached as 

Exhibit 4) – INFORMATION ITEM 
 

Pursuant to NRS 333.700, the Clerk of the Board may approve all contract transactions for 

amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 meeting of the Board of 

Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all approvals applicable to 

the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable approvals for contracts 

and amendments approved from February 13, 2015 through March 23, 2015. 

 

Fourty-two independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review. 

 

Comments: 

 

10. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – Division of 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Water Management and Corrective 

Action 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the termination date on the contract between the Division 

of Environmental Protection and Broadbent and Associates, Inc. (Contract #16117). The 

termination date for the original contract that posted on the November 12, 2014 Board of 

Examiners agenda was December 30, 2018; however, the accurate date of December 30, 2019 

was indicated on the signed contract.   

 

Comments: 

 

B. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Child and Family 

Services – Nevada Youth Training Center 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the contract value between the Division of Child and 

Family Services and Jill Leslie Oswalt, MD (Contract #14352).  The contract amount posted on 

the June 11, 2013 Board of Examiners agenda was a subtotal of $143,550; however, the total 

amount of the signed contract is $182,550.  

 

Comments: 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 4 
April 14, 2015 
Detailed Agenda 
 

 

C. Public Employees Benefits Program (PEBP) 

 

This disclosure reports a correction to the termination date on the contract between the Public 

Employees Benefit Program and Healthscope Benefits, Inc. (Contract #14575). The termination 

date that posted on the July 9, 2013 Board of Examiners agenda was June 30, 2014; however, the 

accurate date of June 30, 2017 was indicated on the signed contract. 

 

Comments: 

 

 11. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 

 

*12. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Seconded By: Vote: 

Comments: 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 1 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

MINUTES 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS 
March 10, 2015 

 

The Board of Examiners met on February 10, 2015, in the Guinn Room on the second floor of 

the Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson St., Carson City, Nevada, at 10:00 a.m.  Present were: 

 

 

Members: 

Governor Brian Sandoval 

Attorney General Adam Paul Laxalt 

Secretary of State Barbara K. Cegavske 

James R. Wells, Clerk 

 

Others Present: 

Rudy Malfabon, Department of Transportation 

Dennis Gallagher, Department of Transportation 

Ms. Miller 

Mercedes Menendez, Attorney General’s Office 

Mike Willden, Chief of Staff 

Ann Wilkinson, Department of Administration 

Jeff Collins, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Environmental Protection 

Greg Loyato, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Environmental Protection 

Jeff Menicucci, Attorney General’s Office 

Beth Hickman. Attorney General’s Office 

Nancy Katafias, Attorney General’s Office 

Elizabeth Watson, Department of Health and Human Services, Welfare and Support Services 

Sue Smith, Department of Health and Human Services, Welfare and Support Services 

Lee Ann Hollingsworth, Controller’s Office 

Steve Fisher, Department of Health and Human Services, Welfare and Support Services 

Ellen Crecelius, Department of Health and Human Services 

Leah Lamborn, Department of Health and Human Services, Health Care, Financing and Policy 

Aaron Frantz, Department of Business and Industry 

Kevin Quint, SAPTA 

Kimberlee Tarter, Department of Administration, Purchasing 

Kelly Lafayette, Department of Administration, Public Works Division, Buildings and Grounds 

Teri Preston, Department of Administration, Public Works Division, Buildings and Grounds 

Kathy Wynands, Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 

James Lewandowski, Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation 

Dawn Rosenberg, Department of Corrections 

Patty Cafferata, Attorney General’s Office 

Hillary Bunker, Attorney General’s Office 

Danette Kluever, Department of Health and Human Services, Child and Family Services 

 

  



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 2 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Good morning, everyone.  I will call the Board of Examiners meeting to order.  

We’ll commence with Agenda Item No. 1, which is Public Comment.  Is there any member of 

the public here in Carson City that would like to provide public comment to the Board?  Is 

anyone present in Las Vegas that would like to provide public comment to the Board?  And can 

you hear us loud and clear there?  You can just give me a thumbs up.  All right. 

 

*2. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 10, 2015 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS’ MEETING MINUTES 

 
Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Governor Vote:  2-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item No. 2, Approval of the February 10, 2015 Board of Examiner Meeting 

Minutes.  Have the members had an opportunity to review the minutes?  And are there any 

changes? 

 

Secretary of State:  I have, but I can’t vote.  I wasn’t there. 

 

Attorney General:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  I move to approve. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved to approve the minutes of February 10, 2015.  I 

will second the motion.  The Secretary of State is not going to participate because she was not 

present, so I will have her abstain from the vote.  All in favor say aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 2-0. 

 

 

   *3. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CASH MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT 

ACT 
 

A. Office of the Controller – Payment to U.S. Treasury not to exceed $14,053 

 

The State Controller requests approval of payment to the U.S. Treasury not to exceed $14,053 

from the General Fund.  This is the highest possible payable liability for 2014.  The U.S. 

Treasury is reviewing the report and should have a final liability figure by March 16, 2015.  

Payment to the U.S. Treasury is required by March 31, 2015. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 3 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item No. 3 which is the Cash Management 

Improvement Act.  First, I’d like welcome Mr. Wells.  Your first meeting today.  You’re looking 

like you’re ready to go. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  I’m ready as I’m going to be.  Agenda Item No. 3 is a request 

from the State Controller to approve payment to the U.S. Treasury, not to exceed $14,053 from 

the General Fund.  This is for the Cash Management Improvement Act which ensures that there 

is efficiency and equity between the time that federal funds are drawn and the payments are 

expended.  The figure for last year was about $4,000 I think it was.  This is an annual 

reconciliation between the federal government and the state. 

 

Governor:  No, and we’re pretty close then if this is the amount, so we’re doing a good job. 

 

Clerk:  That’s correct.  Actually, as I said, it’s the worst case possibility.  The proposed 

submission from the Controller’s Office is actually for a smaller amount than the net amount that 

is owed to the state.  So if the federal government accepts our report, then we would actually get 

money from the federal government. 

 

Governor:  We like that too.  All right.  Questions from Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Vote to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval of the payment to the U.S. Treasury 

not to exceed $14,053.  Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or 

discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*4. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – STATE VEHICLE PURCHASE 
Pursuant to NRS 334.010, no automobile may be purchased by any department, office, bureau, 

officer or employee of the state without prior written consent of the state Board of Examiners. 

 

 

 
 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 4 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

AGENCY NAME 
# OF 

VEHICLES 

NOT TO 

EXCEED: 

Colorado River Commission 1 $33,200 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Corrective Actions 1 $30,372 

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources – 

Environmental Protection – Bureau of Water Pollution 

Control 1 $27,622 

Department of Corrections 1 $2,320 

Total 4 $93,514 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We will move on to Agenda Item 4, State Vehicle Purchase.  Mr. Wells. 

  

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 4 is a request from agencies to purchase four 

vehicles.  There are three new vehicle requests.  One from the Colorado River Commission and 

two from the Department Conservation and Natural Resources, and a used vehicle request from 

the Department of Corrections. 

 

Governor:  I have no questions.  Board members?  If there are no questions -- did you have 

something further, Mr. Wells? 

 

Clerk:  No, sir. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  If there are no questions, the Chair will accept a motion. 

 

Attorney General:  I move to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved to approve the state vehicle purchase as described 

in Agenda Item No. 4.  The Secretary of State has seconded the motion.  Any questions or 

discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 5 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

*5. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL TO PAY A CASH SETTLEMENT 
 Pursuant to NRS 41.037, the State Board of Examiners may approve, settle or deny any claim or 

action against the State, any of its agencies or any of its present or former officers, employees, 

immune contractors or State Legislators. 

 

A. Department of Transportation (NDOT) – Administration – $2,403,292.57 

 

The department requests settlement approval in the amount of $2,403,292.57 to resolve a 

contested condemnation case for the project known as Project NEON.  This will compensate 

Westcare for the acquisition of its property on Martin Luther King Boulevard, Las Vegas, from 

where it has been operating for decades as a drug treatment facility.  NDOT previously paid the 

sum of $1.8 million for a right of occupancy and $446,707.43 for relocation expenses of the 

operations.  Approval of the additional amount of $2,403,292.57 would bring the total to $4.65 

million. 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item No. 5, Approval to Pay a Cash Settlement.  NDOT. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 5 is a proposed settlement in the amount of 

$2,403,292.57 to resolve a contested condemnation case for the Project NEON.  And this will 

compensate Westcare for the acquisition of property on Martin Luther King Boulevard in Las 

Vegas.  Director Malfabon is here to speak. 

 

Governor:  Director Malfabon, Mr. Gallagher, good morning. 

 

Rudy Malfabon:  Good morning. 

 

Governor:  So why don’t you take us through this, please. 

 

Rudy Malfabon:  Okay.  This is in the acquisition footprint for Project NEON.  Back in August 

of 2013 the department deposited with the court in order to gain right of entry on the property an 

amount of $2,058,350.  Westcare subsequently withdrew $1.8 million.  The issue was since 

they’re a displaced party, that we had to work with them on finding another site to relocate to.  

So this settlement request will allow them to -- they’ve already taken that site on Maryland 

Parkway in Las Vegas, so it basically settles all accounts and establishes the reasonable amount 

for buying the property and the relocation expenses in total.  The total amount payment to 

Westcare is $4.65 million. 

 

Governor:  And what was our exposure in this case, Mr. Gallagher? 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  Good morning, Governor, members of Board, Dennis Gallagher.  Governor, 

our exposure range probably from about six to eight plus million dollars, factoring in the cost of 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 6 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

the property and the relocation expenses that NDOT would be facing of course.  That also goes 

along with the uncertainty of a jury trial. 

 

Governor:  Well, in fact, they made a settlement offer of $9.1 million in this case, and so as you 

say, the exposure could be that plus costs in attorneys’ fees.  What do you estimate those 

would’ve been going through a trial? 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  We estimated the trail would’ve taken seven to ten days. Trial costs 

would’ve been probably in the neighborhood of, with experts, $250,000 to $400,000. 

 

Governor:  And that’s our nickel.  What do you think their attorneys’ fees and costs would have 

been? 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  I think they would’ve been in the same neighborhood, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Mm-hmm.  And this is also an important piece to the puzzle in terms of 

commencing with Project NEON, Mr. Malfabon. 

 

Rudy Malfabon:  Yes, Governor.  It is critical.  And I wanted to also point out that Westcare 

provides a critical need for social services there.  One thing that we have to consider is 

environmental justice issues with our projects to make sure that social issues are considered in 

the impacts of our projects.  So it was critical that we reach a settlement. 

 

Governor:  So Westcare has taken a piece of that money that we deposited with the court and 

has relocated and is doing business as we speak. 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  Governor, they’ve removed the money that NDOT put on deposit with the 

court.  They’ve identified a replacement property and identified contractors to bring that property 

up to meet their needs.  They’re currently operating under their existing -- at their existing 

location, but it’s anticipated that, assuming of course this settlement is approved, that they will 

start construction right away and be moving sometime, I believe, later this year or early next. 

 

Governor:  And will settlement of this case resolve all claims associated with this piece of 

property? 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  There’s one remaining ownership interest, and that’s the power company has 

an easement. 

 

Governor:  I should be more specific, I apologize, but with regard to Westcare? 

 

Dennis Gallagher:  Yes. 

 

Governor:  Good.  And do you believe this is a prudent settlement? 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 7 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Dennis Gallagher:  I believe this is a fair, just and equitable settlement for both the property 

owner as well as the taxpayers of the State of Nevada. 

 

Governor:  All right.  Thank you.  Ms. Secretary of State? 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor.  I want to thank you both for taking the time out of 

your day to go over all this with me and answer questions.  Governor, I’m so happy with the 

agencies and the staff that have called to ask if there’s any questions and answer several 

questions.  I know there were a couple things that you were going to get back to me on that don’t 

affect my vote on this, but I want to thank you for the thoroughness that you completed in talking 

to me and going over this whole project with me.  So thank you very much.  And it even goes 

back as far as the -- I can’t remember, it was an obnoxious weed, but the environmental issues 

along that whole area there.  So thank you.  And it’s been a long time coming, but thank you for 

your persistence and what you’ve done.  So thank you, Governor. 

 

Governor:  Thank you.  Ms. Miller, anything you wanted to add? 

 

Ms. Miller:  No, I have no questions.  If you have anything else for me, I’d be happy to answer 

any questions. 

 

Governor:  I would imagine this is your case? 

 

Ms. Miller:  Yes.  And this is a property on phase one on Martin Luther King and Alta.  So 

we’re getting close to wrapping up some of the properties in phase one, and this was a critical 

piece. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Well, again, I want to compliment you on how you’ve resolved this case.  

And I like you how you put it, Mr. Gallagher, that it’s a win win for both, that Westcare has been 

property compensated and is satisfied with what they have, but this has also saved the taxpayers 

money, and in the best interest of the state, it allows us to move forward with Project NEON 

which we talked about at the Board of Transportation meeting yesterday.  Phase one may be 

moving as quickly as February of 2016.  We need to get these property issues resolved, and so 

it’s good for everyone.  So I really -- it’s a lot of money, but at the same time it’s fair.  So I 

appreciate what you’ve done.  Any other questions from Board members?  Okay.  If there are 

none, the Chair will accept a motion for approval to pay a cash settlement in the sum of 

$2,403,292.50 

 

Attorney General:  Move to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved to approve.  The Secretary of State has seconded 

the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 8 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0.  Thank you, Ms. Miller.  Thank you very much, gentlemen. 

 

*6. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF AN EQUIPMENT LEASE 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health – Carefusion Solutions Equipment Lease 

 

The Division of Public and Behavioral Health is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval of the 

amendment to the Carefusion Solutions pharmaceutical medication dispensing equipment lease. 

This is the fourth amendment to the original lease which continues ongoing leasing of 

pharmaceutical medication dispensing equipment to the state’s facilities and hospitals.  This 

amendment extends the termination date from March 31, 2015 to March 31, 2016 and increases 

the maximum amount of the lease from $3,506,760 to $3,964,308 due to a continued need for 

these services.  

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By:  Attorney General Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item No. 6, Approval of an Equipment Lease.  Mr. Wells. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 6 is a request from the Division of Public and 

Behavioral Health to amend a contract with Carefusion Solutions, which provides an equipment 

lease for pharmaceutical medication dispensing equipment.  This is the fourth amendment to the 

original lease and extends the termination date from March 31
st
 of ’15 to March 31

st
 of 2016.  It 

increases the amount of the lease from $3,506,760 to $3,964,308.  And this is a contract that the 

division has been working with Child and Family Services and the Purchasing Division to 

prepare an RFP, and they are projecting that the request for proposals will go out this month. 

 

Governor:  So that’s the purpose is to extend this to allow for the RFP process to go forward? 

 

Clerk:  That’s correct. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Questions from Board members? 

 

Secretary of State:  Move for approval. 

 

Attorney General:  Second. 

 

Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for approval of the equipment lease described in 

Agenda Item No. 6.  The Attorney General has seconded the motion.  Questions or discussion?  

Hearing none, all in favor say aye. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 9 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*7. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE A 

PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

 
A. Department of Health and Human Services – Division of Child and Family 

Services 

 

The Division of Child and Family Services is requesting Board of Examiners’ approval of the 

following provider agreement forms to enable them to enter into an agreement with providers for 

specialized mental health and assessments for children and families: 

 

A. Child Abuse and Neglect Forensic Medical Consultation 

B. Diagnostic Mental Health Assessment 

C. Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders Clinic 

D. Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders Testing and Evaluation 

E. Individual and Family Therapy 

F. Neuropsychological Assessment 

G. Parental Capacity Assessment 

H. Psychological Testing 

I. Psychosexual Evaluation 

J. Substance Abuse Assessment 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By:  Attorney General Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We’ll move to Agenda Item 7, Authorization to Approve a Provider Agreement.  

Mr. Wells. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 7 is a request from the Division of Child and 

Family Services for the Board of Examiners to approve Master Agreement forms to enable them 

to enter into agreements with providers for the ten enumerated services that are listed under the 

Agenda item. 

 

Governor:  Thank you.  And I think this is the third time we’ve had this, so I don’t know if 

the… 

 

Secretary of State:  I’m fine. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 10 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Governor:  …have any questions, but… 

 

Secretary of State:  No. 

 

Governor:  …in the name of efficiency and getting the services out to the clients, this is an 

important way to do it. 

 

Secretary of State:  I’d move for approval. 

 

Attorney General:  Second. 

 

Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for approval to authorize to approve a Provider 

Agreement as described in Agenda Item No. 7.  The Attorney General has seconded the motion.  

Questions or discussion on the motion?  Hearing none, all in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*8. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – TORT CLAIM  
  

A. Saggese & Associates and Antonio Davis  – TC 17116 

      Amount of Claim - $305,000 

 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By:  Attorney General Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We’ll move to Agenda Item No. 8, Tort Claim. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 8 is a (inaudible) settlement on the Tort Claim 

in the amount of $305,000.  There are -- if there are questions, there are representatives from the 

Attorney General’s Office too. 

 

Governor:  All right.  If you’d take us through the claim, please. 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  Good morning.  Mercedes Menendez, Deputy Attorney General.  This is 

a claim brought by an inmate who was at High Desert State Prison, and he brought a 1983 civil 

rights action, as well as State Tort Claims regarding a shooting incident by a correctional officer.  

We reached a settlement after months of negotiations for $305,000. 

 

Governor:  And what was the original demand in this case? 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 11 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Mercedes Menendez:  The initial demand was 900,000.  He’s represented by counsel in this 

case, so he’s not a pro per plaintiff. 

 

Governor:  And had this case gone to trial, what was your estimate of attorneys’ fees and costs? 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  Just alone based off of what we’ve seen so far and what’s come out in 

discovery as well as negotiations, we believe the attorneys’ fees would be somewhere around the 

range of 200,000.  And the cost could be give or take 100,000, just based off of the amount of 

experts that are needed in this case, as well as, of course, our costs would be -- I was talking 

about the plaintiff’s costs.  And as well as our cost being, you know, in excess of $60,000 to 

$80,000 to defend this matter. 

 

Governor:  In this case, at least on my review of the information, is more of a damage case than 

a liability case.  So in other words it’s how much, not if the state is going to be responsible.  So 

that’s why I think this is a good settlement given what you’ve described in terms of what the 

exposure could be and the uncertainty of a jury trial, and the fact that we would be required to 

pay attorneys’ fees for sure, because, again, it’s a damage case, not a liability case.  So I… 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  That’s correct. 

 

Governor:  …applaud you on the result.  Yes, Secretary of State has a question. 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you, Governor.  In reading the additional information on our page, 

and it says they settled the claim for 305,000, it covers all attorney fees and costs.  So that’s -- all 

of that money is going to the attorney for this… 

 

Governor:  Well, I guess that’s… 

 

Secretary of State:  Could you explain that? 

 

Governor:  …that’s the plaintiff’s business how… 

 

Secretary of State:  But, I mean, it’s worded that way, so I just want to fully understand that 

$305,000 goes to the attorney and the inmate is not receiving any money. 

 

Governor:  No, I don’t know if that’s the case.  I mean, that’s some… 

 

Secretary of State:  That’s what I’m just asking. 

 

Governor:  Yeah. 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  Okay, yes… 

 

Governor:  Ms. Menendez, go ahead, yes. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 12 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Mercedes Menendez:  Okay, yes, what it is, is we have standard language in our settlement 

agreements, and what we put in our settlement agreements would state that this extinguishes all 

claims as well as any attorneys’ fees and costs that have been accrued by either side.  Each party 

would bear their own cost. 

 

Secretary of State:  Okay, thank you. 

 

Governor:  And, I guess, what she’s saying -- what the Attorney General is saying is that’s up to 

the plaintiff and his attorney to negotiate how much the fees are going to be and what have you. 

 

Secretary of State:  Okay. 

 

Governor:  But, as you say, we’ll have a dismissal with prejudice once the settlement proceeds 

are given to the plaintiff’s counsel? 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  Yes, sir. 

 

Governor:  That will extinguish all claims against the state associated with this incident? 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  That is correct, sir. 

 

Governor:  Okay.  Any other questions? 

 

Secretary of State:  And did we -- just out of curiosity, I know that he had several surgeries.  

The state was no longer responsible for any other… 

 

Governor:  Is he still incarcerated? 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  He is.  Yes, he is incarcerated, and the NDOC paid for his surgery, so 

there’s no outstanding medical bills, if that was your question. 

 

Secretary of State: And for future, are we still liable for the future? 

 

Governor:  Well, I would imagine that we are still responsible for his medical care as long as he 

is incarcerated.  But once he leaves, the state doesn’t have any responsibility for medical 

treatment. 

 

Secretary of State:  Okay, I just wanted clarification on that. 

 

Governor:  There’s nodding heads, but just for the record, is that true? 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  That is true, sir. 

 

Governor:  All right, thank you. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 13 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Secretary of State:  Thank you.  Thank you.  I’ll move for approval. 

 

Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for approval for the payment of the Tort Claim 

described in Agenda Item 8A in the amount of $305,000. 

 

Attorney General:  I second. 

 

Governor:  Attorney General has seconded the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in 

favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Motion passes 3-0.  Thank you very much. 

 

Mercedes Menendez:  Thank you. 

 

*9. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – LEASES 

 

Twelve statewide leases were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Let’s move on to Agenda Item No. 9, Leases. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are 12 leases that are included in Agenda Item 9.  And we 

have not had any requests for additional comment on the 12 leases. 

 

Governor:  Pretty straight forward.  Yeah, I have no questions.  Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No questions, Mr. Chairman. 

 

Secretary of State:  I don’t on this, but I do on another one.  Should I leave it until the end?  Or 

do you want me to ask it now?  Just for future.  Nothing on any of these. 

 

Governor:  But if you have a question relevant to leases… 

 

Secretary of State:  Yes. 

 

Governor:  …please proceed. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 14 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I just wanted to know about the Easter Seals, if 

somebody can get back to me.  I don’t think that their lease has been finalized, and also there’s 

the land between Opportunity Village and Easter Seals that has been, I guess, negotiated or still 

on hold for several years.  I thought we had taken care of it in the legislature, but evidently we 

haven’t.  And there’s some land that was supposed to be made into a parking lot, so I’d 

appreciate any information that we can get on their lease agreement plus the land between those 

two.  Thank you, Governor. 

 

Governor:  And just an observation is that the good news is the economy’s improving, so rents 

are up.  The bad news is we’re not getting those savings that we were getting before.  But as long 

as their within the market, I’m satisfied, and having reviewed the leases and the respective 

market rates for the communities that they’re in.  So if there are no further questions, the Chair 

will accept a motion to approve the leases described in Agenda Item No. 9. 

 

Attorney General:  I move to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval.  The Secretary of State has seconded 

the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  Hearing now, all in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*10. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – CONTRACTS 
 

Twenty-four independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Let’s move on to Contracts, Agenda Item No. 10. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are 24 contracts listed under Agenda Item No. 10.  We 

would like to withdraw Contract No. 21 and we’ll bring that back to the April Board of 

Examiners’ meeting.  There were requests to pull Contracts No. 22 and 23, but I think Mr. 

Dillard is still testifying (inaudible). 

 

Governor:  All right.  I had asked for 22 and 23 to be held, not because I questioned those 

contracts, but I wanted an update from DMV about how we’re doing.  Mr. Dillard is detained 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 15 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

over at the legislature as we speak.  What I’ll do is trail this matter, and in terms of voting on the 

leases with the permission of the other Board members to give him some time to get here.  If 

there are no other questions on any of the other leases, which I don’t have, those of you that are 

here for those are respectfully excused because I know you have many things to do, but I 

appreciate your attendance today.  So I’m not going to take a vote yet on that. 

 

Contracts Discussion and Approval Continued After Agenda Item No. 13 

 

Governor:  So before I go to public comment, I guess we’ll trail the DMV report to next month, 

but we do need to approve those contracts. 

 

Secretary of State:  The other ones? 

 

Governor:  Yes, so the… 

 

Secretary of State:  Should we move 22 and 23? 

 

Governor:  No, no, no.  I mean, trail the questions that I have on that. 

 

Secretary of State:  Oh, okay.  So you’re okay approving it, just with them being able to come 

back to us with responses to your… 

 

Governor:  Well, I guess, I’ll be more specific.  I mean, we’ve had these wait times at the 

beginning, particularly in Southern Nevada, and Mr. Dillard was going to come today and discuss 

what’s going on in terms of how DMV is responding to that and what’s in the budget.  And we’re 

adding employees.  We’re going to be building a new building there in Southern Nevada.  

There’s some technology issues that they’re working on as well.  But I don’t want to speak for 

him.  Mr. Willden, I don’t know if you had any comment.  I know that you’ve chatted with Mr. 

Dillard. 

 

Mike Willden:  Governor, Mike Willden, Chief of Staff, for the record.  Just maybe an update 

from our conversations.  Been a number of challenges with the backlogs at DMV, and we’ve 

been working diligently with Director Dillard.  Couple of things, short-term, they are working a 

significant amount of overtime, and compliments to the staff and kudos to the DMV people there 

to help speed up those processes.  They’re working on their IT systems and solutions to make it 

more efficient.  They’ve seen some shift in where the backlog is from one office to the other, so 

they’re attempting to move resources.  As you mentioned, new DMV building on the slate for the 

Sahara location, assuming the legislature approves that capital improvement project. 

 

And we have also been working on a budget amendment with the Budget Office to send over an 

acceleration of hiring of DMV staff.  The original agency request was to phase in 75 more staff, 

50 in the first year of the biennium, 25 in the second year of the biennium.  We are going to 

accelerate all of those to the front end of the first year of the next biennium.  And Director 

Dillard has put together a plan that his team has worked on that we can bring all of those staff 

into academies, training academies, this spring.  I guess we’re almost at spring, so spring, early 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 16 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

summer.  And we will be ready to hire all of those additional staff July 1, so bring down those 

times. 

 

Secretary of State:  Can I ask a… 

 

Governor:  Yes. 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you. 

 

Governor:  Madam Secretary of State. 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  And you don’t have to tell it now if we can find out 

later, but there was some damage that was done after hours down at the Sahara office.  And I just 

wanted an update how much damage was done and what had happened if you could -- it was last 

month, if I’m not mistaken. 

 

Mike Willden:  I don’t know the details. What I know, there were some broken windows from 

rocks thrown, broken windows.  As a result of that, Director Dillard has informed us that he’s 

seen less client volume at the Sahara office, probably some people concerned about safety. 

 

Secretary of State:  And so were the employees. 

 

Mike Willden:  Yeah, and we have picked up that volume now in the Flamingo office is what 

the report has been.  So I’m assuming that will level back out, you know, between the offices.  

But because of those concerns there and broken glass and some rocks thrown, I think some of the 

clientele customers needing service have moved to the Flamingo office.  And so, again, that’s 

how we’re trying to balance the resources. 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you. 

 

Governor: And if Troy were here, part of the explanation is the volume has increased 

substantially, and it’s another one of those good news, bad news stories, is the economy has 

improved, so car sales are literally at pre-recession levels, when they had peaked in 2003, 2004. 

 

Mike Willden:  Yeah, I didn’t bring those statistics, I apologize.  But those have increased, and 

the DMV has seen between a 21 percent and a 25 percent increase in customer volume over the 

last year and a half. 

 

Secretary of State:  Great.  And it’s, like you said, bad… 

 

Mike Willden:  So, again, sort of like the good news of the economy, bad news of the economy. 

 

Governor:  But I will repeat what you said, I want to thank the DMV employees that are there 

because they’re overwhelmed with the number of clients and the public out there.  And they’re 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 17 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

doing their absolute best.  And, you know, I had heard anecdotally that on a Saturday morning 

there were enough people outside waiting in line that essentially took… 

 

Mike Willden:  Filled up every slot for the day. 

 

Governor:  For the day. 

 

Mike Willden:  When we opened the door in the morning, every slot was filled. 

 

Governor:  So there’s, you know, the DMV personnel have worked really hard to try to move 

those folks through, and have been willing to work overtime to get this done.  So thank you, Mr. 

Willden. 

 

Secretary of State:  And please thank Troy and DMV.  They have just bent over backwards 

helping whenever there’s been any questions or issues from our office, so please take that back to 

Troy when you talk to him.  I’m appreciative. 

 

Mike Willden:  Thank you.  We will convey the message. 

 

Governor:  So if there are no further questions on the contracts, the Chair will accept a motion 

to approve Contracts 1 through 20, and 22 through 24. 

 

Attorney General:  Motion to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  Attorney General has moved for approval.  Secretary of State has seconded the 

motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

*11. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENTS 
 

Two independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review and approval. 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Attorney General Seconded By:  Secretary of State Vote:  3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  We’ll move on to Master Service Agreements. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 18 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  There are two Master Service Agreements under Agenda Item 

No. 11.  The first is an amendment for temporary employment services for additional dollars 

based on the usage to date, increasing the maximum contract amount from $6 million to $14 

million.  The second MSA is for an electric fuel dispensing and card lock system.  That contract 

is for four years with a maximum value of $20 million. 

 

Governor:  I have no questions.  Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No questions, Mr. Chairman. 

 

Secretary of State:  No. 

 

Governor:  The Chair will accept a motion for approval of the Master Service Agreements 

described in Agenda Item 11. 

 

Attorney General:  Move to approve. 

 

Secretary of State:  Second. 

 

Governor:  The Attorney General has moved for approval.  The Secretary of State has seconded 

the motion.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0. 

 

12.    INFORMATIONAL ITEM 
 

Pursuant to AB 41 of the 2013 Legislative Session, the Clerk of the Board may approve all 

contract transactions for amounts less than $50,000. Per direction from the August 13, 2013 

meeting of the Board of Examiners, the Board wished to receive an informational item listing all 

approvals applicable to the new threshold ($10,000 - $49,999). Attached is a list of all applicable 

approvals for contracts and amendments approved from January 21, 2015 through February 13, 

2015. 

 

Twenty-two independent contracts were submitted to the Board for review. 

 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item 12, Information Item. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.   There are 22 contracts that were underneath the threshold to be 

approved by the Clerk of the Board.  And this is for the period of January 21, 2015 to February 

13, 2015. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 19 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 

Governor:  I have no questions.  Board members? 

 

Attorney General:  No questions, Mr. Chairman. 

 

Secretary of State:  No, none. 

 

Governor:  All right.  We’ll move on.  Wow, we’re efficient today. 

 

13. INFORMATION ITEM 
 

A. Department of Motor Vehicles – Complete Streets Program 

 

Pursuant to NRS 482.480, Subsection 11, the Department of Motor Vehicles shall certify 

monthly to the State Board of Examiners the amount of the voluntary contributions collected for 

each county by the department and its agents during the preceding month, and that the money has 

been distributed as provided in statute.  The department began accepting contributions on 

December 15, 2014.  This report is for the period beginning January 1, 2015 and ending January 

31, 2015. 

 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Agenda Item No. 13, DMV Complete Streets Program. 

 

Clerk:  Thank you, Governor.  Agenda Item No. 13 is a report from the Department of Motor 

Vehicles regarding the Complete Streets Program for the period of January 1, 2015 to January 31, 

2015.  $7,240 was collected in that period, with $10,246 collected since its inception on 

December 15
th

 of ‘14. 

 

Governor:  This information speaks for itself.  Do we have to do this every meeting, or can we 

do it quarterly? 

 

Clerk:  Governor, I thought that this was supposed to be a quarterly meeting, so I was a little bit 

surprised that it was on the Agenda.  We will look into it (inaudible). 

 

Governor:  Well, as I said, I appreciate the information, but the amounts are small and it could 

be more valuable to get them on a quarterly basis so that we get more -- I assume you’re all from 

DMV nodding no.  But in any event, just in the name of efficiency and having more meaningful 

information so we can see the patterns.  I prefer that we do it on a quarterly basis. 

 

Unidentified Female Speaker:  Governor, if I may, in the statute which was just handed to me, 

it does say that the department shall certify monthly to the State Board of Examiners. 

 

Governor:  All right. 

 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 20 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

Unidentified Female Speaker:  That is a statutory requirement. 

 

Governor:  The law is the law.  Any questions on Agenda Item 13?  All right then. 

 

 14. BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  The next Agenda Item is Board Member Comments.  Ms. Secretary of State. 

  

Secretary of State:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and Governor.  I am concerned about Buildings and 

Grounds, the difference between how things are handled from the Las Vegas office and how 

they’re handled here.  If I could just get someone to respond to me and meet with me and not 

cancel meetings, but I would really appreciate some help in the Las Vegas area with the 

Buildings and Grounds. 

 

Governor:  Ann Wilkinson’s here and she’ll probably… 

 

Secretary of State:  Oh, good. 

 

Ann Wilkinson:  Happy to do the follow-up. 

 

Secretary of State:  Thank you.  I appreciate that. 

 

Governor:  Any other Board member comments?  Is there any public comment from Carson 

City?  Any public comment from Las Vegas? 

 

*15. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION – ADJOURNMENT 
 

Clerk’s Recommendation:  I recommend approval. 

Motion By: Secretary of State Seconded By:  Attorney General Vote: 3-0 

Comments: 

 

Governor:  Is there a motion for adjournment? 

 

Secretary of State:  Motion to adjourn. 

 

Attorney General:  Second. 

 

Governor:  Secretary of State has moved for adjournment.  The Attorney General has seconded 

the motion.  All in favor say aye. 

 

Secretary of State:  Aye. 

 

Attorney General:  Aye. 



Board of Examiners Meeting Page 21 
March 10, 2015 
Minutes 
 

 

Governor:  Aye.  Motion passes 3-0.  This meeting is adjourned.  Thank you, ladies and 

gentlemen. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

JAMES R. WELLS, CLERK 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

GOVERNOR BRIAN SANDOVAL, CHAIRMAN 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

ATTORNEY GENERAL ADAM PAUL LAXALT 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

SECRETARY OF STATE BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE 

 





































































































BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16392

Legal Entity
Name:

CAPITAL GLASS, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: CAPITAL GLASS, INC.

Agency Code: 082 Address: 2951 N DEER RUN RD STE 1
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89701-1467

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Lynn Durand 775/883-6401
Vendor No.: T80316580
NV Business ID: NV19671000768

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Buildings and Grounds building rent income
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: ASD #1846065

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Glass Repair

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide ongoing glass door repair and installation services for various state buildings in
Northern Nevada on an as-needed basis.  These services will be provided at the request and approval of a Buildings
and Grounds designee.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: $90 per hour (labor rate), $135 per hour (overtime rate), $180 per hour (holiday and weekend rate),
and parts and material at contractor¿s cost plus 10% overhead and 25% mark-up.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State buildings need to be maintained in a safe and secure environment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of equipment and manpower.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16392 1



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Per SAM 0338.0, each contractor will be contacted to submit bids on projects.  Capital Glass, Inc. is a Public Works Board
contractor.  Pursuant to NRS 338.13862, Buildings and Grounds is using a Public Works pre-qualified bidder.
d. Last bid date: 02/01/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2007 thru 2011, and 2011 thru 2015, Buildings and Grounds, satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/10/2015 10:14:52 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/10/2015 10:14:56 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/10/2015 10:15:01 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 03/10/2015 10:15:04 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/10/2015 19:29:31 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:49:41 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16392 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16459

Legal Entity
Name:

SUMMIT PLUMBING CO LLC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: SUMMIT PLUMBING CO LLC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1579 SHIRLEY ST
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MINDEN, NV 89423-9060

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/267-9987
Vendor No.: T29008376
NV Business ID: NV19991021762

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Buildings & Grounds building rent income
fees

Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 09/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 08/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Plumbing Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide ongoing plumbing services.  Services include pumping, heating, drain cleaning, air
conditioning, wet well pumping, backflow testing, grease trap pumping, Hydro Vac services, camera service, pipe
inspections, repairs, and replacements. These services will be provided at the request and approval of a Buildings
and Grounds designee.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Plumbing in the buildings must be maintained in a safe and sanitary manner - work is beyond journey level plumbing
expertise and equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower and equipment.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16459 2



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This is one of multiple contracts for plumbing and back flow services on file. Per SAM 0338.0, each contractor will be
contacted to submit bids for available jobs.
d. Last bid date: 02/16/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2007-2015, Buildings & Grounds, service satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/13/2015 08:34:17 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/13/2015 08:34:21 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/13/2015 08:34:24 AM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 03/18/2015 12:36:23 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/19/2015 16:42:51 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/23/2015 09:30:35 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16459 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16402

Legal Entity
Name:

LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Code: 082 Address: 800 E COLLEGE PKWY
Appropriation Unit: 1351-10
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89706

If "No" please explain:  This is an agency funded CIP
where the project will be managed by the SPWD, but all
funding and contractor payment responsibilities will remain
with the initiating agency. For this contract the funding and
expenditure authority will be Account 712-1351, Buildings
and Grounds, expenditure category 10, Marlette Lake
water system improvements.

Contact/Phone: null775/883-7077

Vendor No.: T80912843
NV Business ID: NV19791006982

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Agency funded CIP

Agency Reference #: 109252

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the East Slope Catchments #5
improvements at the Marlette Lake Water System, Project No. 15-A022; SPWD Contract No. 109252.  The scope of
work includes improvement plans and construction documents.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $63,480.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2015 Agency CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16402 3



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.l
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 14:56:43 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 14:56:46 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 14:56:53 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 09:19:47 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/17/2015 17:15:13 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:24:32 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16402 3



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15263 Amendment

Number:
6

Legal Entity
Name:

CARPENTER SELLERS ASSOC DBA
CARPENTER SELLERS ARCHITECTS

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: CARPENTER SELLERS ASSOC DBA
CARPENTER SELLERS ARCHITECTS

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1919 S JONES BLVD STE C
Appropriation Unit: 1510-63
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89146

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/251-8896
Vendor No.: T80997582
NV Business ID: NV19871041301

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 13% Univ Sys Rcpt, 10% trans from Cap Proj

Fnd, 55% trans from Treas, 22% trans from
the PWB

Agency Reference #: 92114

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 02/04/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 3 years and 146 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the sixth amendment to the original contract, which provides professional architectural/engineering services
for the University of Las Vegas Hotel College Academic Building; Project No. 13-P05; SPWD Contract No. 92114.
This amendment increases the maximum amount from $3,046,223 to $3,271,455.40 for additional services for design
and production of the project.  The scope includes additional services to travel to Carson City to meet with the
building official and State Fire Department personnel to review the code requirements for the building, along with
additional services for submittals to the Federal Aviation Administration as required due to the location of the
project.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $2,794,118.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $252,115.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $225,222.40
4. New maximum contract amount: $3,271,455.40

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15263 4



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/09/2015 11:13:30 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/09/2015 11:13:33 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/09/2015 11:13:36 AM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/17/2015 13:41:25 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 10:17:19 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/23/2015 09:15:13 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15263 4



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

 

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION 

Brian Sandoval 

Governor 

James R. Wells, CPA

Interim Director

Gustavo “Gus” Nunez

Administrator

STATE OF NEVADA 

Public Works Division 

Las Vegas Offices:
Public Works Section

1830 East Sahara Avenue, Suite 204

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104-3739

(702) 486-5115 | Fax (702) 486-5094 

Buildings & Grounds Section

2621 East Sahara Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104-4136

(702) 486-4300 | Fax (702) 486-4308

Carson City Offices: 
515 East Musser Street, Suite 102 

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4263 

 

Public Works Section 

(775) 684-4141 | Fax (775) 684-4142  

 
Buildings & Grounds Section 

(775) 684-1800 | Fax (775) 684-1821  

 
 

 

 
 

3/1715 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
Clerk of the Board 
Att: Mr. Jim Rodriguez 
 
 
 
Ref:   Justification of Retroactive Approval of Contract No. 92114 for Carpenter Sellers Del 

Gatto Architects 
Project Name:  University of Las Vegas Hotel College Academic Building 
Project No.:     13-P05 
Endorsement No. 06 Item no. 2 Additional services to travel to Carson City to meet with State Fire and 
SPWD’s Building official. 
 
 
Mr. Jim Rodriguez: 
 
As requested, see below for the responses for the justification of retroactive approval for the above 
referenced project and item no. 2 of endorsement no. 06. 
 
What circumstances cause the work to be done prior to the BOE approval? 
The initial intent for the item reference above was to have the meeting via conference call, but as the 
complexity of the project developed it was determined that the meeting need to be held in person with 
State Fire and SPWD’s Building Official. Also, there where several attempts to correlate the trips to Las 
Vegas of State Fire personnel and SPWD’s Building Official that eventually proved to be impossible 
and, thus; there was a need to hold the meeting in Carson City.  
 
Impact to the contract or project would have occurred if the work had waited for BOE approval.  
The impact to the contract was identified as minimal since it was agreed upon to relate strictly to the 
cost of travel as reflected on item 2 of endorsement no. 6. 
 
The impact to the project would have resulted on a delay to the completion of the design development 
phase of the project and subsequently to the projected construction schedule of the project. Per the 
request of the Using Agency, UNLV, the construction of the project needs to be completed by the fall of 

4



 

Page 2 of 2 

2017. This correlates with the start of the fall semester classes at UNLV. To achieve this goal, the 
construction documents along with all the plan checking needs to be completed by the end of 
September of 2015 and to date the design schedule has been maintained.  
 
What steps the agency is taking to prevent this from occurring in the future. 
SPWD will increase diligence on this type of scenarios to prevent re-occurrence.  
 
 
 
 
 
Regards; 
 

 
Luis A. Roa 
Project Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
CC: Chris Chimits and Kaye Grimm 

4



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16450

Legal Entity
Name:

BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, INC,

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: BLACK EAGLE CONSULTING, INC,

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1345 CAPITAL BLVD STE A
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-7140

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/359-6600
Vendor No.: T27002047
NV Business ID: NV19971293847

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109191

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Mat Tst Pl Chck

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109191.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials testing and inspection services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional plan checking services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants
are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the
Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16450 5



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:59:14 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:59:16 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:59:19 AM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 14:58:05 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/17/2015 17:25:14 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:21:50 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16450 5



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16449

Legal Entity
Name:

CIVILWORKS LLC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: CIVILWORKS LLC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 4945 W PATRICK LN
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89118-2858

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/876-3474
Vendor No.: T29033909
NV Business ID: NV19981075781

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109182

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Civ Pl Chck

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109182.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Civil plan checking services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional plan checking services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants
are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the
Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16449 6



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:39:37 AM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:39:39 AM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 11:39:44 AM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 14:57:48 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/17/2015 17:21:47 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:22:36 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16449 6



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16430

Legal Entity
Name:

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
ENGINEERS, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
ENGINEERS, INC.

Agency Code: 082 Address: 6980 SIERRA CENTER PKWY STE 90
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-2236

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/851-8205
Vendor No.: T29021157
NV Business ID: NV20091073153

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109192

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 61 days

4. Type of contract: Open Term
Contract description: Matl Test and Insp

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD
Contract No. 109192.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials testing and inspection services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Materials Testing Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.
Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by
the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16430 7



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/10/2015 14:44:45 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/10/2015 14:44:48 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/10/2015 15:46:04 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/10/2015 15:59:07 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/11/2015 20:02:22 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 13:22:48 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16430 7



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16470

Legal Entity
Name:

GEOTECHNICAL & ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: GEOTECHNICAL & ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES, INC.

Agency Code: 082 Address: 7150 PLACID ST
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89119-4203

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/365-1001
Vendor No.: T81085017
NV Business ID:  NV19921050120

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109193

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Mat Tst Pl Chck

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD
Contract No. 109193.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials testing and inspection services to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Materials Testing & Inspection Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement
Program.  Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals
established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16470 8



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 15:59:55 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 15:59:57 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 16:00:00 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 16:13:01 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/17/2015 17:04:38 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:25:45 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16470 8



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16446

Legal Entity
Name:

HYYTINEN ENGINEERING LLC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: HYYTINEN ENGINEERING LLC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 5458 LONGLEY LN STE B
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-3298

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/826-3019
Vendor No.: T29033964
NV Business ID:  NV20111782953

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109227

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Struct Pl Chck

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional structural plan checking as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109227.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Structural plan checking services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16446 9



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 16:10:33 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 16:10:36 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 16:15:08 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 07:43:11 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/17/2015 16:59:09 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:26:22 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16446 9



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16457

Legal Entity
Name:

LOCHSA LLC DBA LOCHSA
ENGINEERING

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: LOCHSA LLC DBA LOCHSA
ENGINEERING

Agency Code: 082 Address: 6345 S JONES BLVD STE 100
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89118-3334

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/365-9312
Vendor No.: T27028884
NV Business ID: NV19951013840

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109188

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Civil Pl Chk

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109188.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Professional civil plan checking services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional civil plan checking services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.
Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by
the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16457 10



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 16:07:27 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 16:09:49 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 16:09:51 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 15:00:01 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:21:13 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:21:17 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16457 10



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16444

Legal Entity
Name:

LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Code: 082 Address: 9222 Prototype
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89510

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-827-6111
Vendor No.: T80912843
NV Business ID: NV19791006982

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109194

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Mat Tst & Insp

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection plan checking services as required.
SPWD Contract No. 109194.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials testing and inspection services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16444 11



b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:29:22 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:29:28 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:30:01 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 16:15:38 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/13/2015 09:47:11 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:20:34 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16444 11



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16445

Legal Entity
Name:

LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: LUMOS & ASSOCIATES

Agency Code: 082 Address: 9222 Prototype Dr.
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89510

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-827-6111
Vendor No.: T80912843
NV Business ID: NV19791006982

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

this service
Agency Reference #: 109184

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Civil Pl Chk

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional civil plan checking services as required.  SPWD Contract No. 109184.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $50,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Civil plan checking services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16445 12



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:59:15 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:59:18 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 15:59:20 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/11/2015 16:15:26 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/13/2015 09:47:38 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:27:01 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16445 12



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16456

Legal Entity
Name:

NINYO & MOORE

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: NINYO & MOORE

Agency Code: 082 Address: 6700 PARADISE RD STE E
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89119-3744

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/433-0330
Vendor No.: T27000873A
NV Business ID: NV19961094658

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % varies depending upon the project requiring

service
Agency Reference #: 109195

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 91 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Mat Tst & Insp Pl Ch

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional materials testing and inspection services as required.  SPWD
Contract No. 109195.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $100,000.00
Other basis for payment: progress payments ased on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Materials testing and inspection services required to ensure building safety and code compliance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional materials testing and inspection services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement
Program.  Consultants are selected based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals
established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16456 13



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 15:48:43 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 15:48:46 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/12/2015 15:50:54 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/16/2015 15:01:17 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 17:50:05 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/23/2015 09:30:02 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16456 13



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16381

Legal Entity
Name:

GARTNER, INC.

Agency Name: ADMIN - ENTERPRISE IT SERVICES Contractor Name: GARTNER, INC.
Agency Code: 180 Address: 56 TOP GALLANT RD
Appropriation Unit: 1373-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip STAMFORD, CT 06902

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Jay Friedman 239/561-4839
Vendor No.: T80976121
NV Business ID: NV19941112701

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % User Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Other (include description): Joinder per NRS 332.195
Contract description: Research Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues subscription-based services for the Division of Enterprise Information
Technology Services' (EITS) professional staff.  This will allow for research of best practices related to cloud-based
services, document production, mobile application development, enterprise software replacement, network design,
and systems strategy.  Pursuant to NRS 332.195, the vendor has authorized EITS to join the City of Las Vegas's
contract with Gartner, Inc.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $170,560.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $85,280.00 per year
Other basis for payment: Invoiced in advance and payable 30 days from date of invoice.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Enterprise IT Services (EITS) continues to pursue Information Technology (IT) advancements that will have statewide
benefits.  To ensure EITS stays current with rapidly advancing IT changes, Gartner has been identified as a leading resource
of expertise on IT advancement in both government and private sectors.  Gartner's breadth of expertise will continue to avoid
false starts as the State implements cloud based services, document production, commences development of mobile
applications, contemplates replacement of key enterprise software, and considers the most efficient design of future
networks.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16381 14



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 332.195 which allows the State of Nevada to join or use contracts of local governments located within or outside the
State with the authorization of the contracting vendor.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lmartin9 02/23/2015 10:02:09 AM
Division Approval lmartin9 02/23/2015 10:02:13 AM
Department Approval lmartin9 02/23/2015 10:02:16 AM
Contract Manager Approval lmartin9 02/23/2015 10:02:23 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 02/23/2015 11:35:31 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 03/02/2015 15:10:13 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16381 14



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14896 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

MENTOR SERVICES CORPORATION

Agency Name: ADMIN - ENTERPRISE IT SERVICES Contractor Name: MENTOR SERVICES CORPORATION
Agency Code: 180 Address: PO BOX 115
Appropriation Unit: 1385-30
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ARDSLEY, NY 10502-0115

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Karen Bernard 914/686-0600
Vendor No.: T29034312A
NV Business ID: NV20131480143

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Facility Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 11/06/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

03/31/2016

Contract term: 2 years and 145 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Training

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides training in Carson City.  This amendment
increases the maximum amount from $30,000 to $57,000 due to continued need for training.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $12,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $18,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $27,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $57,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Enterprise IT Services staff must be kept up to date on the latest computer technology.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14896 15



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Lowest Bidder.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lmartin9 03/03/2015 09:28:10 AM
Division Approval lmartin9 03/03/2015 09:28:14 AM
Department Approval lmartin9 03/03/2015 09:28:17 AM
Contract Manager Approval lmartin9 03/03/2015 09:30:06 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 03/12/2015 13:51:00 PM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 03/13/2015 10:12:30 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14896 15



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13833 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

Morrison Healthcare Services

Agency Name: OFFICE OF VETERAN'S SERVICES Contractor Name: Morrison Healthcare Services
Agency Code: 240 Address: 5801 Peachtree Dunwoody Road
Appropriation Unit: 2561-08
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Atlanta, GA 30342

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Mary Abeyta 480-264-2802
Vendor No.: PUR0002019
NV Business ID: NV20011302439

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 71.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 29.00 % Patient collections, Clark County
Reimbursements, Hospice Charges

Agency Reference #: RFP 1996

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 11/13/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

12/01/2016

Contract term: 4 years and 19 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Food Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides food services for the residents of the Nevada
State Veterans Home.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $2,500,000 to $5,000,000 for
anticipated food service costs.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $2,500,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $2,500,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $5,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The agency does not have the staffing or expertise to perform these duties.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The agency does not have the staffing capacity, technical expertise or resources to fulfill this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13833 16



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #1996 and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 08/03/2012 Anticipated re-bid date: 08/02/2013

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor has provided food services to NSVH for many years.  Service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:42:20 AM
Division Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:42:22 AM
Department Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:42:26 AM
Contract Manager Approval mnobles 02/19/2015 14:04:05 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/16/2015 15:29:25 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 11:18:43 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13833 16



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16412

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS-UNR

Agency Name: NDE - DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Contractor Name: BOARD OF REGENTS-UNR

Agency Code: 300 Address: UNR CONTROLLERS OFFICE
Appropriation Unit: 2712-41 MAIL STOP 0124
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89557-0124

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/784-1233
Vendor No.: D35000816
NV Business ID: Governmental Agency

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2015
Contract term: 152 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Now is the Time Eval

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide for a comprehensive evaluation of the Nevada Now is the Time-Project
Aware grant program. This evaluation includes data collection, creation of strategic plans, measurement of
progress and focus on the overall program objectives.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $131,295.00
Other basis for payment: Reimbursement of expenses billed on a monthly basis.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Provisions of the grant award require the evaluation of the program.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
It is appropriate to have an outside evaluator of this program.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16412 17



d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lyoun7 03/05/2015 09:25:25 AM
Division Approval lyoun7 03/05/2015 09:25:28 AM
Department Approval lyoun7 03/05/2015 09:25:30 AM
Contract Manager Approval lyoun7 03/05/2015 09:25:33 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbrown 03/15/2015 14:53:48 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 03/15/2015 14:53:52 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16412 17



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16349

Legal Entity
Name:

FIRST HEALTH LIFE AND HEALTH

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: FIRST HEALTH LIFE AND HEALTH

Agency Code: 402 Address: INSURANCE COMPANY
Appropriation Unit: 3156-16 6720 B ROCKLEDGE DRIVE, STE700
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip BETHESDA, MA 20817

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: MICHAEL DOBSON 412/865-3674
Vendor No.: T29021178
NV Business ID: NV20141224182

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % TOBACCO FUNDS

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/09/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 343 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: First Health Life

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known
as Senior Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of
eligible members who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with
prescription drug benefits.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $210,300.00
Other basis for payment: 100% of the low income benchmark for Nevada, as provided by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) plus a monthly administrative fee.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Starting January 1, 2006, the Federal Medicare Part D plan went into effect. Nevada¿s Senior Rx and Disability Rx members
must use Medicare Part D as their first resource for prescription drugs.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not authorized to perform the needed services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16349 18



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The State must contract with all prescription drug plans Federally authorized to offer Part D benefits in Nevada. (Section
1860D-23 (b)(2) of Social Security Act)
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Previous contract/Provider Agreement with Aging and Disability Services: Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 02/09/2015 08:00:17 AM
Division Approval lgoulart 02/11/2015 10:02:06 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/18/2015 15:28:17 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 02/24/2015 13:39:35 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/11/2015 14:37:20 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/13/2015 12:28:47 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16349 18



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16363

Legal Entity
Name:

SILVERSCRIPT INSURANCE
COMPANY

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: SILVERSCRIPT INSURANCE
COMPANY

Agency Code: 402 Address: 1 CVS DR
Appropriation Unit: 3156-16
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip WOONSOCKET, RI 02895-6146

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Nora Moujane 401/770-6780
Vendor No.: T29030993
NV Business ID: NV20071305187

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Tobacco Funds

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/09/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 343 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: SilverScript

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known
as Senior Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of
eligible members who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with
prescription drug benefits.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $118,600.00
Other basis for payment: 100% of the low income benchmark for Nevada, as provided by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) plus a monthly administrative fee.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Starting January 1, 2006, the Federal Medicare Part D plan went into effect. Nevada's Senior Rx and Disability Rx members
must use Medicare Part D as their first resource for prescription drugs.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not authorized to perform the needed services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16363 19



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The State must contract with all prescription drug plans Federally authorized to offer Part D benefits in Nevada. (Section
1860D-23 (b)(2) of Social Security Act)
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Previous contract or provider agreement with Aging and Disability Services: Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 02/13/2015 13:38:09 PM
Division Approval tmyler 02/24/2015 10:44:52 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 15:21:16 PM
Contract Manager Approval mmedeiro 03/12/2015 08:17:24 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/12/2015 08:22:04 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/13/2015 12:22:07 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16363 19



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16326

Legal Entity
Name:

WELLCARE PRESCRIPTION
INSURANCE

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: WELLCARE PRESCRIPTION
INSURANCE

Agency Code: 402 Address: INC
Appropriation Unit: 3156-16 8725 HENDERSON RD REN # 1
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip TAMPA, FL 33634-1143

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Lee Genco 813/206-6456
Vendor No.: T27013210
NV Business ID: NV20131722994

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Tobacco Funds

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/09/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 343 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Wellcare Insurance

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program, known
as Senior Rx and Disability Rx, authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on behalf of
eligible members who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage plans with
prescription drug benefits.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $175,400.00
Other basis for payment: 100% of the low income benchmark for Nevada, as provided by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) plus a monthly administrative fee.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Starting January 1, 2006, the Federal Medicare Part D plan went into effect. Nevada's Senior Rx and Disability Rx members
must use Medicare Part D as their first resource for prescription drugs.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not authorized to perform the needed services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16326 20



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The State must contract with all prescription drug plans Federally authorized to offer Part D benefits in Nevada. (Section
1860D-23 (b)(2) of Social Security Act)
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Previous contract with Aging and Disability Services: Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other No Registered Agent required for Non-Title 7 Business Licenses. Non-Entity 7

Business Entity (Exemption Code 006)

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 02/04/2015 12:49:30 PM
Division Approval lgoulart 02/11/2015 10:01:17 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/18/2015 15:31:49 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 02/24/2015 13:42:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/11/2015 14:26:09 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/13/2015 12:26:16 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16326 20



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14079 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
HEARINGS AND APPEALS

Agency Name: HEALTH CARE FINANCING &
POLICY

Contractor Name: DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
HEARINGS AND APPEALS

Agency Code: 403 Address: 2200 S RANCHO DR STE 220
Appropriation Unit: 3158-11
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89102

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/486-2527
Vendor No.: D08000001
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 50.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 50.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Appeals Hearings

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing services ensuring those entitled are
afforded the right to an appeals process when refused Medicaid benefits. This amendment extends the termination
date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount from $41,162 to $118,220 due to an
increased volume of hearings and for the extended termination date.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $41,162.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $77,058.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $118,220.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This service is Federally Mandated by 42 CFR 431.200-246

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This contract is between State agencies

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14079 21



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This is a State agency
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The Department of Administration, Hearings Division has been engaged under contract with the Division of Health Financing
and Policy for several years and services has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval trooker 02/18/2015 16:23:55 PM
Division Approval trooker 02/18/2015 16:23:59 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 15:34:25 PM
Contract Manager Approval cmoriart 03/02/2015 16:20:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval nhovden 03/06/2015 15:45:17 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/06/2015 15:45:26 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14079 21



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16440

Legal Entity
Name:

SOLUTIONS RECOVERY, INC.

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: SOLUTIONS RECOVERY, INC.

Agency Code: 406 Address: 9811 W CHARLESTON BLVD # 2626
Appropriation Unit: 3161-18
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89117

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702/228-8520
Vendor No.: T29014791A
NV Business ID: NV20051545835

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/31/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Residential Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract which continues ongoing residential services  to include a forty bed group home
environment, and training in daily living skills for clients who have been diagnosed with co-occurring disorders.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $3,571,200.00
Other basis for payment: All inclusive rate of $124.00 per client, per day

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Pursuant to NRS 433.334, the Division is authorized to contract with other institutions for care of consumers with mental
illness and related conditions such as those with co-occurring disorders (diagnosed with mental health and substance abuse
issues) and requiring residential treatment services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Currently the agency does not have the necessary facilities or FTE staff with training, time and expertise to provide these
specialized co-occurring disorder services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16440 22



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3169, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 01/02/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SNAMHS, 2008-present, Quality of service has been satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/11/2015 10:45:55 AM
Division Approval alaw1 03/11/2015 10:45:57 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/12/2015 08:27:49 AM
Contract Manager Approval rfine 03/19/2015 08:04:09 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/19/2015 08:48:26 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/19/2015 09:08:51 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16440 22



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13703 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

ZIRMED INC

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: ZIRMED INC

Agency Code: 406 Address: 888 W MARKET ST STE 400
Appropriation Unit: 3161-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LOUISVILLE, KY 40202-4042

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null502/779-4370
Vendor No.: T29016276
NV Business ID: NV20101524863

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: HD 13043

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 09/11/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
The original contract authority proved to be insufficient requiring the need to increase budgeting. It was also
determined that a greater need for services existed. Negotiations between DPBH, NEIS and ZirMed Inc. reached an
impasse that was only recently resolved. If this amendment is not granted a retroactive start date, DPBH and NEIS
will not be able to pay past due invoices that accrued during the extended negotiation period.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Billing Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract which provides claims processing services in conjunction with
online claims management processing systems. This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015
to September 10, 2016 and increases the maximum amount from $39,062.00 to $167,913.50 due to an increased
volume of claims. This amendment also adds the following budget accounts: Behavioral Health Administration (B/A
3168), Northern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services (B/A 3162), Southern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services
(B/A 3161), and Rural Community Health Clinics (B/A 3648).

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $39,062.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $128,851.50
4. New maximum contract amount: $167,913.50

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 09/10/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13703 23



The Department of Health and Human Services, through the Health Division, is establishing an online billing service for
healthcare providers and payers.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This capability does not exist within the state at the present time.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
ZirMed appeared to provide the best value for the cost.
d. Last bid date: 05/15/2012 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Health Division has used this vendor with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:40:27 AM
Division Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:40:29 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 16:03:38 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 03/03/2015 10:04:02 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/16/2015 14:16:14 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/16/2015 16:57:14 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13703 23



Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada
 
 

 
 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

 
ROMAINE GILLILAND 

Director 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Telephone: (775) 

 
 
February 26, 2015 
 

 
TO:  Brenda Berry 
  Budget Analyst 
  Budget Division 
 
THROUGH: Mark Winebarger 

Administrative Services Officer IV
Division of Public and Behavioral Health

 
FROM:  Rick Morse 
  Management Analyst II 
  Division Contract Manager
 
SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT 

(CETS #13703) 
 
 
This contract provides the Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) and Nevada Early Intervention Services (NEIS) 
with billing services to process claims for central billing in both divisions. 
insufficient requiring the need to increase budgeting. It was also determined that a greater need for services existed, therefore 
additional funding sources and programs were added to the contract.
 
Negotiations between DPBH, NEIS and ZirMed Inc. reached an impasse t
 
We therefore request that this contract amendment 
amendment is not granted a retroactive start date, DPBH and NEIS will not be able to pay past due invo
the extended negotiation period.  
 
Any questions or additional information required, please contact Rick Morse at 775
 
Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
 
 
 
 
CC:  Rick Morse, Management Analyst II 
 Division of Public and Behavioral Health

Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 
 
 

RICHARD WHITLEY, MS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV 89706 

Telephone: (775) 684-5975 ·  Fax: (775) 684-4211 

MEMORANDUM  

Administrative Services Officer IV 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

Division Contract Manager 

REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

This contract provides the Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) and Nevada Early Intervention Services (NEIS) 
with billing services to process claims for central billing in both divisions. The original contract authority proved to be 

t requiring the need to increase budgeting. It was also determined that a greater need for services existed, therefore 
additional funding sources and programs were added to the contract. 

Negotiations between DPBH, NEIS and ZirMed Inc. reached an impasse that was only recently resolved.

amendment be accepted with a retroactive start date of October 9, 2014
amendment is not granted a retroactive start date, DPBH and NEIS will not be able to pay past due invo

Any questions or additional information required, please contact Rick Morse at 775-684-5932, or rmorse@health.nv.gov

matter. 

Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

 
 

RICHARD WHITLEY, MS  
Administrator 

 
TRACEY D. GREEN, MD 

Chief Medical Officer 

AMENDMENT – ZirMed Inc. 

This contract provides the Division of Public and Behavioral Health (DPBH) and Nevada Early Intervention Services (NEIS) 
The original contract authority proved to be 

t requiring the need to increase budgeting. It was also determined that a greater need for services existed, therefore 

hat was only recently resolved. 

October 9, 2014.  If this 
amendment is not granted a retroactive start date, DPBH and NEIS will not be able to pay past due invoices that accrued during 

rmorse@health.nv.gov. 

23



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16398

Legal Entity
Name:

Northern Nevada Child and Adolescent
Services

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: Northern Nevada Child and
Adolescent Services

Agency Code: 406 Address: 2655 Enterprise Road
Appropriation Unit: 3162-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sparks, NV 89512

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Jason Holm, ASO II 775-688-1600
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Rental Income

Agency Reference #: C 14845

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Revenue Contract
Contract description: Lease Agreement

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal revenue agreement that continues ongoing rental space to Northern Nevada Child and
Adolescent Services for their residential consumers located in two buildings on the Northern Nevada Adult Mental
Health Services campus.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $184,116.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The need of rental space by Northern Nevada Child and Adolescent Services (NNCAS)

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is an Intrastate Interlocal Contract between public agencies for rental space.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16398 24



Government entity for leased space.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
NNCAS has been renting this space previously from NNAMHS-Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:50:31 AM
Division Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:50:34 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 15:50:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 03/03/2015 10:09:11 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/12/2015 13:47:26 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/16/2015 10:26:46 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16398 24



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13594 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

ENVISION TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS,
INC.

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: ENVISION TECHNOLOGY PARTNERS,
INC.

Agency Code: 406 Address: 7995 E PRENTICE AVE STE 201E
Appropriation Unit: 3213-20
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO 80111-
2713

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null303/914-9797
Vendor No.: T27014352
NV Business ID: NV20101518662

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: HD 13031

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/14/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

12/31/2015

Contract term: 3 years and 139 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Upgrade Data Base

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing services to upgrade and maintain
the state's Immunization Registry (Nevada WebIZ) application, enhance certain reporting elements, data collection,
retrieval, and external database interface features. This amendment increases the maximum amount from $422,900
to $545,978 to fund new cloud-based hosting and web-environment management activities.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $422,900.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $123,078.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $545,978.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Center for Disease Control (CDC) awards grant funding to the State specifically for the purpose of continual
enhancement to Nevada WebIZ. Continually upgrading this database allows the State's Immunization Program to properly
report and track immunization data in accordance with national standards, while improving data quality within the registry.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The Nevada WebIZ is a proprietary application of Envision Technology Partners, and is recognized as such by the CDC.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13594 25



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 120609B
        Approval Date: 02/23/2015
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The Nevada WebIZ is a proprietary application of this vendor.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The Health Division uses this vendor and is satisfied with their work.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 02/27/2015 11:56:03 AM
Division Approval alaw1 02/27/2015 11:56:06 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 16:26:25 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 03/03/2015 09:45:18 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/04/2015 08:39:37 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/16/2015 14:12:19 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/16/2015 17:02:59 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13594 25



25



25



25



25



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16383

Legal Entity
Name:

ACCESS TO HEALTHCARE NETWORK

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: ACCESS TO HEALTHCARE
NETWORK

Agency Code: 406 Address: INC
Appropriation Unit: 3220-21 4001 S VIRGINIA ST STE F
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-6029

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/284-8989
Vendor No.: T29014671
NV Business ID: NV20061133335

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: RFP 3135/C 14849

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 06/30/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Women's Health

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing management services for the division's Women's Health Connection
program for determination of client eligibility and referral including provider network; training; marketing; contract
management; screening and diagnostic services; case management services; treatment services; data collection;
and fiscal management.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $7,200,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The federal grant, from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, mandates that women eligible for the Women's
Health Connection Program, be afforded screenings for breast and cervical cancer.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the capability to provide these services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16383 26



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was awarded the contract based on RFP 3135.
d. Last bid date: 01/15/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This contractor has performed these types of services for the Health Division in the past with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 02/20/2015 14:58:11 PM
Division Approval alaw1 02/20/2015 14:58:14 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/23/2015 15:20:34 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 02/25/2015 10:22:14 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/13/2015 11:56:09 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/13/2015 15:34:32 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16383 26



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16244 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS-NSHE OBO
UNR

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: BOARD OF REGENTS-NSHE OBO
UNR

Agency Code: 406 Address: CONTROLLERS
Appropriation Unit: 3648-08 MAIL STOP 124
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89557

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-784-6001
Vendor No.: D35000849
NV Business ID: Government Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: C 14651

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
This contract amendment needs a retroactive start date because UNSOM believes that the services will reach the
total maximum budgeted amount by at least 2/17/15 based on their preliminary billable services.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 333 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Psychiatric Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which continues ongoing implementation of a
statewide network of telemedicine/tele-psychiatry services to increase access to care in the rural areas on behalf of
individuals with mental and co-occurring substance abuse disorders. This amendment increases the maximum
amount from $49,900 to $69,900 due to an increased volume of services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $49,900.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $20,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $69,900.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Program requires that emergent psychiatric services be provided for seriously mentally ill and seriously emotionally
disturbed consumers.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the resources to carry out this task.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16244 27



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Governmental entity.

Professional Services; indirect rate is not applicable.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This vendor routinely provides services to the division with a satisfactory rating.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:31:06 AM
Division Approval alaw1 03/02/2015 10:31:09 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/04/2015 10:29:46 AM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 03/05/2015 13:56:26 PM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/16/2015 11:52:50 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 08:49:44 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16244 27



Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada
 
 

 
 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

 
RICHARD WHITLEY, MS 

Interim Director 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Telephone: (775) 

 
 
February 25, 2015 
 

 
TO:  Brenda Berry 
  Budget Analyst 
  Budget Division 
 
THROUGH: Mark Winebarger 

Administrative Services Officer IV
Division of Public and Behavioral Health

 
FROM:  Kathryn Baughman
  Agency Director 
  Rural Community Health Services
 
SUBJECT: UNSOM - REQUEST FOR RET

AMENDMENT – ( CETS #
 
 
This memorandum  requests that the Division of Public and Behavioral Health be approved for a retroactive start 
date effective February 17, 2015.  This contract 
that the services will reach the total maximum b
billable services.  Since the contract stat
monthly on the 15th for the previous month 
of this issue.  We will set in place more diligen
UNSOM does not exceed the budgeted amount.
 
Thank you for your consideration in this matter.
 
 
CC:  Rick Morse, Management Analyst
 Division of Public and Behavioral Health

Public Health: Working for a Safer and Healthier Nevada 

STATE OF NEVADA 
 
 
 

RICHARD WHITLEY, MS

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 
DIVISION OF PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

4150 Technology Way, Suite 300 
Carson City, NV 89706 

Telephone: (775) 684-5975 ·  Fax: (775) 684-4211 

MEMORANDUM  

Services Officer IV 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

Kathryn Baughman 

Rural Community Health Services 

REQUEST FOR RETROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT 
CETS #16244) 

that the Division of Public and Behavioral Health be approved for a retroactive start 
date effective February 17, 2015.  This contract amendment needs a retroactive start date because UNSOM believes 
that the services will reach the total maximum budgeted amount by at least 2/17/15 based on their

states Rural Community Health Services (RCHS) should receive invoices
for the previous month and since UNSOM has not submitted invoices timely 

more diligent measures to receive these invoices in a timely manner
UNSOM does not exceed the budgeted amount. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Management Analyst II 
Division of Public and Behavioral Health 

 
 

RICHARD WHITLEY, MS  
Administrator 

 
TRACEY D. GREEN, MD 

Chief Medical Officer 

ROACTIVE START DATE OF CONTRACT 

that the Division of Public and Behavioral Health be approved for a retroactive start 
needs a retroactive start date because UNSOM believes 

ased on their preliminary 
receive invoices 

timely we were unaware 
manner and ensure 

27



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15804 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

CIT FINANCE, LLC. DBA AVAYA
FINANCIAL SERVICES

Agency Name: DHHS - WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: CIT FINANCE, LLC. DBA AVAYA
FINANCIAL SERVICES

Agency Code: 407 Address: 10201 CENTURION PKWY N #100
Appropriation Unit: 3228-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null949-306-4015
Vendor No.: T81077517
NV Business ID: NV20111396654

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 30.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 70.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/08/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/30/2019

Contract term: 5 years and 85 days

4. Type of contract: Lease/Purchase Agreement
Contract description: Tech Refresh

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original lease to provide financing for equipment required to upgrade the
Division of Welfare and Supportive Services telephone system. This amendment increases the amount from
$2,095,604.19 to $2,166,676.77 to incorporate schedule number 0030 to lease number x263772 for
telecommunication equipment located at the Durango Office.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,984,096.80
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $111,507.39
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $71,072.58
4. New maximum contract amount: $2,166,676.77

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Telecom systems must be kept up to date to provide continuous support to customers.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the resources or expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15804 28



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3067, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed committee. Financing through Avaya Financial Services was included in the bid
for service.
d. Last bid date: 02/01/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/31/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with EITS and performing satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 03/02/2015 09:04:42 AM
Division Approval msmit5 03/09/2015 12:37:33 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/12/2015 11:52:22 AM
Contract Manager Approval sneudaue 03/13/2015 07:52:58 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/16/2015 15:05:25 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 11:42:26 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15804 28



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15607 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

BERES, GINNIE DBA ROADRUNNER
JANITORIAL SERVICE

Agency Name: DHHS - WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: BERES, GINNIE DBA ROADRUNNER
JANITORIAL SERVICE

Agency Code: 407 Address: 5911 VICKI ANN RD
Appropriation Unit: 3233-07
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PAHRUMP, NV 89048-7440

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/727-4405
Vendor No.: T29032429
NV Business ID: NV20131113914

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 33.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 67.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2014

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
The Division of Welfare and Supportive Services requests retroactive approval back to March 1, 2015 for a rate
increase of $110.00 per month due to renovations performed to the building by the landlord which increased the
service workload.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2018

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing janitorial services for the Division
of Welfare and Supportive Services Pahrump District Office. This amendment revises the consideration language,
increases the maximum amount from $47,940 to $52,340, and provides retroactive approval for a rate increase of
$110 per month for additional janitorial services for 1,500 square feet beginning March 1, 2015.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $32,400.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $15,540.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $4,400.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $52,340.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This contract is to ensure that a clean and sanitary work environment exists for staff and the clients served by DWSS.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Janitorial services are not offered by the State of Nevada.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15607 29



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor has been providing stasifactory service and was the lowest bidder.
d. Last bid date: 03/13/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/13/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contractor is currently under contract with DWSS and performing janitorial services in a satisfactory manner.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Sole Proprietor

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 03/04/2015 11:32:58 AM
Division Approval msmit5 03/09/2015 14:43:19 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/11/2015 11:42:07 AM
Contract Manager Approval sneudaue 03/11/2015 11:47:59 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/16/2015 11:02:17 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 11:09:06 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15607 29



RICHARD WHITLEY 

Interim Director 

 

STEVE H. FISHER 

Administrator 

 
 
 

 

MICHAEL J. WILLDEN 

Director 

 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION OF WELFARE AND SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
1470 College Parkway 

Carson City, Nevada 89706-7924 

(775) 684-0500   ●   Fax (775) 684-0656 

 

 

 

February 25, 2015 

 

TO:   ERIC KING, BUDGET ANALYST IV 

   BUDGET AND PLANNING DIVISION 

 

THROUGH:  RICHARD WHITLEY, INTERIM DIRECTOR 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES  

 

FROM:   STEVE H. FISHER, ADMINISTRATOR 

 

Re:  Retroactive approval of the Contract Amendment between the Division of 

Welfare and Supportive Services and Ginnie Beres, DBA: Roadrunner 

Cleaning and Janitorial Services. 

 

The Division of Welfare and Supportive Services (DWSS) is requesting a retroactive 

approval of the above referenced Contract Amendment to March 1, 2015. 

 

The landlord for the DWSS Pahrump District Office performed renovations to the 

building, which removed approximately 1,500 square feet of carpeting and 

replaced it with Vinyl Composition Tile (VCT). The new VCT will require additional 

maintenance to include daily dust-mopping followed by wet mopping with a 

neutral pH cleaner and weekly buffing to maintain a high shine. Due to the 

increase of time and materials the vendor is requesting a rate increase of $110.00 

per month.   

 

DWSS is requesting that the effective date of the rate increase be approved 

retroactively to March 1, 2015. 
 

Thank you for your assistance in this matter.   

 

Sondra L. Neudauer 
 

Sondra L. Neudauer 

Management Analyst II, Contract Manager 

Division of Welfare and Supportive Services 

 

 

 

 

 

Working for the Welfare of ALL Nevadans 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 

Governor 

29



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12930 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

CLARK COUNTY

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: CLARK COUNTY

Agency Code: 407 Address: DISTRICT ATTORNEY FAMILY SUPRT
Appropriation Unit: 3239-16 1900 E. Flamingo Rd, Suite 100
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89119

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null702-671-9500
Vendor No.: T81026920T
NV Business ID: Governmental Intity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % County Share

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: CSEP

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the
Division of Welfare and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1)
requires counties to provide child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.
Under this contract the county District Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for
providing federal Title IV-D services for local, intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This
amendment extends the termination date of the agreement from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the
consideration language, and increases the maximum amount from $97,244,238 to $167,745,072 due to the continued
need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $97,244,238.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $70,500,834.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $167,745,072.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To be eligible for a Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Block Grant, states must operate a child support
enforcement program, per Title IV-A of the Social Security Act, Section 402(a)(2); (42 USC 602).

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 12930 30



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
States may enter into interlocal contracts to administer the CSEP, per 45 CFR 302.10; 45 CFR 302.34; 45 CFR 303.107.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
An RFP is not a requirement of an interlocal agreement.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 12/10/2014 11:18:39 AM
Division Approval msmit5 03/05/2015 11:28:54 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/09/2015 13:33:18 PM
Contract Manager Approval sjon23 03/10/2015 12:33:52 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/16/2015 10:32:26 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 10:59:08 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 12930 30



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12946 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

DOUGLAS COUNTY

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: DOUGLAS COUNTY

Agency Code: 407 Address: DOUGLAS CO DA/CHILD SUPPORT
Appropriation Unit: 3239-16 1625 8th Street
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip MINDEN, NV 89423

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Connie Wenner 775/782-9807
Vendor No.: T40174400B
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % County Share

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: CSEP

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of
Welfare and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires
counties to provide child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under
this contract the county District Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing
federal Title IV-D services for local, intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language,
and increases the maximum amount of the agreement from $1,655,945 to $2,895,043 due to the continued need for
these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,655,945.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $1,239,098.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $2,895,043.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To be eligible for a Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Block Grant, states must operate a child support
enforcement program, per Title IV-A of the Social Security Act, Section 402(a)(2); (42 USC 602).

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 12946 31



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
States may enter into interlocal contracts to administer the CSEP, per 45 CFR 302.10; 45 CFR 302.34; 45 CFR 303.107.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
An RFP is not a requirement of an interlocal agreement.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 12/15/2014 09:32:45 AM
Division Approval msmit5 02/11/2015 08:14:25 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/18/2015 16:54:25 PM
Contract Manager Approval sneudaue 02/19/2015 16:12:26 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/13/2015 14:20:20 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 09:06:05 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 12946 31



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12961 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

MINERAL COUNTY

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: MINERAL COUNTY

Agency Code: 407 Address: MINERAL CO DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Appropriation Unit: 3239-16 166 E Street
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip HAWTHORNE, NV 89415

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/945-3636
Vendor No.: T40291300G
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % County Share

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 06/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: CSEP

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of
Welfare and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires
counties to provide child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under
this contract the county District Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing
federal Title IV-D services for local, intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This
amendment extends the termination date of the agreement from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the
consideration language, and increases the maximum amount from $454,978 to $797,815 due to the continued need
for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $454,978.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $342,837.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $797,815.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To be eligible for a Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Block Grant, states must operate a child support
enforcement program, per Title IV-A of the Social Security Act, Section 402(a)(2); (42 USC 602).

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 12961 32



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
States may enter into interlocal contracts to administer the CSEP, per 45 CFR 302.10; 45 CFR 302.34; 45 CFR 303.107.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
An RFP is not a requirement of an interlocal agreement.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 12/19/2014 16:13:08 PM
Division Approval msmit5 03/05/2015 11:26:08 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/09/2015 13:38:28 PM
Contract Manager Approval sjon23 03/10/2015 12:31:57 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/18/2015 10:53:56 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 10:55:10 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 12961 32



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13009 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

WASHOE COUNTY

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: WASHOE COUNTY

Agency Code: 407 Address: WASHOE CO DISTRICT ATTORNEY
Appropriation Unit: 3239-16 1 South Sierra Street
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89501

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/328-3200
Vendor No.: T40283400AG
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 66.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 34.00 % County Share

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 5 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: CSEP

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original interlocal agreement, which provides ongoing services for the Division of
Welfare and Supportive Service, Child Support Enforcement Program.  NRS 425.370 and 425.380 (1) requires
counties to provide child support enforcement services for local applicants through county participation.  Under
this contract the county District Attorney's offices will receive the approved federal reimbursement for providing
federal Title IV-D services for local, intrastate, and interstate cases as defined under 45 CFR 304.20.  This
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2017, revises the consideration language,
and increases the maximum amount from $13,212,506 to $23,078,379 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $13,212,506.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $9,865,873.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $23,078,379.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To be eligible for a Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Block Grant, states must operate a child support
enforcement program, per Title IV-A of the Social Security Act, Section 402(a)(2); (42 USC 602).

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13009 33



States may enter into interlocal contracts to administer the CSEP, per 45 CFR 302.10; 45 CFR 302.34; 45 CFR 303.107.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
An RFP is not a requirement of an interlocal agreement.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently under contract with DWSS and providing satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 12/18/2014 15:42:33 PM
Division Approval msmit5 02/11/2015 08:15:53 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/18/2015 16:51:47 PM
Contract Manager Approval sneudaue 02/19/2015 16:13:57 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/13/2015 14:20:55 PM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 09:00:19 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13009 33



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14816 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

NDI PLUMBING, INC.

Agency Name: ADJUTANT GENERAL & NATIONAL
GUARD

Contractor Name: NDI PLUMBING, INC.

Agency Code: 431 Address: 39 GLEN CARRAN CIR
Appropriation Unit: 3650-07
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SPARKS, NV 89431-5826

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: NEIL DEMENT 775/745-8791
Vendor No.: T32001385
NV Business ID: 20041568607

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 10.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 80.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 10.00 % RENTAL INCOME
Agency Reference #: NMD# 025-13

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 08/16/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

07/01/2015

Contract term: 3 years and 319 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: NDI Plumbing

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides plumbing services on an as needed basis at
Office of the Military locations in Northern Nevada.  The scope of work for plumbing services could range from
replacing/installing sink faucets to repairing major sewer lines, as well as drain, waste and venting issues. The
amendment extends the termination date from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2017 and increases the maximum amount of
the contract from $48,000 to $96,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $48,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $48,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $96,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Plumbing services are required throughout the year as maintenance or repairs are needed.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have all necessary equipment to perform adequate plumbing repair and maintenance.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14816 34



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NDI was the only vendor to submit a proposal from the Reno Gazzette Journal ad and phone solicitations.
d. Last bid date: 04/19/2013 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval vradford 03/04/2015 11:47:51 AM
Division Approval ctyle1 03/10/2015 08:25:51 AM
Department Approval ctyle1 03/10/2015 08:25:54 AM
Contract Manager Approval vradford 03/10/2015 08:42:27 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jborrowm 03/10/2015 09:58:27 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 03/10/2015 09:58:32 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14816 34



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16405

Legal Entity
Name:

ABC Fire and Cylinder Service

Agency Name: ADJUTANT GENERAL & NATIONAL
GUARD

Contractor Name: ABC Fire and Cylinder Service

Agency Code: 431 Address: 1025 TELEGRAPH ST
Appropriation Unit: All Appropriations
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-856-5204
Vendor No.: T81093069
NV Business ID: 19861017903

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 50.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 50.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 04/14/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 14 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Fire Extinguish Svc

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide statewide fire extinguisher service, repair, inspections and maintenance to the
agency's fire extinguishers.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $99,900.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Office of the Military currently has fire extinguishers statewide and no current contract for services related to these fire
extinguishers.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not possess the requisite skills and certifications to perform maintenance and repairs to our fire
extinguishers.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16405 35



This contractor was chose as the best qualified contract by the evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ctyle1 03/03/2015 17:47:47 PM
Division Approval ctyle1 03/03/2015 17:47:50 PM
Department Approval ctyle1 03/03/2015 17:47:53 PM
Contract Manager Approval vradford 03/10/2015 15:52:46 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jborrowm 03/13/2015 10:35:58 AM
BOE Agenda Approval jborrowm 03/13/2015 10:36:03 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16405 35



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16368

Legal Entity
Name:

DATAWORKS PLUS LLC

Agency Name: DPS-RECORDS & TECHNOLOGY Contractor Name: DATAWORKS PLUS LLC
Agency Code: 655 Address: 728 N PLEASANTBURG DR
Appropriation Unit: 4709-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GREENVILLE, SC 29607

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Todd Pastorini 925/240-9010
Vendor No.: PUR0004245
NV Business ID: NV20101769693

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Admin Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Software Support

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide ongoing software and hardware support for the General Services Division's
National Institute of Standards and Technology System, which accepts records for further forwarding to the Federal
Bureau of Investigation.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $151,095.91
Other basis for payment: at a cost per line item as delineated on pages one through three of maintenance agreement

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This is ongoing maintenance and support for the NIST software program.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
There are no qualified state employees in this area who provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16368 36



This vendor provides ongoing maintenance and support of a system already purchased and installed as a result of a
competitive solicitation, therefore bids were not solicited for this contract.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This vendor has been under contract with the General Service Division in the past. The service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jbauer 03/10/2015 19:03:59 PM
Division Approval jdibasil 03/11/2015 08:46:10 AM
Department Approval jbauer 03/11/2015 09:12:10 AM
Contract Manager Approval jbauer 03/11/2015 09:12:13 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/11/2015 11:55:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 03/11/2015 13:07:52 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:34:18 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16368 36



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16428

Legal Entity
Name:

CH SPENCER & COMPANY

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE Contractor Name: CH SPENCER & COMPANY
Agency Code: 702 Address: 1075 S PIONEER RD
Appropriation Unit: 1511-91
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84104

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null801/975-0300
Vendor No.: T81099774
NV Business ID: NV19961206322

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: 15-34

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/01/2015
Contract term: 244 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Pumps in Gallagher

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to disassemble, tear down, and repair three pumps at the Gallagher Fish Hatchery for Brood
Canopy Fish.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $55,307.23
Other basis for payment: upon approval and completion of work

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The pumps have become corroded over the years and are now necessary to start a Brood Fish program at the facility.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the staff and expertise to remove and repair the pumps.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16428 37



The only contractor that responded.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval kdailey 03/06/2015 15:11:42 PM
Division Approval kdailey 03/06/2015 15:11:44 PM
Department Approval eobrien 03/06/2015 15:21:56 PM
Contract Manager Approval kdailey 03/06/2015 15:24:06 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 03/10/2015 06:48:31 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:32:49 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16428 37



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16413

Legal Entity
Name:

DOUGLAS COUNTY TAHOE DOUGLAS
FIRE PROTECTION

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: DOUGLAS COUNTY TAHOE
DOUGLAS FIRE PROTECTION

Agency Code: 706 Address: PO BOX 919
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ZEPHYR COVE, NV 89448

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-588-3591
Vendor No.: T40174400Z
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Fire Protection District Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-001

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing services as under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In
accordance with this agreement, the division and district will work closely to maintain effective wildfire management
regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $120,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $15,000.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginning July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District will work closely together to maintain effective
wildfire management without duplication of efforts with federal cooperators to quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of
jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to jointly take action as necessary to safely and
effectively contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which the fire
protection district will make payment to the division.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16413 38



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District is currently under contract with the Division of Forestry for the Wildland Fire Protection
Program. The contract will expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 03/05/2015 16:34:46 PM
Division Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:49:11 AM
Department Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:49:14 AM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 03/09/2015 07:48:58 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/10/2015 19:43:22 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:47:14 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16413 38



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16417

Legal Entity
Name:

Eureka County

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: Eureka County
Agency Code: 706 Address: P.O. Box 714
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Eureka, NV 89316

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-237-5372
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Eureka County Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-002

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In
accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely to maintain effective wildfire
management regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $37,500.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginning July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Eureka County will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire management
without duplication of efforts with federal cooperators to quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of jurisdiction and/or
ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively
contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which the county
will make payment to the division.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16417 39



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Eureka County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Eureka County is currently under contract with the Division of Forestry for the Wildland Fire Protection Program. The contract
will expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 03/05/2015 16:43:33 PM
Division Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:55 AM
Department Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:59 AM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 03/09/2015 07:49:15 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/10/2015 19:45:05 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:46:02 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16417 39



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16420

Legal Entity
Name:

Lander County

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: Lander County
Agency Code: 706 Address: 315 S. Humboldt Street
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Battle Mountain, NV 89820

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775-635-2885
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Lander County Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-003

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing services under the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In
accordance with this agreement, the division and the county will work closely to maintain effective wildfire
management regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $300,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $37,500.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginning July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Lander County will work closely together to maintain effective wildfire management
without duplication of efforts with federal cooperators to quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of jurisdiction and/or
ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to jointly take action as necessary to safely and effectively
contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which the county
will make payment to the division.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16420 40



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Lander County is  political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Lander County is currently under contract with the Division of Forestry for the Wildland Fire Protection Program. The contract
will expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 03/05/2015 16:32:48 PM
Division Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:38 AM
Department Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:41 AM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 03/09/2015 07:49:30 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/10/2015 19:39:43 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:48:44 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16420 40



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16121 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

MCGINLEY & ASSOCIATES INC

Agency Name: DCNR - ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

Contractor Name: MCGINLEY & ASSOCIATES INC

Agency Code: 709 Address: 815 MAESTRO DR
Appropriation Unit: 3187-75
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-2387

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Joe McGinley 775/829-2245
Vendor No.: T81202459
NV Business ID: NV20021218343

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 43.00 % Hazerdous Waste Fees
X Federal Funds 7.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 50.00 % Interim Fluid Management Trust
Agency Reference #: RFP #3133

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 01/01/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 02/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

12/30/2019

Contract term: 4 years and 364 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Environmental EMAR

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides environmental mitigation, assessment, and
remediation services on an as needed basis.  This amendment extends the termination date from December 30, 2018
to December 30, 2019 and increases the maximum amount from $4,500,000 to $4,850,000 due to additional funding
being made available to support the Abandoned Mine Site Program activities.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $4,500,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $350,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $4,850,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Environmental contamination can occur or be identified statewide.  The State needs to be able to protect the public welfare.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not have the staffing or expertise available to perform these services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16121 41



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3133, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 07/22/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
NDEP - Bureau of Corrective Actions - The contractor has current and past contracts with BCA and has performed
satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lfleming 12/30/2014 16:10:34 PM
Division Approval glovato 01/05/2015 09:49:46 AM
Department Approval demme 01/05/2015 09:58:29 AM
Contract Manager Approval sgotta 01/21/2015 16:13:49 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/11/2015 16:04:38 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/26/2015 10:41:55 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16121 41



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 12639 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

Windsor Solutions, Inc.

Agency Name: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION Contractor Name: Windsor Solutions, Inc.
Agency Code: 709 Address: 4386 SW Macadam Ave, Suite 101
Appropriation Unit: 3187-60
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip Portland, OR 97239

If "No" please explain:  Pending WP # C32016 will provide
adequate budget authority.

Contact/Phone: Simon Watson 503-675-7833

Vendor No.: T27010424
NV Business ID: NV20111356993

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: RFP #2011 DEP#12-009

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/11/2011

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/30/2016

Contract term: 4 years and 356 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Technical Support

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which provides technical support for the National
Environmental Exchange Network.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from $675,000 to $1,012,000 to
expand the scope of work to include the modernization of water quality databases. The modernization is expected to
significantly reduce staff time, as one consolidated web interface will be provided to staff eliminating the need for
staff to work directly with the individual outdated Microsoft Access databases.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $300,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $375,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $337,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $1,012,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Exchange network is the means by which States can share data with USEPA and other partners.  USEPA has provided
grant funds to enable the State to participate. This contact provides technical support to enable on-going development of
data exchanges with USEPA.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 12639 42



The Division has a limited IT staff and the skills needed are very specialized.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor received the highest score in a competitive procurement process
d. Last bid date: 07/18/2011 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
NDEP had a contract with the vendor for the following periods:
3/05 - 01/10
06/06 - 12/07
05/10 - 06/11

The vendor's work was excellent.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lfleming 02/25/2015 11:16:56 AM
Division Approval dgaskin 02/26/2015 14:24:12 PM
Department Approval dgaskin 02/26/2015 14:24:29 PM
Contract Manager Approval abasham 02/27/2015 10:20:59 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/03/2015 16:10:57 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/07/2015 15:50:33 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 14:51:22 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 12639 42



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 10603 Amendment

Number:
5

Legal Entity
Name:

XEROX STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS,
INC.

Agency Name: DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES Contractor Name: XEROX STATE & LOCAL SOLUTIONS,
INC.

Agency Code: 810 Address: PO BOX 201322
Appropriation Unit: 4717-15
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip DALLAS, TX 75320

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Debbie Sheren 602-300-8886 320/257-
1463

Vendor No.: PUR0003261B
NV Business ID: NV19911026030

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2010-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

X Highway Funds 100.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: ZA0433

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 10/13/2009

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 6 years and 262 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Licensing/Tax Admin

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the fifth amendment to the original contract, which provides the standardized services and systems support
relating to commercial vehicle licensing and tax administration for the Motor Carrier Division operations.  This
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and increases the maximum amount
from $1,330,626.24 to $1,553,034.60 utilizing the first of five single year renewal options.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $467,236.16
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $863,390.08
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $222,408.36
4. New maximum contract amount: $1,553,034.60

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The DMV is a member of the Internation Fuel Tax Agreement (IFTA) as defined under NRS366.175 and the International
Registration Plan (IRP) as defined under NRS 706.826; and such ar required to collect registration and fuel taxes for 56
jurisdictions utilizing their fee schedules, tax rates, and credit policies.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 10603 43



8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
These are unique tax and licensing computer systems in accordance with the IFTA and IRP mandates.  It is cost and time
prohibitive to design, program and maintain comparable systems with the existing data.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 45
        Approval Date: 05/22/2014
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Currently contracted with DMV since 1991.  Service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bmacke1 02/26/2015 10:09:21 AM
Division Approval bmacke1 02/26/2015 10:10:17 AM
Department Approval akeillor 02/26/2015 11:00:57 AM
Contract Manager Approval hazevedo 02/26/2015 12:14:18 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cwatson 03/23/2015 09:24:14 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/23/2015 09:24:19 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 10603 43



43



43



43



43



43



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14574 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS Contractor Name: HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.
Agency Code: 950 Address: 27 CORPORATE HILL DR
Appropriation Unit: 1338-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LITTLE ROCK, AR 72205-4537

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null501/218-7810
Vendor No.: T29028424
NV Business ID: NV20011223201

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 33% Premium Revenue 67% State Subsidy

Agency Reference #: RFP #3010

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/09/2013

Anticipated BOE meeting date 05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2017

Contract term: 6 years and 358 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Dental Claims Admin

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides dental claims administration.  This amendment
extends the termination date from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2020 and increases the maximum amount from
$2,812,000 to $4,724,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $2,812,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $1,912,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $4,724,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2020

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Public Employees' Benefits Program (PEBP) offers dental coverage as a part of its core benefits package.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The state of Nevada does not pay medical or dental claims.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14574 44



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #3010, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee and was ratified by the PEBP Board.
d. Last bid date: 01/01/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2020

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
HealthSCOPE is PEBP's current administrator for medical benefits and administers the HSA and FSA for participants of the
program.  PEBP is very satisified by the services provided by HealthSCOPE.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 03/06/2015 10:24:52 AM
Division Approval mstron1 03/06/2015 10:24:57 AM
Department Approval cglover 03/06/2015 10:46:56 AM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 03/06/2015 10:48:52 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 03/17/2015 10:08:24 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 13:14:24 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14574 44



44



44



44



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13330 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS Contractor Name: HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.
Agency Code: 950 Address: 27 CORPORATE HILL DR
Appropriation Unit: 1338-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LITTLE ROCK, AR 72205-4537

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null501/218-7810
Vendor No.: T29028424
NV Business ID: NV20011223201

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 33% Premium Revenue 67% State Subsidy

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2012

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2016

Contract term: 8 years and 1 day

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: National PPO

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides a medical Preferred Provider Organization
network for PEBP participants who reside outside of Nevada and for those who live in Nevada but choose to seek
medical services out-of-state.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2020
and increases the maximum amount from $8,900,000 to $11,900,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $8,900,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $3,000,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $11,900,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2020

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
PEBP provides medical coverage for its participants, in state and out of state as a part of the standard benefits package
offered to active employees and retirees.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State of Nevada does not maintain medical networks.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13330 45



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen by the evaluation committee and ratified by the PEBP Board for its ability to provide network
discounts, beneficial negotiation rates, scope of network availability and noo contract exceptions.  This vendor is also PEBP's
current Third Party Administrator.
d. Last bid date: 09/01/2006 Anticipated re-bid date: 09/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
HealthSCOPE Benefits is PEBP's current Third Party Administrator, dental claims administrator and FSA administrator.
PEBP is very satisified by the services provided by HealthSCOPE.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 02/17/2015 13:48:18 PM
Division Approval mstron1 02/17/2015 13:48:21 PM
Department Approval cglover 02/17/2015 17:02:22 PM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 02/18/2015 08:48:39 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 02/26/2015 11:20:03 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 13:11:02 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13330 45



45



45



45



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 11825 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS Contractor Name: HEALTHSCOPE BENEFITS, INC.
Agency Code: 950 Address: 27 CORPORATE HILL DR
Appropriation Unit: 1338-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LITTLE ROCK, AR 72205-4537

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Mary Catherine Person 501/218-7810
Vendor No.: T29028424
NV Business ID: NV20011223201

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2011-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 33% Premium Revenue 67% State Subsidy

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 02/08/2011

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2016

Contract term: 9 years and 144 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: TPA

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which provides Third Party Administrator services to the PEBP
plan.  This amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2020 and increases the
maximum amount from $29,500,000 to $46,100,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $29,500,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $16,600,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $46,100,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/30/2020

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Public Employees' Benefits Program requires a Third Party Administrator to process medical, dental and vision helath
claims for the self funded PPO Plan.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees' are not licensed to provide this service and PEBP does not have the infrastructure to support such a large
project.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 11825 46



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor received the highest score from the evaluation committee and was ratified by the PEBP Board.  Criteria included
ability to perform required functions, cost, conformance with the terms of the RFP.
d. Last bid date: 10/01/2010 Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
HealthSCOPE Benefits currently provides PEBP's third party administrator services, voluntary flexible spending account
(FSA) administration and provides the national PPO medical network.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 03/02/2015 10:20:12 AM
Division Approval mstron1 03/02/2015 10:20:14 AM
Department Approval cglover 03/02/2015 11:10:09 AM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 03/02/2015 11:15:25 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 03/03/2015 09:51:04 AM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 13:13:05 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 11825 46



46



46



46



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 11994 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

HOMETOWN HEALTH PLAN, INC.

Agency Name: PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS Contractor Name: HOMETOWN HEALTH PLAN, INC.
Agency Code: 950 Address: HMO PREMIUM
Appropriation Unit: 1338-08 830 HARVARD WAY
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502-2055

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null775/982-3181
Vendor No.: T27019413
NV Business ID: NV19871019956

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % 33% Premium Revenue 67% State Subsidy

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2011

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
Amendment #2 is retroactive to February 1, 2015, due to a shortfall in the contract authority and a delay in
notification from PEBP's accounting staff.  PEBP staff has addressed this issue with training in order to avoid this in
the future.

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Northern NV HMO

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which provides a Health Maintenance Organization for
Northern Nevada participants of the PEBP program.  This amendment increases the maximum amount from
$247,200,000 to $272,200,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $247,200,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $25,000,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $272,200,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Access to medical care and services are provided as a benefit to active and retired plan participants.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not licensed to provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 11994 47



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was chosen because of its ability to provide health care providers in all of the geographic locations required by
PEBP in the RFP and because their pricing was reasonable.
d. Last bid date: 10/01/2010 Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2014

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Hometown Health is PEBP's current northern Nevada PPO network and PEBP's current northern Nevada HMO.  PEBP and
PEBP participants are satisified with the services provided by Hometown Health.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mstron1 02/17/2015 13:39:22 PM
Division Approval mstron1 02/17/2015 13:39:25 PM
Department Approval cglover 02/17/2015 16:46:00 PM
Contract Manager Approval mstron1 02/24/2015 09:03:18 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jstrandb 02/24/2015 14:11:37 PM
BOE Agenda Approval cwatson 03/18/2015 13:15:39 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 11994 47



 
Memorandum 

 
 
DATE: February 17, 2015 

TO: Julie Strandberg, Budget Analyst 

FROM: Megan Sloan, Management Analyst 

SUBJECT: Retroactive Contract Amendment   

 
 
 
 
Attached is a retroactive contract amendment between PEBP and Hometown Health Plan 
for HMO services for northern Nevada.  Because of a shortfall in the contract authority 
PEBP will be unable to pay premiums due for participants of PEBP who are enrolled in 
the northern Nevada HMO.  The shortfall was identified in February and PEBP initiated 
the contract amendment as soon as possible.   
The reason for the late notification of the shortfall in contract authority has been 
addressed to prevent this scenario in the future.   
Your consideration in approval of this contract amendment is greatly appreciated.  If you 
have any questions or I can be of assistance in any way, please contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS PROGRAM 
901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 1001 

Carson City, Nevada  89701 

Telephone  (775) 684-7000  ·   (800) 326-5496 

                  Fax  (775) 684-7028 

                   www.pebp.state.nv.us 

 

LEO M. DROZDOFF, P.E. 
 Board Chairman 

BRIAN SANDOVAL 
Governor 

 
              

 

JAMES R. WELLS, CPA  
Executive Officer 

 

 

47



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16388

Legal Entity
Name:

G L Suite, Inc.

Agency Name: BDC LICENSING BOARDS &
COMMISSIONS

Contractor Name: G L Suite, Inc.

Agency Code: BDC Address: G L Soultions
Appropriation Unit: B011 - All Categories P.O. Box 591
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Bend, OR 97709

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: null541-312-3662
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20101523765

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % License fees paid by contractors
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 04/14/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 10/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 201 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Licensing Data Base

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to replace the Nevada State Contractors Board's existing licensing, enforcement, and cash
management system, which has reached the end of its useful life.  The replacement system will integrate the
Board's licensing, enforcement, and accounting functions; provide detailed enforcement case management,
detailed application processes and contractor license maintenance; online services; cash management; and
document imaging capabilities.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $850,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Obsolescence of current product which has reached end of support.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Complexity of project to develop a licensure and enforcement management database.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16388 48



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
G L Solutions' offer best met agency needs in terms of compatibility with business rules, product scalability and adaptability
of platform.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Board of Veterinary Medical Examiners 2001 - Board of Accountancy 2000 -  State Fire Marshal 2003 - Board of Chiropractic
2003 -  Board of Private Investigators 2007 -  Board of Occupational Therapy 2009 - Board of Examiners for Alcohol, Drug &
Gambling Counselors 2013 -  Nevada State Bar 2014 -  Board of Cosmetology 2014 - PreBoard of Audiology adn Speech
Pathology 2013 -  Board of Funeral and Cemetery Services 2014 - Board of Dental Examiner 2006 - Present: References
have been verified.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Other Inc.

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dlumbert 02/24/2015 07:47:53 AM
Division Approval dlumbert 02/24/2015 07:47:57 AM
Department Approval dlumbert 02/24/2015 07:48:00 AM
Contract Manager Approval dlumbert 02/24/2015 07:48:03 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 02/24/2015 09:40:38 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/16/2015 08:50:09 AM
BOE Agenda Approval nhovden 03/18/2015 09:33:09 AM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16388 48



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16337

Legal Entity
Name:

AMERICAN SEATING COMPANY

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: AMERICAN SEATING COMPANY

Agency Code: MSA Address: 401 AMERICAN SEATING CENTER
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49504

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Randy Herman 563-554-3296
Vendor No.: PUR00005596
NV Business ID: NV19881022128

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: 3146

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/13/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 163 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Educational Furnitur

5. Purpose of contract:
The purpose of this contract is to establish a Participating Addendum with the Western States Contracting Alliance-
National Association of State Purchasing Officers contract for educational furniture led by the State of Utah.  This
Participating Addendum is for general educational furniture, residential furniture, cafeteria furniture and lecture
hall/auditorium furniture.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: Per invoice for furniture as needed.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies, schools and universities require various types of furniture

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a specialized furniture and service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16337 MSA 1



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was selected by an evaluation committee based on scored criteria.
d. Last bid date: 06/12/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 02/24/2015 13:04:50 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 02/24/2015 13:05:00 PM
Department Approval ktarter 02/27/2015 17:37:12 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 03/02/2015 08:30:26 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 03/05/2015 13:19:00 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 03/13/2015 12:03:55 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16337 MSA 1



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16338

Legal Entity
Name:

AMTAB MANUFACTURING
CORPORATION

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: AMTAB MANUFACTURING
CORPORATION

Agency Code: MSA Address: 652 N. HIGHLAND AVE
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip AUROA, IL 60506

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: DOSS SAMIKKANNU 630-301-7600
Vendor No.: PUR0005607
NV Business ID: NV20151010242

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % VARIOUS

Agency Reference #: 3146

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
Yes or   b. other effective date: NA

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/13/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 74 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Educational Furnitur

5. Purpose of contract:
The purpose of this contract is to establish a Participating Addendum with the Western States Contracting Alliance-
National Association of State Purchasing Officers contract for educational furniture led by the State of Utah.  This
Participating Addendum is for general educational furniture, residential furniture, cafeteria furniture and lecture
hall/auditorium furniture.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $2,000,000.00
Other basis for payment: As invoiced

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies, cities, counties, school districts and universities require various kinds of furniture.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a specialized furniture and service

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16338 MSA 2



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was selected by an evaluation committee based on scored criteria.
d. Last bid date: 06/12/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ldeloach 02/24/2015 13:04:23 PM
Division Approval ldeloach 02/24/2015 13:04:26 PM
Department Approval ktarter 02/27/2015 17:37:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval gburchet 03/02/2015 08:30:04 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 03/05/2015 13:46:35 PM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 03/13/2015 12:09:07 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16338 MSA 2



BOE For Board Use Only

Date: 04/14/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16376

Legal Entity
Name:

Western States Liquefied Petroleum Gas
Co.

Agency Name: MSA MASTER SERVICE
AGREEMENTS

Contractor Name: Western States Liquefied Petroleum
Gas Co.

Agency Code: MSA Address: 1207 Water St.
Appropriation Unit: 9999 - All Categories
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Elko, NV 89801

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Julie Kraus 775-7535950
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV19931084350

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Various

Agency Reference #: RFQ 3064

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon Board of

Examiner's approval?
No or   b. other effective date 04/14/2015

Anticipated BOE meeting date 04/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2016
Contract term: 292 days

4. Type of contract: MSA
Contract description: Bulk Fuel Purchase

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for bulk fuel and delivery services statewide, on an as-needed basis for state-owned tanks.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $5,000,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State agencies have the need for bulk fuel and delivery services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State does not employ bulk fuel and delivery services for the State.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16376 MSA 3



Pursuant to RFQ 3064 and in accordance with NRS 333, this vendor met the qualifications of the RFQ and is one of 21
vendors selected by the appointed eval. committee.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date: 10/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sberry 02/25/2015 08:55:04 AM
Division Approval sberry 02/25/2015 08:55:06 AM
Department Approval sberry 02/25/2015 08:55:08 AM
Contract Manager Approval nfese1 02/26/2015 11:21:27 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sjohnso9 03/10/2015 10:42:30 AM
BOE Agenda Approval sbrown 03/13/2015 12:12:10 PM
BOE Final Approval Pending

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16376 MSA 3



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16366

Legal Entity
Name:

PREMIER JANITORIAL MANAGEMENT

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: PREMIER JANITORIAL
MANAGEMENT

Agency Code: 082 Address: 3579 US HIGHWAY 50 STE 306
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89701-2826

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 888/988-7736
Vendor No.: T27030039
NV Business ID: NV20101175503

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Building and Grounds Rent Income Fee
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 08/07/2015
Contract term: 168 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues going janitorial services to the Blasdel Building located at 209 East Musser
Street, Carson City, Nevada

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $11,727.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $2,024.00 per month
Other basis for payment: with $1,000.00 for extra services as needed

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Provide a safe, clean healthy work environment for state employees-upkeep of the buildings is vital to the integrity of the
buildings.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
not enough manpower

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Enterprise Janitorial
McNeils Inc.
Premier Janitorial Management
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16366



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
They were the lowest bidder of the three companies to bid.
d. Last bid date: 02/10/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Cheryl Warren, Cusodial Supervisor   Ph:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 02/13/2015 10:31:35 AM
Division Approval csweeney 02/13/2015 10:31:39 AM
Department Approval csweeney 02/13/2015 10:31:41 AM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 02/17/2015 09:42:28 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 02/19/2015 10:15:40 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16366



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16367

Legal Entity
Name:

PIERROTT, ANA L

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: PIERROTT, ANA L

Agency Code: 082 Address: ENTERPRISE JANITORIAL SERVICES
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12 PO BOX 17445
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/691-2939
Vendor No.: T29025484A
NV Business ID: NV20141642364

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Building and Grounds Rent Income Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/31/2015
Contract term: 161 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services  to the Bryan Building located at 901 S. Stewart
Street, Carson City, Nevada.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $49,872.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $9,774.46 per month
Other basis for payment: $1,000 for extra services as needed.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To provide a safe, clean and healthy work environment for state employees - upkeep of the buildings is vital to the integrity of
the buildings

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Premier Janitorial Management
McNeils Inc
Enterprise Janitorial Servics
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16367



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Lowest bidder of the three to bid
d. Last bid date: 02/10/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/01/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Cheryl Warren, Custodial Supervisor   Ph: 684-1800

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 02/17/2015 09:10:32 AM
Division Approval csweeney 02/17/2015 09:10:35 AM
Department Approval csweeney 02/17/2015 09:10:39 AM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 02/17/2015 09:21:00 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 02/19/2015 10:44:39 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16367



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/02/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16380

Legal Entity
Name:

GFDS NV 1 LLC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: GFDS NV 1 LLC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 11811 N. Tatum Blvd., Ste. 303
Appropriation Unit: 1558-57
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Phoenix, AZ 85028

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: (602) 953-78
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: NV20131357075

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: 109178

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/02/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 120 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional Engineering services for the feasibility study and potential design,
financing, construction and management of Government Facilities; Project No. 13-S04; Contract No. 109178.
Specifically, the project will address the needs for three new office buildings approximately 360,000 square feet in
size with an estimated two-thirds located in Carson City and one-third of the square footage located in Las Vegas.
The scope of work includes a strategic analysis to facilitate implementation of the Master Plan; consideration of
existing Nevada lease rates and terms along with an analysis of Nevada's programming needs for the Department of
Health and Human Services and Nevada Department of Business and Industry; and documentation of the underlying
assumptions used in all calculations and a preliminary analysis of Nevada's immediate facility needs.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $25,000.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2013 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional Services are provided by SPWB to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16380



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Chris Chimits, project manager   Ph: 775-684-4141

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 02/26/2015 15:54:31 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 02/26/2015 15:54:34 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 02/26/2015 15:54:36 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 02/26/2015 16:04:42 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/02/2015 13:55:47 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16380



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16389

Legal Entity
Name:

WATERS SEPTIC TANK SERVICE DBA

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: WATERS SEPTIC TANK SERVICE
DBA

Agency Code: 082 Address: WATERS VACUUM TRUCK SERVICE
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12 PO BOX 18160
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/825-1595
Vendor No.: T80206180A
NV Business ID: NV19781005671

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2020
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Building & Grounds rental fee income
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 08/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 07/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Plumbing services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract for the ongoing provision of plumbing and sewer lines, hydro flushing, video inspection and
vacuum truck services on an as needed basis and at the request and approval of a Buildings and Grounds
designee.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $25,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Plumbing in the buildings must be maintained in a safe and sanitary manner - work is beyond journey level plumbing.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower and expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Per SAM 0338.0 each contractor will be contacted to submit bids on projects. Waters Septic Tank Service is a Nevada Public
Works Board Contractor. Pursuant to NRS 338.13862, Buildings and Grounds is using a Public Works Board prequalified
bidder.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16389



d. Last bid date: 02/20/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/20/2019

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2007-2015, Buildings & Grounds, service satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   JON VIETTI, FACILITY SUPERVISOR 3   Ph: 775-684-1800

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/12/2015 06:57:47 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/12/2015 06:57:50 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/12/2015 06:57:53 AM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 03/12/2015 07:31:44 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 18:23:26 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16389



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16411

Legal Entity
Name:

VALLEY CONCRETE CO INC

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: VALLEY CONCRETE CO INC

Agency Code: 082 Address: 601 S 15TH ST
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SPARKS, NV 89431-5606

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/329-0656
Vendor No.: T27019563
NV Business ID: NV19761001714

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Buildings and Grounds rental income fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 13 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Concrete Work

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide for concrete work, replacement and repairs as requested and approved by
Buildings and Grounds designee.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $45,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Deteriorating, up-heaving concrete poses a safety issue-work is beyond journey level masonry expertise and equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower and expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Contracts are bid projects and emergency services. One of multiple contracts for concrete work on file. Per SAM338.0, each
contractor will be contacted to submit bids for available jobs.
d. Last bid date: 02/09/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/09/2019

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16411



10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Jon Vietti, Facility Supervisor 3   Ph: 775-684-1800

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:26:35 PM
Division Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:26:39 PM
Department Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:26:46 PM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 03/19/2015 07:25:07 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/19/2015 17:18:38 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16411



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/10/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16422

Legal Entity
Name:

FARR WEST ENGINEERING DBA

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: FARR WEST ENGINEERING DBA

Agency Code: 082 Address: FARR WEST CHILTON ENGINEERING
Appropriation Unit: 1366-10 5442 LONGLEY LN STE A
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-3297

If "No" please explain:  This is an agency funded CIP
where the project will be managed by the SPWD, but all
funding and contractor payment responsibilities will remain
with the initiating agency. For this contract the funding and
expenditure authority will be Account 1366 Marlette Lake,
expenditure category 10,  Operating pumping pass
through.

Contact/Phone: 775/851-4788

Vendor No.: T81102795
NV Business ID: NV20011242988

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Agency funded CIP - Operating Utilities Pass

Through Revenue
Agency Reference #: 109233

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/10/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 113 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Misc Serv Agr

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract, which provides miscellaneous services for field inspection services for air box and air
release improvements at the Marlette Lake Water System; Project No. 15-026; Contract No. 109233. The scope of
work includes full-time field inspection (3 weeks) during the air-box reconstruction and air release valve
installations. The anticipated construction period is estimated at five weeks with the first week dedicated to
mobilization and the last week for site cleanup, punch list items and demobilization.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $16,800.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2015 Agency CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16422



This is an agency funded CIP where the project will be managed by the SPWD, but all funding and contractor payment
responsibilities will remain with the initiating agency. For this contract the funding and expenditure authority will be Account
3650, Marlette Lake; expenditure category 10,

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
SPWD, currently and/or in the past for various amounts with satisfactory results.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Dan Daily, project manager   Ph: 775-684-4141

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/05/2015 16:08:50 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/05/2015 16:08:54 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/05/2015 16:08:56 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/05/2015 16:15:31 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/10/2015 20:00:37 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16422



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16429

Legal Entity
Name:

SILVER STATE GLASS & MIRROR CO

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: SILVER STATE GLASS & MIRROR CO

Agency Code: 082 Address: INC DBA SILVER STATE GLASS
Appropriation Unit: 1349-12 2825 FREMONT STE 200
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89104

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 702/382-1400
Vendor No.: PUR0005419
NV Business ID: NV19551000141

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Buildings & Grounds building rent income
fees

Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 13 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Glass/window repair

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing repair and maintenance of glass and mirrors for various state owned
buildings at the written request and approval of a Buildings and Grounds designee.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $30,000.00
Other basis for payment: Hourly rate of $85.00, 8:00 am to 3:30 pm; overtime rate of $128.00 per hour after 3:30 pm. $175
per hour for weekends and holidays; materials are cost plus 30%; additional costs for sky lift equipment

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State buildings need to be maintained in a safe and secure manner. Window and door replacement require the expertise
beyond journey level, equipment and manpower that B&G does not have.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of expertise and manpower.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Silver State Glass & Mirror
Western States Door Controls
Vortx Industries

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16429



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
One of multiple contracts for window/mirror/glass services on file. Per SAM 0338.0, each contractor will be contacted to
submit bids for available jobs.
d. Last bid date: 12/01/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/01/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
2008-2014, Buildings & Grounds, Service Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Doug Hartwell, Facility Manager   Ph: 702-486-4300

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:25:26 PM
Division Approval csweeney 03/19/2015 07:43:38 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/19/2015 07:43:41 AM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 03/19/2015 07:44:12 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/19/2015 17:19:42 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16429



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16442

Legal Entity
Name:

Douglas Co Community Sevices/Parks
and Recreation - Weed Control

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: Douglas Co Community Sevices/Parks
and Recreation - Weed Control

Agency Code: 082 Address: 1327 WATERLOO LANE
Appropriation Unit: 1366-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: CRAIG BURNSIDE 775-782-9828
Vendor No.: T40174400X
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Operating Utilities Pass-Thru Revenues
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2018
Contract term: 3 years and 288 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Weed Control

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement that continues ongoing weed control to Marlette and Hobart Dam and Yard.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $22,203.98

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Roads/access/system areas must be maintained in a safe manner.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This is a Interlocal Contract
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16442



III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
10/14/2013 to 12/31/14,  Water Department, performance satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Jerry Walker, Water Manager   Ph: 775-684-1800

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:27:32 PM
Division Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:27:35 PM
Department Approval csweeney 03/18/2015 15:27:37 PM
Contract Manager Approval ssands 03/19/2015 07:26:14 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/19/2015 17:11:30 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16442



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/20/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16479

Legal Entity
Name:

FARR WEST ENGINEERING DBA

Agency Name: ADMIN - STATE PUBLIC WORKS
DIVISION

Contractor Name: FARR WEST ENGINEERING DBA

Agency Code: 082 Address: FARR WEST CHILTON ENGINEERING
Appropriation Unit: 1590-15 5442 LONGLEY LN STE A
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-3297

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/851-4788
Vendor No.: T81102795
NV Business ID: NV20011242988

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: 109264

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/20/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 103 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Arch/Eng Serv

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional architectural/engineering services for the Stewart Indian Colony
intertie backflow preventer; Project No. 09-M02a; Contract No. 109264.  The scope of work includes providing design
plans and technical specifications for an intertie backflow preventer, field verification of the property boundary,
ensuring all design improvements are within State Lands property and survey locations of the existing pipe.  The
scope of work also includes providing engineering and construction management services during construction of
the improvements and providing construction surveying.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $10,880.00
Other basis for payment: monthly progress payments based on services provided

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
2009 CIP

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Professional  Services are provided by SPWD to support the State Capital Improvement Program.  Consultants are selected
based on their ability to provide design and engineering services to meet the goals established by the Legislature.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16479



Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Demonstrated the required expertise for work on this project.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Ken Scarbrough, project manager   Ph: 775-684-4119

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dgrimm 03/19/2015 14:03:05 PM
Division Approval dgrimm 03/19/2015 14:03:08 PM
Department Approval dgrimm 03/19/2015 15:27:22 PM
Contract Manager Approval dgrimm 03/19/2015 15:59:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/20/2015 13:07:41 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16479



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/09/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16414

Legal Entity
Name:

CARSON VALLEY VISITORS

Agency Name: DTCA - COMMISSION ON TOURISM Contractor Name: CARSON VALLEY VISITORS
Agency Code: 101 Address: AUTHORITY
Appropriation Unit: 1522-31 1477 US HIGHWAY 395 STE C
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip GARDNERVILLE, NV 89410

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: AJ FRELS 775/782-8145
Vendor No.: T80961158
NV Business ID: NV20141770222

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % LODGING TAX

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/09/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 04/17/2015
Contract term: 39 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Rural Rndp Conf Site

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract with Carson Valley Visitors Authority to provide facilities services (accommodations, food
and beverage, convention center space, etc.) for the 2015 Rural Roundup Conference to be held in Gardnerville,
Nevada April 15 - 17, 2015.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $32,000.00
Other basis for payment: Payment to be made based on actual costs upon submission of final itemized billings.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Each year the agency selects a rural community in which to hold the annual Rural Roundup conference.  It is necessary for
the conference to be held at a location that can provide lodging for participants, meeting space for general sessions attended
by all registered conferees, rooms for 4 concurrent breakout sessions that can accommodate 50 conferees each, and food
and beverage for approximately 250 attendees.  In addition, the vendor will make arrangements for the opening reception the
first day of the conference and for two Familiarization Tours to take place the last day of the conference showcasing cultural
tourism and agritourism in the Carson Valley area.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
There are no State employees with the Division of Tourism or any other State agency that can provide convention center
space, meals, refreshments, and related services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16414



b. Soliciation Waiver: Sole Source Contract (As Approved by Chief of Purchasing)
        Approval #: 150102
        Approval Date: 01/21/2015
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
In the Carson Valley area, the Carson Valley Visitors Authority is the only local tourism entity who is able to coordinate and
provide all of the services needed in order to put on a conference of this size.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval amathies 03/05/2015 13:20:20 PM
Division Approval amathies 03/05/2015 13:20:27 PM
Department Approval amathies 03/05/2015 13:20:31 PM
Contract Manager Approval amathies 03/09/2015 15:05:34 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 03/09/2015 15:06:59 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16414



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/23/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14982 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

RENO TAHOE FRANCHISING INC

Agency Name: ADMIN - ENTERPRISE IT SERVICES Contractor Name: RENO TAHOE FRANCHISING INC
Agency Code: 180 Address: DBA JANI KING OF RENO
Appropriation Unit: 1385-07 1325 AIRMOTIVE WAY, STE 175-S
Is budget authority
available?:

No City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89502

If "No" please explain:  Contingent upon work program Contact/Phone: VAUGHN PARKS 775/323-1600
Vendor No.: T29026876
NV Business ID: NV20051738893

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: RFP #2050

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 12/01/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

11/30/2017

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing janitorial services for the Enterprise
Information Technology Services Computer Facility.  The amendment increases the maximum amount from
$100,000 to $116,410 due to the addition of carpet and floor cleaning.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $100,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $16,410.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $116,410.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The builiding is occupied and requires daily cleaning and sanitizing.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

Yes

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14982



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #2050 and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 07/16/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 07/15/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
DMV in Carson City, vendor has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lmartin9 02/19/2015 09:15:03 AM
Division Approval lmartin9 02/19/2015 09:15:08 AM
Department Approval lmartin9 02/19/2015 09:15:11 AM
Contract Manager Approval lmartin9 02/19/2015 09:18:40 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 02/23/2015 08:25:01 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14982



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/12/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16406

Legal Entity
Name:

SOLUTIONS II INC

Agency Name: ADMIN - ENTERPRISE IT SERVICES Contractor Name: SOLUTIONS II INC
Agency Code: 180 Address: 8822 S RIDGELINE BLVD STE 205
Appropriation Unit: 1405-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LITTLETON, CO 80129-2334

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Daniel Goggiano 303/796-8393
Vendor No.: PUR0001838
NV Business ID: NV20101521185

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Allocation
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/12/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 110 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: DPS Hardware Move

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide professional services to support the physical move/relocation of State of Nevada,
Department of Public Safety's production Spillman Technologies and IBM hardware from the Carson City, Wright
Way facility to the Enterprise Information Technology Services Facility in Carson City.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $18,488.94

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
As part of the Department of Public Safety consolidation project, these pieces of hardware must be physically moved to the
Enterprise Information Technology Services facility location.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Under the direction of Solutions II, Spillman and IBM are required to move the hardware or the warranty will be void.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Professional Service (As defined in NAC 333.150)
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16406



Per the Purchasing Administrator, Greg Smith, a solicitation waiver is not required for ongoing or continued licensing,
maintenance and/or support for a system already purchased/installed and in use by the State.  Essentially, these ongoing
requirements are contemplated as a part of the initial procurement, ensuring taxpayer dollars were spent in good faith and it
is reasonable to expect the State to maintain, in good working order, any system acquired as a result of spending those
dollars.  This does not exempt an agency from following any other process that may be required (i.e. RXQ entries into
Advantage, agency specific approvals or authorizations, etc.).
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
07/01/14-06/30/16 for Enterprise Information Technology Services - Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Catherine Krause, Chief IT Manager, Contract Monitor   Ph: 775-684-4726
   Lynda Bashor, PO1, Contract Manager   Ph: 775-684-0241

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lmartin9 03/04/2015 09:32:08 AM
Division Approval lmartin9 03/04/2015 09:32:11 AM
Department Approval lmartin9 03/04/2015 09:32:15 AM
Contract Manager Approval lmartin9 03/04/2015 09:32:18 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/05/2015 06:18:07 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 03/12/2015 14:06:28 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16406



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/06/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16351

Legal Entity
Name:

Pyro Combustion & Controls Inc.

Agency Name: OFFICE OF VETERANS SERVICES Contractor Name: Pyro Combustion & Controls Inc.
Agency Code: 240 Address: 2969 S. Highland Dr.
Appropriation Unit: 2561-07
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89109

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Annie Caraboolad 702-384-7976
Vendor No.: T27010089
NV Business ID: NV20041406870

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 50.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 50.00 % 50% Private Funds, 50% Federal

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/06/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2017
Contract term: 1 year and 332 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Boiler Maintenance

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide boiler maintenance and annual cleaning for the boilers at the Nevada State
Veterans Home.  This is a 2-year contract with an option for an additional 2 years.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $10,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $2,840.00 per annual maintenance
Other basis for payment: plus other parts and labor

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Boilers that create hot water for the Home must have annual maintenance and cleaning in order to perform properly.
Previous vendors performing this work have not been able to maintain the boilers.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
No State employees with experience in this area are available.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Southland Industries - Las Vegas, NV
Pyro Combustion and Controls - Las Vegas, NV
Johnson Controls - Las Vegas, NV
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16351



Best price and best experience with the type of boilers that the Home has installed.
d. Last bid date: 12/30/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/31/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Robert Robinson, Facility Supervisor   Ph: 702-332-6751

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:41:44 AM
Division Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:41:47 AM
Department Approval agarland 02/19/2015 11:41:50 AM
Contract Manager Approval mnobles 02/19/2015 14:04:31 PM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/06/2015 11:11:20 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16351



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/05/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13915 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

LAS VEGAS PRESORT LLC

Agency Name: NEVADA STATE LIBRARY AND
ARCHIVES

Contractor Name: LAS VEGAS PRESORT LLC

Agency Code: 332 Address: 3655 E PATRICK LN STE 300
Appropriation Unit: 1346-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89120

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Robert Rivera 702/320-0450
Vendor No.: T29009519
NV Business ID: NV20061772395

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Contractor to receive rebate from the United

States Post Office

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 01/01/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

12/31/2016

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Presort LV mail svc

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing  First Class Presort/Prebarcode Mail
Services for all mail not presorted within the Nevada State Mail System and any other agencies or political
subdivision that may require this service. This amendment increases the maximum amount by $14,400.00 from
$9,900.00 to 24,300.00 to support contract through December 31, 2016.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $9,900.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $14,400.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $24,300.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Provides first class presort/prebarcode services for the State Mail Service.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Lack of manpower and equipment.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13915



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Only vendor that responded.
d. Last bid date: 10/16/2012 Anticipated re-bid date: 10/16/2014

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Mail Services - satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval csweeney 03/03/2015 08:08:00 AM
Division Approval csweeney 03/03/2015 08:08:03 AM
Department Approval csweeney 03/03/2015 08:08:07 AM
Contract Manager Approval csweeney 03/03/2015 08:08:15 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sewart 03/05/2015 09:39:02 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13915



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/26/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13452 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

FINGERPRINTING PROS INC

Agency Name: AGING AND DISABILITY SERVICES
DIVISION

Contractor Name: FINGERPRINTING PROS INC

Agency Code: 402 Address: 2620 S MARYLAND PKWY STE 17
Appropriation Unit: 3151-04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89109

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: ANTHONY CARRILLO 702/734-2665
Vendor No.: T27006696
NV Business ID: NV20031514455

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2012-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 22.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 78.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 05/23/2012

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

05/31/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Specialty Services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing fingerprint services to grant
program volunteers. This amendment extends the termination date from May 31, 2015 to May 22, 2016 and increases
the maximum amount from $9,999 to $15,000 due to the continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $9,999.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $5,001.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $15,000.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 05/22/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Complete background checks must be conducted on volunteers working in positions of trust in order to protect the interest of
the community, the agency and to maintain compliance with HIPAA regulations.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Staff lack the expertise and the required equipment.  NRS does not authorize State agencies to conduct fingerprints for
volunteers.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13452



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
BURTON STUDIOS
PSI EXAMINATION SERVICES
FINGERPRINTING PROS INC.

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
They were the only vendor to submit a proposal.
d. Last bid date: 02/24/2012 Anticipated re-bid date: 02/28/2013

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Current ongoing contract with ADSD from May 2012-Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 02/04/2015 15:36:40 PM
Division Approval lgoulart 02/11/2015 10:00:35 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/17/2015 14:44:45 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 02/19/2015 09:10:44 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 02/26/2015 15:51:25 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13452



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/26/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16322

Legal Entity
Name:

ANTHEM INSURANCE COMPANIES
INC

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: ANTHEM INSURANCE COMPANIES
INC

Agency Code: 402 Address: MONUMENT CIRCLE BUILDING
Appropriation Unit: 3156-16 220 VIRGINIA AVE
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204-3709

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: CHRISTINE SWICK 630-360-0576
Vendor No.: T27021696
NV Business ID: NV20071531463

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Tobacco Funds

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/26/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/09/2019
Contract term: 4 years and 12 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Anthem Insurance

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues Nevada's ongoing two-part State Pharmaceutical Assistance Program (SPAP),
known as Senior Rx and Disability Rx, is authorized by the State Legislature to subsidize the monthly premium on
behalf of eligible members who are enrolled in Medicare Part D prescription drug plans and Medicare Advantage
plans with prescription drug benefits.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $24,500.00
Other basis for payment: 100% of the low income benchmark for Nevada, as provided by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services (CMS) plus a monthly administrative fee.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Starting January 1, 2006, the Federal Medicare Part D plan went into effect. Nevada's Senior Rx and Disability Rx members
must use Medicare Part D as their first resource for prescription drugs.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not authorized to perform the needed services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Exempt (Per statute)

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16322



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The State must contract with all prescription drug plans Federally authorized to offer Part D benefits in Nevada. (Section
1860D-23 (b)(2) of Social Security Act)
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Previous contract with Aging and Disability Services: Satisfactory

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval lgoulart 02/04/2015 12:47:01 PM
Division Approval lgoulart 02/11/2015 10:01:01 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/17/2015 15:33:48 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 02/26/2015 10:47:56 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 02/26/2015 15:39:43 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16322



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/10/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16364

Legal Entity
Name:

QBS INC

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: QBS INC

Agency Code: 402 Address: 257 TURNPIKE RD STE 320
Appropriation Unit: 3279-30
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SOUTHBOROUGH, MA 01772-1791

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 508/281-0246
Vendor No.: T29034782
NV Business ID: NV20141240237

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 53.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 47.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/10/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 02/28/2017
Contract term: 1 year and 356 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Safety Training

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide training and certification for campus staff members in advanced skills for use in
working with individuals who may exhibit self-injurious or violent behaviors.  The contract includes annual
recertification of the Safety-Care Core Curriculum, High Severity Behavior 1 and High Severity Behavior 2 training
and funding for additional training on an as needed basis.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $23,900.00
Other basis for payment: Upon invoice per contract

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Residents at Desert Regional Center (Jones Campus) occasionally exhibit
self-injurious or violent behaviors.  The proposed training will provide campus staff with the necessary specialized skills
needed to continue to provide a safe environment for both the residents and staff.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees are not professional trainers in behavioral safety training.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
PCMA Professional Crisis Management
Therapeutic Options, Inc.
QBS Inc.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16364



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
QBS, Inc. was the lowest responsible bidder.
d. Last bid date: 11/21/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 11/21/2016

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Matt Stoll, Residential Director   Ph: 702-486-6803

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dhanse6 02/13/2015 14:41:54 PM
Division Approval tmyler 02/23/2015 11:54:15 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/03/2015 15:44:09 PM
Contract Manager Approval dhanse6 03/09/2015 09:49:39 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/10/2015 10:37:37 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16364



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/10/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16382

Legal Entity
Name:

Humboldt County

Agency Name: DHHS - AGING AND DISABILITY
SERVICES DIVISION

Contractor Name: Humboldt County

Agency Code: 402 Address: 50 W 5th Street
Appropriation Unit: 3167-00
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Winnemucca, NV 89445

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 7756236444
Vendor No.:
NV Business ID: Governmental Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Revenue from County

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Revenue Contract
Contract description: Humboldt County

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new revenue contract that continues ongoing service to children with developmental disabilities and
provides structure for county reimbursement of the non-federal share of funding as payment for services.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $15,000.00
Other basis for payment: Revenue Contract

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Pursuant to NRS 435.010 and NRS 435.020 Division of Aging and Disability Services (ADSD) is obligated to provide services
to children with developmental disabilities and the County to reimburse ADSD the non-federal share of funding as payment
for services.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Not applicable. State employees and/or community providers are providing the services for the county.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16382



d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This revenue contract has been ongoing since 2011.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   John Kucera, Management Analyst I   Ph: 775 238 3435 x2129

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkucera 02/20/2015 12:03:10 PM
Division Approval lgoulart 02/25/2015 07:52:39 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/03/2015 15:21:57 PM
Contract Manager Approval jpruneau 03/04/2015 10:26:45 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/10/2015 10:55:39 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16382



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16362

Legal Entity
Name:

IA LLC DBA Innovative Architects LLC

Agency Name: DHHS - PUBLIC AND BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH

Contractor Name: IA LLC DBA Innovative Architects LLC

Agency Code: 406 Address: 3122 Hill Street
Appropriation Unit: 3223-26
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Duluth, GA 30096

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Megan Grabowski 770-623-5734
Vendor No.: T32003226
NV Business ID: NV20151021381

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Division Cost Allocation (Indirect)

Agency Reference #: C 14794

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/18/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 104 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Form Website

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide a public facing website that would make available administrative forms of the
Division of Public and Behavioral Health in a format which allows forms to be completed, downloaded, saved
electronically and submitted securely to the division via the internet pursuant to NRS 237.360.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $19,500.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
This work is required to establish compliance with NRS 237.360.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not possess the skills, abilities or resources to perform this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Aithent
Thunderhead Licensing
Innovative Architects LLC
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16362



The vendor has established a satisfactory relationship with the division and other state agencies. Their proposal was also the
most cost effective for the product.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval alaw1 02/12/2015 11:19:27 AM
Division Approval alaw1 02/12/2015 11:19:30 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/18/2015 16:49:18 PM
Contract Manager Approval rmorse 02/20/2015 09:58:58 AM
DoIT Approval bbohm 02/24/2015 09:39:52 AM
Budget Analyst Approval bberry 03/18/2015 14:45:52 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16362



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/13/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 13619 Amendment

Number:
5

Legal Entity
Name:

HOUSING DIVISION

Agency Name: WELFARE AND SUPPORT
SERVICES

Contractor Name: HOUSING DIVISION

Agency Code: 407 Address: DEPT OF BUSINESS & INDUSTRY
Appropriation Unit: 4862-16 1535 OLD HOT SPRINGS RD STE 50
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89706

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/687-2049
Vendor No.: D74426000
NV Business ID: Gov't Entity

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 10/01/2012

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/30/2016

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: LIHEAP

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the fifth amendment to the interlocal agreement to provide the Department of Business and Industry,
Housing Division, Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP) with 5% of the Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP) Block Grant funds awarded to Division of Welfare and Supportive Services to help fund WAP for
low income families. WAP encourages and enables households to reduce their home energy needs by providing for
various energy
conservation measures, which decreases the need for energy assistance. This amendment increases the maximum
amount from $2,054,771.70 to $2,078,977.20 due to the release of FFY15 grant funds under the federal 2015
Consolidated
Appropriations Act.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $1,902,800.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $151,971.70
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $24,205.50
4. New maximum contract amount: $2,078,977.20

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
DWSS is responsible for the administration of the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) Block Grant.
Authorization for this grant is provided under CFR 45 Part 96 and CFR 10 Part 440. DWSS provides the Housing Division
with 5% of this grant to help fund the Weatherization Assistance Program for low income families.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 13619



Department of Business and Industry, Housing Division is a state agency, which provides weatherization assistance to low
income families.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Contracted with DWSS from October 14, 2008 to current and provide satisfactory service.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ewatson 02/11/2015 10:59:43 AM
Division Approval msmit5 02/19/2015 09:22:12 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/23/2015 15:10:58 PM
Contract Manager Approval sneudaue 02/25/2015 08:25:25 AM
Budget Analyst Approval ekin4 03/13/2015 15:04:07 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 13619



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/10/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16385

Legal Entity
Name:

Dallas Floor Designs LLC

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: Dallas Floor Designs LLC

Agency Code: 409 Address: 9738 S Virginia St Ste C
Appropriation Unit: 3281-95
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89511

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775-870-1223
Vendor No.: T27033004
NV Business ID: NV20131309777

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/10/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 112 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: flooring install

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide new floor covering in the four Family Learning Homes located at Northern Nevada
Child and Adolescent Services at 2655 Enterprise Road in Reno.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $31,904.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The flooring is very worn and due for replacement.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The agency does not have staff with the needed expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor best meets the needs of the agency.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16385



III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Jason Holm, ASO2   Ph: 688-1658x312

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jmorro5 02/23/2015 14:23:07 PM
Division Approval jmorro5 02/23/2015 14:23:10 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/02/2015 15:28:28 PM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 03/03/2015 11:38:04 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/10/2015 08:55:02 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16385



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/27/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16386

Legal Entity
Name:

Labeeg Building Services Inc

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: Labeeg Building Services Inc

Agency Code: 409 Address: 225 Keystone Ave
Appropriation Unit: 3229-07
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89503

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775-348-4805
Vendor No.: T27029360
NV Business ID: NV20071295199

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 84.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 16.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 02/28/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: janitorial services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services to the child welfare rural region office located in
Fernley.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $32,195.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $450.00 per month
Other basis for payment: with additional costs for supplies and periodic special cleaning

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Janitorial services are not included in the lease for Fernley.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
DCFS does not have janitorial staff in Fernley.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
FAAD Janitorial Inc
Labeeg Building Services Inc
Executive Cleaning Service LLC
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16386



This vendor best meet the needs of the agency.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, with DCFS and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Kelli Weishaupt, SSM3   Ph: 775-423-8566

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval pcolegro 02/23/2015 14:35:53 PM
Division Approval pcolegro 02/23/2015 14:35:57 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 02/24/2015 16:36:24 PM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 02/24/2015 17:05:35 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 02/27/2015 12:42:35 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16386



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/11/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16401

Legal Entity
Name:

Legacy Painting LLC

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: Legacy Painting LLC

Agency Code: 409 Address: 870 Deming Way
Appropriation Unit: 3281-95
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Sparks, NV 89431

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775-870-4523
Vendor No.: T29036043
NV Business ID: NV20121673967

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/11/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 111 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: painting services

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide painting services at three state-owned buildings housed by Northern Nevada Child
and Adolescent Services located at 2655 Enterprise Road in Reno.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $47,342.00
Other basis for payment: upon approved invoice that work has been completed

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
State Public Works Board facility condition analysis dated April 2008 recommended work to protect the exterior finishes of
buildings A, B, and C within two to three years.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
No employees with the needed expertise.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Vision Design Painting
Legacy Painting
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The agency conducted an RFP. Only two vendors responded.  This vendor best meets the needs of the agency.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16401



d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, with DCFS and service was satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Jason Holm, ASO2   Ph: 688-1658x312

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jmorro5 03/02/2015 15:49:16 PM
Division Approval jmorro5 03/02/2015 15:49:20 PM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/09/2015 13:45:46 PM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 03/09/2015 15:37:31 PM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/11/2015 10:49:09 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16401



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/11/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16408

Legal Entity
Name:

NetSmart Technologies Inc

Agency Name: DHHS - DIVISION OF CHILD AND
FAMILY SERVICES

Contractor Name: NetSmart Technologies Inc

Agency Code: 409 Address: 3500 Sunrise Hwy Ste D-122
Appropriation Unit: 3143-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Great River, NY 11739

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 631-968-2000
Vendor No.: PUR0003686A
NV Business ID: NV20101021052

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 50.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 50.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/11/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 12/31/2015
Contract term: 295 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: software upgrade svc

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide information technology services to transition the Avatar system to use the
International Statistical Classification of Diseases and Related Health Problems version 10 (ICD-10) and the
Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders version 5 (DSM-5) for diagnostic and procedural coding.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $25,000.00
Other basis for payment: upon submission of invoice and approval of work.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Federal Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) require that all HIPAA covered entities convert to ICD-10 for
diagnostic and procedure coding in order to bill and receive payment from CMS.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the technical knowledge and experience necessary to make the changes without significant
risk.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16408



2/19/15 - Per telephone call with Greg Smith, Administrator, Purchasing, a waiver is not needed for an upgrade to a previous
software purchase.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? Yes

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Yes, with DCFS and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Paul Bowen, ITM3   Ph: 775-687-9026

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval pcolegro 03/05/2015 09:21:48 AM
Division Approval pcolegro 03/05/2015 09:21:52 AM
Department Approval ecreceli 03/09/2015 14:11:46 PM
Contract Manager Approval ihyman 03/09/2015 15:37:50 PM
DoIT Approval bbohm 03/11/2015 10:50:28 AM
Budget Analyst Approval knielsen 03/11/2015 13:31:57 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16408



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/05/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 15986 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

MCGINLEY & ASSOCIATES

Agency Name: ADJUTANT GENERAL & NATIONAL
GUARD

Contractor Name: MCGINLEY & ASSOCIATES

Agency Code: 431 Address: MCGINLEY & ASSOCIATES INC
Appropriation Unit: 3650-16 815 MAESTRO DR
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89511-2295

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/829-2245
Vendor No.: T27022272A
NV Business ID: 20021218343

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: NMD# 26-14S

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 08/13/2014

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

11/30/2015

Contract term: 2 years and 110 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: AASF Soil Sampling

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the second amendment to the original contract, which performs an environmental soil and groundwater
sampling to verify the presence of contamination at the Nevada Army National Guard Army Aviation Support Facility
in Reno, Nevada. This amendment extends the termination date from November 30 2015 to November 30, 2016 and
the maximum contract amount from $18,333.24 to $33,813.24. This is a required additional design scope of Work
Plan Preparation, four Groundwater samplings, and four Quarterly Reports requested by the Nevada Division of
Environmental Protection due to the presence of PCE (Tetrachloroethylene) found in samplings obtained with this
contract.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $15,108.24
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $3,225.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $15,480.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $33,813.24

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 11/30/2016

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Washoe County Health District and Nevada Division of Environmental Protection requires this service to test for a potentially
leaking underground storage tank.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 15986



State employees do not have the necessary equipment nor skills to properly conduct the soil and ground water testing.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
The Office of the Military has used this vendor and the services provided are satisfactory. This vendor will be able to conduct
the scope of work for the lowest bid.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval vradford 02/17/2015 14:56:45 PM
Division Approval ctyle1 02/26/2015 10:03:58 AM
Department Approval ctyle1 02/26/2015 10:04:01 AM
Contract Manager Approval vradford 03/03/2015 15:58:21 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jborrowm 03/05/2015 10:39:17 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 15986



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/26/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16284

Legal Entity
Name:

The Board of Regents of the NSHE

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Contractor Name: The Board of Regents of the NSHE
Agency Code: 440 Address: on behalf of the CSN
Appropriation Unit: 3711-23 2409 Las Verdes St.
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89102

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Robert Maher 702/651-4223
Vendor No.: D35000800
NV Business ID: E0776882008-3

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/26/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2015
Contract term: 215 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Re-Entry Program

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide pre-vocational computer literacy/basic computer skills training classes to female
offenders who are incarcerated at Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center (FMWCC) and will reside in the
following Southern Nevada counties (Clark, Esmeralda, Nye and Lincoln) upon release.  Offenders will learn the
basics of how computers operate and how computer operating systems work.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $37,500.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The level one (1) training classes for Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft PowerPoint and Microsoft Outlook will give
female offenders job skills that will be helpful in their search for employment, to retain employment and have a better chance
for a successful integration back into society.  At no point during these classes will the Offenders have access to the internet.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Historically, NDOC has outsourced re-entry educational training program services to a vendor that can provide the tools to
offenders to better equip them in their search for gainful employment.  No other state agency performs this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
The Learning Center
College of Southern Nevada
Nova 4 LLC DBA New Horizon
Netcom Learning

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16284



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP #201507, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 10/09/2014 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
FY10 to FY13; Department of Corrections.  Service has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dbec2 12/30/2014 16:11:25 PM
Division Approval dmartine 12/31/2014 09:11:42 AM
Department Approval bfarris 01/02/2015 16:56:36 PM
Contract Manager Approval jhardy 02/26/2015 08:51:34 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cmurph3 02/26/2015 13:54:34 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16284



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/26/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16285

Legal Entity
Name:

The Board of Regents of the NSHE

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Contractor Name: The Board of Regents of the NSHE
Agency Code: 440 Address: on behalf of the CSN
Appropriation Unit: 3711-23 2409 Las Verdes St.
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89102

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Robert Maher 702/651-4223
Vendor No.: D35000800
NV Business ID: E0776882008-3

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/26/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2015
Contract term: 215 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Re-Entry Program

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide pre-vocational, employment related soft skills training classes to females
incarcerated at Florence McClure Women's Correctional Center and will reside in the following Southern Nevada
counties (Clark, Esmeralda, Nye and Lincoln) upon release.  Offenders will learn the basics on how to search and
apply for employment.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $30,000.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Many offenders releasing from NDOC custody have a difficult time accepting the challenge of not only finding employment
but also maintaining employment once they have secured employment.  These employment related soft skills training
classes will provide tools which will help ensure that they obtain skills necessary to maintain employment upon release.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Historically, NDOC has outsourced re-entry educational training program services to a vendor that can provide the tools to
offenders to better equip them in their search for gainful employment.  No other state agency performs this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Nova 4 LLC DBA New Horizon
Manpower
College of Southern Nevada
Las Vegas Urban League

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16285



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Pursuant to RFP 201506, and in accordance with NRS 333, the selected vendor was the highest scoring proposer as
determined by an independently appointed evaluation committee.
d. Last bid date: 10/09/2014 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
FY10 to FY13; Department of Corrections.  Service has been verified as satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval dbec2 12/30/2014 16:32:06 PM
Division Approval dmartine 12/31/2014 08:12:03 AM
Department Approval bfarris 01/02/2015 16:56:53 PM
Contract Manager Approval jhardy 02/26/2015 08:50:57 AM
Budget Analyst Approval cmurph3 02/26/2015 15:25:50 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16285



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/20/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16390

Legal Entity
Name:

MGT of America, Inc.

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS Contractor Name: MGT of America, Inc.
Agency Code: 440 Address: 2109 South Upland Hills
Appropriation Unit: 3727-35
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Wichita, KS 67235

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Bret Schlyer 316/214-3163
Vendor No.: T81201791
NV Business ID: NV20031499791

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/20/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2015
Contract term: 102 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Indirect Cost Rate

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide for the development of an updated Indirect Cost Rate Proposal for the BLM Grant
for Prison Industries Wild Horse Program.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $10,600.00
Other basis for payment: 70% completion of draft, 25% NDOC acceptance, and 5% approval by federal cognizant agency.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The existing indirect cost rate of 10% for Prison Industries, Prison Ranch does not cover all of the indirect costs associated
with the Wild Horse Program.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Historically the Department has outsourced specialty accounting services to an accounting firm licensed to perform this
service.  No other state agency performs this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Wisan, Smith, Racker & Prescott, LLC
Joseph Eve CPA's
Kohn & Company
MGT of America, Inc.
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16390



c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Overall MGT of America, Inc. had the lowest and most reasonable bid.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
FY11 Division of Forestry.  Service has been determined to be satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval ddastal 02/26/2015 05:49:16 AM
Division Approval dmartine 02/26/2015 14:53:50 PM
Department Approval bfarris 02/27/2015 15:31:58 PM
Contract Manager Approval jhardy 03/12/2015 16:30:34 PM
Budget Analyst Approval cmurph3 03/20/2015 12:29:36 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16390



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/20/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16461

Legal Entity
Name:

RESOURCE CONCEPTS INC

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Contractor Name: RESOURCE CONCEPTS INC
Agency Code: 550 Address: 340 N MINNESOTA ST
Appropriation Unit: 4545-17
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip CARSON CITY, NV 89703-4152

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/883-1600
Vendor No.: T12785100
NV Business ID: NV19781005208

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % X Fees 100.00 % Pesticide Registration Fees
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: 454515-01

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/20/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 04/30/2015
Contract term: 41 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: NV Grazing Report

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to analyze the data collected by NDA for the 2001 Nevada Grazing Statistics Report and
Economic Analysis Report and determine if current data can be used with that data to produce two reports.  One
report will detail recent grazing trends and the subsequent impacts on rural Nevada.  The second report will be a
summary of the first that can be put in a publishable format.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $20,000.00
Other basis for payment: Completion of Phase 1 $10,000 and Completion of Phase 2 $10,000.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The goal is to solidify landowners' and the agriculture industry's land use decisions related to grazing management,
endangered species and overall ecosystem health.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees did not have the expertise needed to analyze the data and create the two reports.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16461



This vendor was the only one to submit a proposal.
d. Last bid date: 02/06/2015 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Tina Mudd, Rangeland Pgm Mngr   Ph: (775) 353-3639

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mwhitney 03/13/2015 11:16:33 AM
Division Approval mwhitney 03/13/2015 11:16:38 AM
Department Approval mwhitney 03/13/2015 11:16:44 AM
Contract Manager Approval mwhitney 03/19/2015 14:56:22 PM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 03/20/2015 06:57:59 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16461



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/17/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16356

Legal Entity
Name:

BOARD OF REGENTS-UNLV

Agency Name: DCNR - CONSERVATION &
NATURAL RESOURCES

Contractor Name: BOARD OF REGENTS-UNLV

Agency Code: 700 Address: UNLV OFFICE OF CONTROLLER
Appropriation Unit: 4144-50 4505 MARYLAND PKWY MS 1005
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89154-1005

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: MS. Bolden 702-895-1357 702/895-1142
Vendor No.: D35000813
NV Business ID: NA

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Q1 Bonds

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/17/2015

Retroactive? Yes
If "Yes", please explain
It was necessary to initiate the contract with UNLV, because the university had to tie the project to their semester for
the Design-Building Studio course.  The university requested a contract start date of January 1, 2015 to not hold up
the students participating in this project and to allow their students to begin the design phase immediately.

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2015
Contract term: 224 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Ticket booth

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new inter local contract with University of Las Vegas, School of Architecture to provide a manufactured
ticket booth and install it at Lake Tahoe Nevada State Park.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $47,186.58

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
There is no permanent structure to use for the function that this building needs to perform.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
We do not have the expertise or equipment to perform this work.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
low bid
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16356



10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Marc Davis, Chief of P&D   Ph: 775-684-2772

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval sdecrona 02/06/2015 13:24:00 PM
Division Approval sdecrona 02/06/2015 13:24:03 PM
Department Approval sdecrona 02/11/2015 13:03:18 PM
Contract Manager Approval sdecrona 02/11/2015 13:03:20 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 02/17/2015 18:09:40 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16356



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/05/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16396

Legal Entity
Name:

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY

Agency Name: DEPARTMENT OF WILDLIFE Contractor Name: WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY
Agency Code: 702 Address: PO BOX 647034
Appropriation Unit: 4464-13
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip PULLMAN, WA 99164-1039

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 509-335-9696
Vendor No.: T11361100
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 75.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 25.00 % Sportsmen
Agency Reference #: 15-30

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/05/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 333 days

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Lab testing Game

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal contract to provide testing services for wildlife diseases and other wildlife health factors.
Areas of testing may include bacteriology, mycology, immunology, parisitology, and nutrition. Ongoing evaluation
of Nevada wildlife health and disease will allow the Department of Wildlife to respond to changes in health, such as
emerging infectious diseases, that could impact human health, livestock, as well as the viability of our wildlife
populations.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $40,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $0.00 per Fee Schedule

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
WADDL will test for animal diseases and for other health factors. Viable wildlife populations are essential for balanced
ecosystems in Nevada, and healthy, reproductively normal animals are required to maintain this population viability.
Consistent, ongoing evaluation of health and disease in the State's wildlife populations will provide real-time information and
allow NDOW to respond to changes in health (e.g., nutritional disease, toxicity and emerging infectious disease agents) that
could impact human health and/or livestock as well as wildlife. Surveillance and monitoring wildlife populations is particularly
important in Nevada, because increasing pressure on habitats from invasive plant species, fire, renewable energy projects,
and changing climate patterns can affect the health of Nevada's game and non-game species.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Nevada Dept. of Wildlife does not have a laboratory in which the work can be done.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16396



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Interlocal WADDL is a government entity.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Peri Wolff , Vet    Ph: 775-353-3753

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval kdailey 02/26/2015 12:10:30 PM
Division Approval kdailey 02/26/2015 12:10:34 PM
Department Approval eobrien 02/26/2015 14:43:57 PM
Contract Manager Approval kdailey 02/27/2015 09:21:46 AM
Budget Analyst Approval sbarkdul 03/05/2015 15:22:46 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16396







Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/27/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16352

Legal Entity
Name:

VOGUE LAUNDRY & CLEANING INC

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: VOGUE LAUNDRY & CLEANING INC
Agency Code: 706 Address: VOGUE LINEN UNIFORM RENT
Appropriation Unit: 4195-04 175 5TH ST
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip ELKO, NV 89801

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775-738-5156
Vendor No.: T60153830A
NV Business ID: NV19591001005

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 100.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

Agency Reference #: NDF15-007

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 02/27/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 01/31/2019
Contract term: 3 years and 339 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Laundry Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide ongoing linen and laundry service for the Nevada Division of Forestry's (NDF) Elko
office and mechanics shop as well s the Ely Conservation Camp's mechanics shop.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $12,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $1.50 per cotton coverall;
Other basis for payment: $.07/shop towel; $.90 each/week replenishment for loss; $2.50/3'x5' mat; $1.80/24" dust mop; lost
inventory at cost. Payable upon receipt and approval of contractor's invoice.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Operations for NDF's automotive shops required the use of coveralls and shop towels by the mechanics while working on
fleet vehicles. Additionally, mats and mop heads provide protect against shop activity soiling the carpet in the main office.
These items must be cleaned on a regular basis.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
NDF does not have the necessary facilities to complete this type of work nor do other state agencies within the Elko or Ely
areas provide this service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16352



Vogue Linen and Uniform Rental
Brady Linen Services, LLC
Alsco, Inc.
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This vendor was the only vendor to provide service in the Elko and Ely areas. Additionally, this vendor has provided this
service to NDF under contract in the past with satisfactory service.
d. Last bid date: 01/07/2015 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/07/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
This vendor has previously provided this service under contract with NDF since Fiscal Year 2005. Service provided has been
deemed satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Mike Klug, Northern Regional Forester   Ph: 775-684-2522

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 02/12/2015 11:25:48 AM
Division Approval dprather 02/13/2015 12:53:42 PM
Department Approval dprather 02/13/2015 12:53:48 PM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 02/18/2015 06:54:18 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 02/27/2015 16:25:28 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16352



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16421

Legal Entity
Name:

LYON, COUNTY OF

Agency Name: DCNR - FORESTRY DIVISION Contractor Name: LYON, COUNTY OF
Agency Code: 706 Address: MASON VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION
Appropriation Unit: 4194-00 118 S MAIN ST
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip YERINGTON, NV 89447-2535

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775/463-2261
Vendor No.: T40156600M
NV Business ID: N/A

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2016-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Fire Protection District Funds

Agency Reference #: NDF16-004

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 07/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 06/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Interlocal Agreement
Contract description: Wildland Fire Protec

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new interlocal agreement to provide ongoing services as part of the Wildland Fire Protection Program.  In
accordance with this agreement the Nevada Division of Forestry and Mason Valley Fire Protection District will work
closely to maintain effective wildfire management regardless of jurisdiction and/or ownership.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $15,000.00
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $1,875.00 per quarter
Other basis for payment: Payable in advance on the first of each quarter beginning July 1, 2015 for State Fiscal Year 2016-
2017.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Nevada Division of Forestry and Mason Valley Fire Protection District will work closely together to maintain effective
wildfire management without duplication of efforts with federal cooperators to quickly suppress wildland fire regardless of
jurisdiction and/or ownership. It is considered mutually beneficial to all parties to jointly take action as necessary to safely and
effectively contain all wildland fires.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This is a revenue contract to the Division of Forestry. State employees will be utilized to perform work for which the fire
protection district will make payment to the division.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? No
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16421



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Not Applicable
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?

d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
Yes If "Yes", please explain

Mason Valley Fire Protection District is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada.

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Mason Valley Fire Protection District is currently under contract for the Wildland Fire Protection Program. The contract will
expire June 30, 2015.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is not registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office because the legal entity is a:
Governmental Entity

15. Not Applicable

16. Not Applicable

17. Not Applicable

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval jkidd 03/05/2015 16:29:37 PM
Division Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:18 AM
Department Approval dprather 03/09/2015 06:48:22 AM
Contract Manager Approval ldunn 03/09/2015 07:49:44 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 14:51:26 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16421



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16426

Legal Entity
Name:

Great Basin Institute

Agency Name: DCNR - STATE LANDS Contractor Name: Great Basin Institute
Agency Code: 707 Address: 16750 Mount Rose Hwy
Appropriation Unit: 4206-37
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89511

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Jerry Keir 775-674-5493
Vendor No.: T81073865
NV Business ID: NV19991295540

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % X Bonds 100.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/19/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 10/31/2016
Contract term: 1 year and 227 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Goshawk/Owl Surveys

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract to provide two seasons of field surveys relating the Northern Goshawk and Spotted Owl. Both
of these raptor species occur in the Lake Tahoe Basin, yet there are no known active nests within the Nevada
portion of Lake Tahoe. These surveys will help wildlife officials document existing nests. Work will consist of
broadcast surveys and stand searches for both species across an extensive area of the Caron Range for two
seasons, which is the minimum timeline recommended to confidently declare that each species is absent from the
survey area. The majority of the survey effort will focus on the Northern Goshawk, which is considered a sensitive
species by Nevada Department of Wildlife, US Forest Service, and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Spotted Owl
work will be interspersed throughout each field season. Other activities to be completed under this contract include
habitat evaluation and mapping of survey sites and aspen stands.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $49,999.00
Other basis for payment: Billed monthly for work accomplished, based on a budget that has been approved prior to the
commencement of work.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Northern Goshawk and Spotted Owl are both considered sensitive species by multiple agencies, including Nevada
Department of Wildlife, US Forest Service and Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Protection of both species rests on land
managers' knowledge of important nesting sites. While each species likely nests in the East Tahoe Basin, there are currently
no documented nests due to lack of survey coverage. This project will help wildlife officials document existing nest and
provide protection for those sites.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The workload, which includes daily surveys over a 3 month period for two field seasons, is too great for one person and
requires a dedicated field crew in order to adequately survey an area as large as the east Lake Tahoe Basin.

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16426



9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Great Basin Institute
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
NRS 333.150 The specialized nature of this project requires the services of Great Basin Institute (GBI) as a sole source
vendor. The project requires daily wildlife surveys over two full field seasons, and through their extensive AmeriCorps
program, GBI is the only organization in our region with the ability to hire and provide full-time seasonal wildlife crews.
d. Last bid date: Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The Nevada Tahoe Resource Team currently has a contract in place with GBI to perform wildlife, habitat restoration, and trail
maintenance related work - (Contract# 11879). All work completed thus far under this contract has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Non-profit Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. Not Applicable

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Mark Enders, Wildlife Biologist   Ph: 775-684-2742

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval bre00 03/06/2015 12:44:47 PM
Division Approval bre00 03/06/2015 12:44:50 PM
Department Approval abrook1 03/06/2015 13:00:16 PM
Contract Manager Approval bre00 03/06/2015 14:25:19 PM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 17:27:29 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16426



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14042 Amendment

Number:
2

Legal Entity
Name:

NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC
CONSULTANTS

Agency Name: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION Contractor Name: NORTHWEST HYDRAULIC
CONSULTANTS

Agency Code: 709 Address: 3950 INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD
Appropriation Unit: 3193-18 SUITE 100C
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip WEST SACRAMENTO, CA 95691

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: (530) 544-37
Vendor No.: T27030678
NV Business ID: NV20101663580

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2016
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 100.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % Other funding 0.00 %
Agency Reference #: DEP 13-006

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/12/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/30/2015

Contract term: 2 years and 202 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Lake Clarity Program

5. Purpose of contract:
This the second amendment to the original contract, which provides ongoing services to create an improved suite
of storm water tools that Lake Tahoe urban jurisdictions will use to plan, track and report actions implemented to
reduce pollutant loads to meet the Lake Tahoe Maximum Daily Load.   This amendment increases the maximum
amount from $520,601 to $566,378 to develop a Credit Accounting Platform (CAP) User's Manual that incorporates
the Road and Best Management Practices Rapid Assessment Methodologies and Pollutant Load Reduction Model.
Additionally, forms and technical approaches for inspection, credit declaration and credit reporting will be
streamlined and improved.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $450,000.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $70,601.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $45,777.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $566,378.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?

Page 1 of 3Contract #: 14042



The Lake Clarity Crediting Program is an innovative program to assist urban jurisdictions in implementing the Lake Tahoe
Total Maximum Daily Load. The Program helps jurisdictions prioritize pollutant controls and increases the transparency and
accountability for the expenditures of public funds through the use of standardized reporting protocols and stormwater tools.
By necessity (mainly the availability of funding) the individual tools were developed independently and within different
timeframes, and are therefore not completely aligned. Stakeholder testing and training of the beta versions of the tools have
generated a number of desirable and necessary improvements; and research conducted to collect and analyze datasets to
compare and assess tool performance has also identified recommendations for tool improvements.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Approximately $2 million was invested to develop the Lake Clarity Crediting Program and associated stormwater tools. No
less than three contractors were originally retained to develop the tools through multiple contracts. State agencies lack the
resources and technical expertise to carry out the required work to update the tools, which entails: (1) facilitating a bi-state
stakeholder group and implementing a process to develop a Prioritized Action Plan that identifies and ranks improvements to
be accomplished; and (2) carrying out the updated/refined stormwater tools and corresponding documentation (user
manuals, applications guides, technical documents, administrator and maintenance guidance).

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
This contractor was chosen by the RFP evaluation committee based on the scores of the selection criteria.
d. Last bid date: 10/01/2012 Anticipated re-bid date:

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
June 2012 to present, Division of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Water Quality Planning. Work has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval randrews 02/27/2015 10:52:21 AM

Page 2 of 3Contract #: 14042



Division Approval dgaskin 02/27/2015 11:04:01 AM
Department Approval dgaskin 02/27/2015 14:02:41 PM
Contract Manager Approval abasham 03/02/2015 10:27:13 AM
Budget Analyst Approval jrodrig9 03/18/2015 14:48:23 PM

Page 3 of 3Contract #: 14042



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 04/01/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16297

Legal Entity
Name:

Building Solutions, Inc.

Agency Name: DETR - REHABILITATION DIVISION Contractor Name: Building Solutions, Inc.
Agency Code: 901 Address: 338 Ryland Street
Appropriation Unit: 3253-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Reno, NV 89501

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775.323.7242
Vendor No.: T81102544
NV Business ID: NV20001051967

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Business Enterprise Set Aside

Agency Reference #: #1953-18-BEN

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 04/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 09/30/2017
Contract term: 2 years and 183 days

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Handyman - North

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing, as needed handyman services for Business Enterprises of Nevada
(BEN) locations in Northern Nevada.  Work includes, but is not limited to, janitorial, carpentry, interior and drywall
repair, painting, carpet and tile repair/removal, etc.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $20,000.00
Other basis for payment: Handyman Services:  $59.00 per hour during standard working hours, Monday through Friday
8:00am to 5:00pm and $88.50 per hour during non-standard hours, weekends, holidays and emergencies; Janitorial
Services:  $35.00 per hour during standard working hours, Monday through Friday 8:00am to 5:00pm, and $52.50 per hour
during non-standard hours, weekends, holidays and emergencies.   All services are subject to a $25.00 trip charge for
service locations 30 miles or more (subject to verification by Google Maps) outside of the vendor's contracted address.
Parts, materials and approved cleaning supplies shall be invoiced at a cost not to exceed 10% above the vendor's cost.

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Business Enterprises of Nevada program sites have on-going needs of janitorial and general-purpose construction
services and repairs in order to maintain the sites without interruptions of services to the public and building staff.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not possess the expertise or licensing required to provide general-purpose construction services and
repairs.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16297



a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Handyman Connnection
Frank Lepori Construction
Building Solutions Inc.
(33 firms were solicited)
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Only qualified, responsive submittal
d. Last bid date: 10/07/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 08/31/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
The vendor has been performing satisfactory services for various state agencies since 2002.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Melissa Costa, Management Analyst   Ph: 775.684.4075

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval khawkin1 02/12/2015 16:33:58 PM
Division Approval shendren 02/13/2015 10:21:21 AM
Department Approval mcost1 02/25/2015 07:40:46 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 02/25/2015 16:55:17 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 04/01/2015 12:31:16 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16297



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/02/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16360

Legal Entity
Name:

Ron's Refrigeration, Inc.

Agency Name: DETR - REHABILITATION DIVISION Contractor Name: Ron's Refrigeration, Inc.
Agency Code: 901 Address: 2068 South Edmonds Drive
Appropriation Unit: 3253-10
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip Carson City, NV 89701-5806

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: 775.882.4845
Vendor No.: PUR0000322
NV Business ID: NV19791011556

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2019
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

General Funds 0.00 % Fees 0.00 %
Federal Funds 0.00 % Bonds 0.00 %
Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 100.00 % Business Enterprises Set Aside

Agency Reference #: #1958-19-BEN

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 04/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 03/31/2019
Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Refrigeration Mtnc

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing maintenance and repair services for commercial refrigeration units
for Business Enterprises of Nevada (BEN) program facilities in Northern Nevada.  The Vendor also agrees to
relocate/move equipment as needed.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $45,000.00
Other basis for payment: $78.00 per hour for standard work hours (Monday through Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm) and $117.00
per hour for all non-standard work hours (i.e., overtime, emergency, weekend and holidays).  Hourly costs and materials and
freight for maintenance and repairs as necessary are to be itemized separately on the invoice.  Trip charge of $25.00 applies
to services performed at BEN sites located 30 or more miles outside of the contracted address (mileage is subject to
verification via Google Maps).

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The Business Enterprises of Nevada program has a substantial inventory of equipment at various locations that need on-
going repair, maintenance and re-location.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
This work requires specialization in refrigeration services.This work requires specialization in refrigeration services.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16360



A-Tek Appliance Service
Specialized Refrigeration
Absolute Zero Refrigeration
Ron's Refrigeration
Western Mechanical
Hilltop Refrigeration
GCG
Cavallero Heating and Air Conditioning
BESTraining
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Best qualified submittal.
d. Last bid date: 12/11/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/01/2018

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Vendor has been providing satisfactory services for the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation,
Rehabilitation Division, Business Enterprise Program since June 2000.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Janette Parish, Admin. Assistant   Ph: 775.684.4086
   Melissa Costa, Management Analyst   Ph: 775.684.4075

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval khawkin1 02/12/2015 16:34:25 PM
Division Approval shendren 02/13/2015 10:24:48 AM
Department Approval mcost1 02/23/2015 16:24:18 PM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 02/23/2015 17:30:54 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 03/02/2015 10:39:46 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16360



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 04/01/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14483 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

EMCOR SERVICES DBA

Agency Name: EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION Contractor Name: EMCOR SERVICES DBA
Agency Code: 902 Address: MESA ENERGY SYSTEMS
Appropriation Unit: 4771-07 6255 MCLEOD DR STE 8
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip LAS VEGAS, NV 89120-4404

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Philip D. Robinson 702/597-0314
Vendor No.: T27027115A
NV Business ID: NV20071267110

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 1.90 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 69.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 29.10 % BEN, ESD Special Fund and Career
Enhancement Program

Agency Reference #: 1837-15-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 06/05/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

06/30/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: HVAC LAS VEGAS

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing HVAC service works for the
Department of Employment Training and Rehabilitation facilities in Las Vegas, Nevada on an as needed basis. This
amendment extends the termination date from June 30, 2015 to June 4, 2017 and increases the maximum amount
from $69,500 to $79,500 due to continued need for these services.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $9,500.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $60,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $10,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $79,500.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 06/04/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
HVAC mechanical systems need to be maintained for longevity and effective operation of equipment.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the expertise to perform these tasks.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14483



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Emcor Services
Carrier Corp.
Johnson Controls
Action Aire
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
One in a vendor pool.
d. Last bid date: 04/22/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 03/01/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
MESA Energy, dba EMCOR Services of Nevada has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation since June, 2013 and service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Foreign Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mcost1 02/13/2015 09:02:33 AM
Division Approval mcost1 02/13/2015 09:02:36 AM
Department Approval mcost1 02/13/2015 09:02:41 AM
Contract Manager Approval btaylo7 02/13/2015 13:33:33 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 04/01/2015 13:03:28 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14483



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/18/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14195 Amendment

Number:
3

Legal Entity
Name:

WESTERNAIRE MECHANICAL

Agency Name: DETR ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES Contractor Name: WESTERNAIRE MECHANICAL
Agency Code: 908 Address: SERVICES INC
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04 270 DOUBLEBACK RD
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip RENO, NV 89506-9144

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Gary Johnson 775/677-1040
Vendor No.: T81077993
NV Business ID: NV19851016139

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2013-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 1.90 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 69.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 29.10 % BEN, ESD Special Fund and Career
Enhancement Program

Agency Reference #: 1796-15-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 04/09/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

05/31/2015

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: HVAC

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the third amendment to the original contract, which continues ongoing HVAC repair and maintenance for the
Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation facilities in the Reno, Sparks, Carson City and Fallon,
Nevada areas. This amendment extends the termination date from May 31. 2015 to April 8, 2017, updates the rate of
pay and increases the maximum amount from $28,500 to $48,500 due to continued need for service.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $9,500.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $19,000.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $20,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $48,500.00

and/or the termination date of the original contract has changed to: 04/08/2017

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
Mechanical equipment often requires repair and maintenance.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
State employees do not have the time or expertise to perform these tasks.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14195



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Westernaire
Carrier Commercial Service
RHP Mechanical Systems
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
One in a vendor pool.
d. Last bid date: 03/31/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 01/01/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Westernaire has been providing service to the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since 2009 and has
performed satisfactorily.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mcost1 03/13/2015 15:22:41 PM
Division Approval mcost1 03/13/2015 15:22:56 PM
Department Approval mcost1 03/13/2015 16:16:54 PM
Contract Manager Approval btaylo7 03/16/2015 10:51:57 AM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 03/18/2015 15:29:11 PM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14195



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 02/19/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 14840 Amendment

Number:
1

Legal Entity
Name:

AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE

Agency Name: DETR -  ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES

Contractor Name: AMERICAN SIGN LANGUAGE

Agency Code: 908 Address: COMMUNICATION
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04 PO BOX 91030
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip HENDERSON, NV 89009-1030

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Crystina Scott 702/808-6070
Vendor No.: T29026382A
NV Business ID: NV20081113914

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2014-2018
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 1.90 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 69.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 29.10 % BEN, ESD Special Fund and Career
Enhancement Program

Agency Reference #: 1850-15-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 09/16/2013

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Previously Approved
Termination Date:

09/15/2017

Contract term: 4 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: ASL INTERPRETER

5. Purpose of contract:
This is the first amendment to the original Contract, which continues ongoing American Sign Language interpreting
services for the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation's personnel needs in the Las Vegas area,
on an as needed basis. These services may be needed for clients, employees, board members, council members, or
consumers who are deaf or hearing impaired for meetings, conferences, or other occasions. This amendment
extends the termination date from September 30, 2015 to September 15, 2017 and increases the maximum amount
from $9,500 to $49,500 due to the inclusion of anticipated Vocational Rehabilitation Clientele needs.

6. CONTRACT AMENDMENT
1. The maximum amount of the original contract: $9,500.00
2. Total amount of any previous contract amendments: $0.00
3. Amount of current contract amendment: $40,000.00
4. New maximum contract amount: $49,500.00

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
To meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and make services available to the disabled.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
Staff does not have the expertise to provide this type of service.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 14840



Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
Sign Language Communication Services, Inc.
Las Vegas Interpreters Connection
American Sign Language Communication
b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
One in a vendor pool.
d. Last bid date: 06/03/2013 Anticipated re-bid date: 06/03/2015

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
No If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
Not Applicable

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
LLC

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
No b. If "No", is an exemption on file with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mchadwic 02/06/2015 08:23:58 AM
Division Approval rolso1 02/11/2015 08:04:19 AM
Department Approval mcost1 02/13/2015 09:36:09 AM
Contract Manager Approval kwynands 02/13/2015 13:01:34 PM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 02/19/2015 11:13:13 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 14840



Clerk of the Board For Board Use Only

Date: 03/02/2015

CONTRACT SUMMARY
(This form must accompany all contracts submitted to the Board of Examiners (BOE) for review and approval)

I.   DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT
1. Contract Number: 16359

Legal Entity
Name:

FAAD JANITORIAL INC

Agency Name: DETR -  ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES

Contractor Name: FAAD JANITORIAL INC

Agency Code: 908 Address: 52 GLEN CARRAN CIR
Appropriation Unit: All Budget Accounts - Category 04
Is budget authority
available?:

Yes City/State/Zip SPARKS, NV 89431

If "No" please explain:  Not Applicable Contact/Phone: Donna Leidner 775/351-2405
Vendor No.: T27017486
NV Business ID: NV20041538232

To what State Fiscal Year(s) will the contract be charged? 2015-2017
What is the source of funds that will be used to pay the contractor? Indicate the percentage of each funding source if
the contractor will be paid by multiple funding sources.

X General Funds 1.90 % Fees 0.00 %
X Federal Funds 69.00 % Bonds 0.00 %

Highway Funds 0.00 % X Other funding 29.10 % BEN, ESD Special Fund and Career
Enhancement Program

Agency Reference #: 1960-17-DETR

2. Contract start date:
a. Effective upon final approval? No or   b. other effective date 03/01/2015

Retroactive? No
If "Yes", please explain
Not Applicable

3. Termination Date: 02/28/2017
Contract term: 2 years

4. Type of contract: Contract
Contract description: Janitorial Service

5. Purpose of contract:
This is a new contract that continues ongoing janitorial services at the Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation owned facility, located at 420 Galletti Way, Sparks, NV.

6. NEW CONTRACT
The maximum amount of the contract for the term of the contract is:   $15,902.64
Payment for services will be made at the rate of $662.61 per Month
Other basis for payment: $662.61/month

II.   JUSTIFICATION

7. What conditions require that this work be done?
The State of Nevada must maintain a clean facility for the safety and health of department clients and staff.

8. Explain why State employees in your agency or other State agencies are not able to do this work:
The State of Nevada does not have the manpower to provide this service in-house.

9. Were quotes or proposals solicited? Yes
Was the solicitation (RFP) done by the Purchasing
Division?

No

a. List the names of vendors that were solicited to submit proposals (include at least three):
All Cleaned Up
Jani-King of Reno
F.A.A.D. Janitorial

Page 1 of 2Contract #: 16359



b. Soliciation Waiver: Not Applicable
c. Why was this contractor chosen in preference to other?
Lowest price.
d. Last bid date: 12/22/2014 Anticipated re-bid date: 12/22/2017

10. Does the contract contain any IT components? No

III.   OTHER INFORMATION

11. a. Is the contractor a current employee of the State of Nevada or will the contracted services be performed by a current
employee of the State of Nevada?

No

b. Was the contractor formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months or will the contracted services be
performed by someone formerly employed by the State of Nevada within the last 24 months?

No

c. Is the contractor employed by any of Nevada's political subdivisions or by any other government?
No If "Yes", please explain

Not Applicable

12. Has the contractor ever been engaged under contract by any State agency?
Yes If "Yes", specify when and for which agency and indicate if the quality of service provided to the identified

agency has been verified as satisfactory:
F.A.A.D Janitorial has been under contract with the Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation since 2008 and
service has been satisfactory.

13. Is the contractor currently involved in litigation with the State of Nevada?
No If "Yes", please provide details of the litigation and facts supporting  approval of the contract:

Not Applicable

14. The contractor is registered with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office as a:
Nevada Corporation

15. a. Is the Contractor Name the same as the legal Entity Name?
Yes

16. a. Does the contractor have a current Nevada State Business License (SBL)?
Yes

17. a. Is the legal entity active and in good standing with the Nevada Secretary of State's Office?
Yes

18. Agency Field Contract Monitor:
   Brandon Taylor, Facilities Manager   Ph: 684-3900

19. Contract Status:
Contract Approvals:

Approval Level User Signature Date
Budget Account Approval mchadwic 02/19/2015 12:49:19 PM
Division Approval mcost1 02/23/2015 09:41:34 AM
Department Approval mcost1 02/23/2015 09:41:38 AM
Contract Manager Approval btaylo7 02/27/2015 09:02:04 AM
Budget Analyst Approval tgreenam 03/02/2015 10:11:34 AM

Page 2 of 2Contract #: 16359














































	April 14, 2015 - Agenda
	Exhibits
	Exhibit 1 - For Possible Action - Leases
	Exhibit 2 - For Possible Action - Contracts
	Exhibit 3 - For Possible Action - Master Service Agreements
	Exhibit 4 - Contracts Approved by the Clerk of the Board

	April 14, 2015 - Detailed Agenda
	02. For Possible Action - Approval of March 10, 2015 BOE Meeting Minutes
	03. For Possible Action - Approval of a Critical Labor Shortage
	04. For Possible Action - Salary Adjustment
	05. For Possible Action - State Vehicle Purchase
	06. For Possible Action - Leases
	07. For Possible Action - Contracts
	08. For Possible Action - Master Service Agreements
	09. Contracts Approved by the Clerk of the Board
	10. Information Items
	Information Item A - DCNR (NDEP)
	Information Item B - DHHS (DCFS)
	Information Item C - PEBP




